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Chang Yun Holdings

WH WH Group
23 BVI

Heroic Zone Investments Limited
BVI

High Zenith Limited

Norson Holding,

S. de R.L. de C.V. 2021 12 31
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0.0001

1998 10 15
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
000895
1994 29
100

Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group
Co., Ltd. 2019

1997 25

100

Smithfield Foods, Inc.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
2013 25 BVI

Sure Pass Holdings Limited
us the United States of America

us$

30 18

76 76028 -7604A
(Unit 7602B-7604A, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong)
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12 31 12 31
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

27,293 25,589 24,103 22,605 22,379

6.7 6.2 6.6 1.0 3.9
1,966 1,729 2,031 1,650 1,583

7.2 6.8 8.4 7.3 7.1
1,700 1,315 2,052 1,411 1,501
(402) (223) (357) (258) (182)
1,298 1,092 1,695 1,153 1,319
1,068 828 1,465 943 1,133

230 264 230 210 186
1,298 1,092 1,695 1,153 1,319
1,043 973 1,378 1,046 1,126
7.55 5.62 9.96 6.43 7.79

19,411 18,715 17,282 15,298 15,258
(9,724)  (7,730)  (7.830)  (6,880)  (7,036)

9,687 10,985 9,452 8,418 8,222
8,748 10,005 8,684 7,746 7,445

939 980 768 672 777
9,687 10,985 9,452 8,418 8,222

22/303



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn
2006
2013
2014
46
2021 12 31 107 50 40
17
2021 3,862 2020 3,988

COVID-19
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2021 2020 ()
( )
(€D]
— @ 13,808 12,167 +13.5
— ® 11,969 12,296 -2.7
— @ 1,516 1,126 +34.6
27,293 25,589 +6.7
— @ 1,895 1,499 +26.4
_ ®) 3 341 -99.1
— (ONO) 68 (111)
1,966 1,729 +13.7
)
)
)
)
)
2021
96.4 2020 86.7 2021
50.6 2020 47.5 2021
.2 2020 19.7 43.9
2020 48.1
2021 38.5
47.3 2020 42.3 65.9 2021
52.0 46.7 2020

48.3 24.0
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2021 2020
( )
4,216 4,037
8,512 7,157
1,080 973
13,808 12,167
902 836
885 571
108 92
1,895 1,499
2021 1.3 3,320
1.6
COVID-19
Mecom
Berlinki Morliny
12.7
2021 13.5 13,808
4.4
18.9
11.0
2021 2020 26.4 1,895
ASF
2020 7.9
COVID-19
55.0

17.4
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( )
5,336 6,073
5,585 5,169
1,048 1,054
11,969 12,296
(53) 271
64 (33)
®) 103
3 341
GCM 2021
50,682 2020 8.7
1.0
4,362 2020
2020 2.7 11,969
12.1
GCM
0.6
2021 99.1 3
2020 271
2020 33
ASF
103
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2021 2020
6.7 6.2 +0.5
EBITDA
9.1 8.9 +0.2
7.2 6.8 +0.4
— 13.7 12.3 +1.4
— 0.0 2.1 -2.1
— 570.8 457.6 +113.2
— 0.7 86.4 -85.7
4.7 4.8 -0.1
1.7 .9 -0.2
39.1 448 -5.7
41.4 24.4 +17.0
EBITDA
1.6 1.2 +0.4
6.8 6.1 +0.7
11.4 8.9 +2.5
2021 12 31
1,556 2020 1,599 RMB
Us$
2021 12 31 232 2020 882
2021 12 31 1.7
2020 1.9 2021 12 31 5,796

2020 5,032
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479
2021
IDR
BBB
IDR BBB
BBB-
2021
2021 16
2021
2021 21

2023

1,822

2021
409

20

BBB+

13.0
7.80

1,916,937,202

14,952
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2020 2,357
2021
2020 963
1,433 2020
2020 915
Baa2

1,916,937,202

1,916,937,202

1,750
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
( ) ( )
1,973 2,098
2,038 535
3 3
46
4,014 2,682
1,995 2,098
1,877 538
142 46
4,014 2,682
2,195 2,099
1,135
539 535
145 48

4,014 2,682
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2021 12 31 4,049 2020 2,706
2022 22
2023 1
2025 28
2027 15
2029 10
2030 12
2031 12
100
2021 12 31 99.8 2020 99.5
2021 12 31
41.4 25.4 2020 24.4 9.9 2021 12 31 EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA
1.6
1.0 2020 1.2 0.5
2021 3.0 139

2021 12 31 2.7 2020 3.5
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2021 933 2020 572
2021 2020
( )
647 172
207 318
79 82
933 572
2020 10
Shuanghui Investment & Development Co.,
Ltd.
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 13,463 5.0 12,969
1,166 14,135 2020 12 31
9,439 34.2 11,141 1,522 12,663
2020 12 31 1,182
2021 12 31 1,431

145
2021 21
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2021 17 MECOM GROUP s.r.o. Schneider Food, s.r.o. Kaiser Food Kft.
Mecom 100 Mecom
Mecom Csabahus Kaiser Schneider
Mecom
2021 Granjas Carroll de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V.
GCM 50 66 GCM
GCM
1.00 GCM
Dominion Energy RNG Holdings, Inc.
Align RNG, LLC Align Roeslein Alternative Energy, LLC Monarch Bio Energy, LCC
Monarch Align Monarch
2021 Align Monarch
2022 17 Monarch TPG Rise Monsoon, LP Monarch
33 Monarch 50 33

Norson Holding, S. de R.L. de C.V. Norson
2021 55

1.40 Norson
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2021 12 31

50,000,000,000 12,830,219,550 37,169,780,450
2021 12 31
0.0001
12,830,219,550
0.0001
12,830,219,550
2021 12 31
2016 12 31 14,651,069,111 1,465,106.9111
2017 31 11,500 14,651,080,611 1.15 1,465,108.0611
2017 30 1,734,500 14,652,815,111 173.45 1,465,281.5111
2017 31 52,500 14,652,867,611 5.25 1,465,286.7611
2017 31 2,003,000 14,654,870,611 200.3 1,465,487.0611
2017 30 3,101,000 14,657,971,611 310.1 1,465,797.1611
2017 10 31 872,500 14,658,844,111 87.25 1,465,884.4111
2017 11 30 800,000 14,659,644,111 80 1,465,964.4111
2017 12 31 4,585,000 14,664,229,111 458.5 1,466,422.9111
2018 30 11,255,000 14,675,484,111 1,125.5 1,467,548.4111
2019 28 557,500 14,676,041,611 55.75 1,467,604.1611
2019 31 9,697,500 14,685,739,111 969.75 1,468,573.9111
2019 30 23,562,000 14,709,301,111 2,356.2 1,470,930.1111
2019 31 359,500 14,709,660,611 35.95 1,470,966.0611
2019 30 886,000 14,710,546,611 88.6 1,471,054.6611
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2019 31 74,000 | 14,710,620,611 7.4 1,471,062.0611
2019 31 145,291 | 14,710,765,902 14.5291 | 1,471,076.5902
2019 10 31 6,024,754 | 14,716,790,656 602.4754 | 1,471,679.0656
2019 11 30 2,459,102 | 14,719,249,758 245.9102 | 1,471,924.9758
2019 12 31 1,500,000 | 14,720,749,758 150 1,472,074.9758
2020 31 6,749,706 | 14,727,499,464 674.9706 | 1,472,749.9464
2020 29 25,000 | 14,727,524,464 2.5 1,472,752.4464
2020 30 1,000,000 | 14,728,524,464 100 1,472,852.4464
2020 31 51,500 | 14,728,575,964 5.15 1,472,857.5964
2020 30 1,000,000 | 14,729,575,964 100 1,472,957.5964
2020 31 3,310,445 | 14,732,886,409 331.0445 | 1,473,288.6409
2020 31 5,139,969 | 14,738,026,378 513.9969 | 1,473,802.6378
2020 30 3,377,964 | 14,741,404,342 337.7964 | 1,474,140.4342
2020 11 30 2,660,000 | 14,744,064,342 266 1,474,406.4342
2020 12 31 1,150,000 | 14,745,214,342 115 1,474,521.4342
2021 31 306,444 | 14,745,520,786 30.6444 | 1,474,552.0786
2021 31 150,000 | 14,745,670,786 15 1,474,567.0786
2021 30 1,485,966 | 14,747,156,752 148.5966 | 1,474,715.6752
2021 30 (1,916,937,202) 12,830,219,550 | (191,693.7202) | 1,283,021.955
1PO 1PO
38
2021 1,916,937,202
2021 16 30
2021 30
1,916,937,202
2021 12 31
3,473,820,000 27.08
3,473,820,000 27.08
2022 28 2021 12 31
0.14 2021 2020 0.125
2021 30 0.05 2021 12 31
0.19 2020 0.175 2,534
325 2020 2,580 332 2021
2022 2022 13
2022
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14
A.1.7
A.1.7
2021 12 31 2021
1PO 1,000,000
A.2.1
A.2.1
2021 12 31 2021 11
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2021 12 A.2.1

10
2021 12 31
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5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1

2021
12 1/1 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A 1/1
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1 0/1
2021 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1 N/A 0/1

11
2021 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1 N/A 0/1 N/A
15

2021
17 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1
5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1
5/5 3/3 1/1 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1 0/1 0/1
5/5 3/3 N/A 1/1 2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 0/1

N/A
CPD

CPD
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11
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©
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500,001 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 1,500,000 1
1,500,001 2,000,000 1
4,500,001 5,000,000 2
5,500,001 6,000,000 1
6,000,001 6,500,000 1
7,500,001 8,000,000 1
45,500,001 46,000,000 1
17
)
(i)
(iv)
(vi)
3.13
3.13
2021 12
2021
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)
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12

2021
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11
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@iv)

15

2021 12 31
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www . hkexnews . hk www .wh-group.com

12.3 10

www . wh-group.com

Wan Long

53/303



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oooooog
Wan Long 81 2007 10 16 2010 11 26
2013 12 31
2013 10 2021 11
2012 20
000895 1968 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory 1984
50 1998 2003 2008 2013
12 China’ s National People’ s Congress
2001 China Meat Association 2006 12 2011
12 China Meat Association 1991
Henan University of Animal Husbandry and Economy The Henan
Business College 1999

Henan Province Advanced Professional Titles Adjudication Committee (Economic Disciplines )

Guo Lijun
Guo Lijun 51 2013 12 31 2021 12
2021 31
2016
2021 11 2016 2021 11
2013 10 2014 2014 2016
20
1993 1996 Henan Luohe Meat
Products Processing United Factory 1996
2001 Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Packaging Industry
Co., Ltd. Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Plastic Processing Co.,
Ltd. 2001 2012
2012 2013 10
000895
1994 Henan Radio and Television University
2004 12 Graduate School of Renmin
University 1994 10

PRC Ministry of Personnel

Wan Hongwei

Wan Hongwei 48 2021 12
2018 22
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2014 2021 11
2004 2013
2002
Ma Xiangjie
Ma Xiangjie 50 2018 26 2018
000895 2018 22 2017 12 26
2012 15 2012 24
2012 25 2017 12 25
25
2008 2010
2010 2012
2001 Shuanghui Development Ingredients Factory 2003
Luohe Shineway Haiying Seasoning Food Co., Ltd.
2004 Luohe Tianrui Biochemicals Co., Ltd.
2012 10 26 Luohe Shuanghui Food Sales Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Fuxin Shuanghui Meat Processing Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Heilongjiang Baoquanling Shuanghui
Beidahuang Food Co., Ltd. 2013 11 19 Shaanxi Shuanghui
Food Co., Ltd.

1996 Henan Agricultural University
2005 Graduate School of Renmin University
2010 Northwest A&F University
2003 2019
2020
48 2021 11
2021
2003 2021 2021
2019 2021 2017 11 2019
2012 2019
2009 2000

2001

2017 10
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40
Jiao Shuge
Jiao Shuge 56 2006 28 2013 12 31
2010 11 26 2018 14 2012 20 2021
31 000895
CDH
2015 Hainan Poly Pharm Co. Ltd
300630 2016 2021
Ningbo Akin Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. National
Equities Exchange and Quotations 830806
2016
2018 Mabpharm Limited 2181
2021 OCl International Holdings
Limited 329
1989 1995 710 No. 710 Research Institute of
China Aerospace Service and Technology Corporation 1995 12 2002
China International Capital Corporation Ltd.
2005 13 2012 22 China Yurun
Food Group Limited 01068 2005 11 30
2014 16 China Shanshui Cement Group Co., Ltd.
00691 2007 12 2020 27 HH
Joyoung Company Limited 002242 2015
30 2021 30 China Southern Airlines Company Limited
1055 2012 12 2021 11 30
China Mengniu Dairy Co., Ltd. 02319
2004 18 2012 12
1986 Shandong University 1989 10
No. 2 Research Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics of
China

Huang Ming
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Huang Ming 58 2014 16
1996 1998
1998 2001 2001 2005
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business 2004 2005
2008 2010 2010
2019 China Europe International Business School
2006 2009 Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics 2005
2014 JD.com, Inc.
JD 2018 360
360 Security Technology Inc. 601360
SJEC Corporation 601313
2011 2014 Tebon
Securities Co., Ltd. 2011 2016 360
Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd. QIHU 2016
18 2011 2017 12 Guosen
Securities Co. Ltd. 2013 10 2017 12
00867 2009 10 2019
01777 2018 2019 H
China Shenhua Energy Company Limited H
1088 A 601088
2008 2020
Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited 2018
17 YGE
1985 1991
1996
Lee Conway Kong Wai
Lee Conway Kong Wai 67 2014 16
Limited 00051 Fhaowel Pow?r- Holdings 2010
02233 West China Cement Limited 2010
2010 12

01117
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) o Gome Electrical Appliances 2011
Holding Limited 00493 o )
Limited 02220 NVC-nghtlng Ho!dlng 2012 11
oldings Ltd. Olgifhlll Internatlfnal 2013 11
Linited 0451 GCL New Energy Holdings 2014
Guotai Junan Securities 2017
Co., Ltd. GTJA 02611
2017 GTJA 601211
2014 2015 Merry Garden Holdings
Limited 01237 2009 10 2013
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
00966 2009 10 2011 12
SVX 2011 11 2016 CITIC
Securities Company Limited 06030 2011 2020 5100
Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd. 01115 2014 2020 12
China Rundong Auto Group Limited 01365
1980 2009
2008 2017 1980
1988
Lau, Jin Tin Don
Lau, Jin Tin Don 65 2014 16
2013 2017 Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust 01426
Spring Asset Management Limited
2013 Yuexiu
Property Company Limited 00123
2005 2010 Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust
00405 Yuexiu

REIT Asset Management Limited
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Chau Ho
Chau Ho 56 2014
2011 2014
China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings Limited
01101 2010 2011
00845
20 1994 10 2010
1991 11 1992 11
2003 1994
2006 2008
Yan Kam Yin
Yan Kam Yin 42 2021 12
2012 2013 2021 11
10
2007 2002 12
2012 11
Zhou Feng
Zhou Feng 53 2021 12
2011 10
2021 11 2000
Luohe Shuanghui Import & Export Company Limited
2009 2011 Zhengzhou Synear Food
Company Limited 1988
2005
Wang Dengfeng
Wang Dengfeng 45 2021 12
2014
2021 11 1999 2014
1999
Qiao Haili
Qiao Haili 57 2019
000895

2014 11 2019
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2016 11 2012 2014 10
2009 2012
1986 1995
1995 1998
1998 2004 10 Luohe
Shuanghui Canned Foods Company Limited 2001 11 2004 10
2004 11 2009 Shuanghui Development Meat
Processing Division Factory
1986 Zhengzhou Junior College of Animal Husbandry and
Veterinary Medicine 2005
Graduate School of Renmin University 1998 12
Wang Yufen
Wang Yufen 54 2012
000895 1998 23
30 1987 10 1991
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1991
1992 Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory
Meat Product Branch 1992 1993 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1993 1998

Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Food

Institute 1998 2001 11

1997 Zhengzhou University of Light Industry
2002 2005

Graduate School of Renmin University

Liu Songtao

Liu Songtao 45 2017 12 26
000895
2012 25 2017 12 25 2003
2012 2003
Shuanghui Development Luohe Slaughter Factory 2002 2003
Luohe Huayi Food Co., Ltd. 2000

Henan University
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48 2015

19

1995 1996

41 2020 11
2002

2002
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( )
2021 12 31 ( )
( 38 59 ) 131
129.43 UFJ 2022 20
( ( 23 103 )
) (

23 25 ) 193
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€H)
12 31
2021 2020
5 27,293 27,293 25,589 25,589
(22,587) 290 (22,297) (21,096) 533 (20,563)
4,706 290 4,996 4,493 533 5,026
(2,038) (2,038) (1,914) (1,914)
(803) (803) (874) (874)
(81) (81) (511) (511)
(167) (167) (209) (209)
6 133 133 74 74
7 131 131 “n @n
(366) (366) @11) (111)
8 (139) (139) (135) (135)
9 9 4 4
25 25 10 2 12
9 1,658 42 1,700 1,500 (185) 1,315
11 (381) 1) 402) (263) 40 (223)
1,277 21 1,298 1,237 (145) 1,002
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12 31
2021 2020

5 3,532,533 3,532,533 3,311,984 3,311,984
(2,923,436) 37,535  (2,885,901)  (2,730,455) 68,986 (2,661,469)

609,007 37,535 646,632 581,529 68,986 650,515
(263,778) (263,778) (247,729) (247,729)
(103,932) (103,932) (113,122) (113,122)
(10,484) (10,484) (66,139) (66,139)
(21,615) (21,615) (27,051) (27,051)

6 17,214 17,214 9,578 9,578
7 16,955 16,955 (6,083) (6,083)
(47,371) (47,371) (14,367) (14,367)
8 (17,991) (17,991) (17,473) (17,473)

1,165 1,165 518 518

3,236 3,236 1,294 259 1,553

9 214,595 5,436 220,031 194,145 (23,945) 170,200
11 (49,313) (2,718) (52,031) (34,040) 5,178 (28,862)

165,282 2,718 168,000 160,105 (18,767) 141,338
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12 31
2021 2020

4 (90)
4 (90)
@7 312
(26) 31
(53) 343
(49 253
1,249 1,345
1,068 828
230 264
1,298 1,092
1,010 1,016
239 329
1,249 1,345
7.55 5.62
7.55 5.60
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12 31
2021 2020
45

518 (11,649)

518 (11,649)
(3.495) 40,382
(3.365) 4,012
(6,860) 44,394
(6,342) 32,745
161,658 174,083
138,231 107,168
29,769 34,170
168,000 141,338
130,724 131,500
30,934 42,583
161,658 174,083

13
9.77 7.27
9.77 7.25
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@
12 31
2021 2020
14 6,367 824,081 5,531 715,877
16(a) 711 92,025 684 88,530
17 168 21,744 135 17,473
18 2,070 267,919 2,008 259,896
19 1,757 227,409 1,762 228,056
20 62 8,025 47 6,083
21 191 24,721 307 39,735
24 67 8,672 57 7,378
25 12 1,553 10 1,294
27 7 906 11 1,424
31 42 5,436 61 7,895
335 43,359 268 34,687
11,789 1,525,850 10,881 1,408,328
15 150 19,414 130 16,826
17 1,263 163,469 1,047 135,513
22 2,625 339,754 2,641 341,825
23 1,064 137,714 915 118,428
24 668 86,459 512 66,268
20 2,589 57 7,378
25 232 30,028 882 114,157
/ 27 44 5,695 51 6,601
27 1,556 201,393 1,599 206,959
7,622 986,515 7,834 1,013,955
28 1,149 148,715 913 118,170
29 2,371 306,878 2,136 276,463
16(b) 110 14,237 103 13,331
71 9,190 73 9,448
30 874 113,122 796 103,026
30 46 5,954
4,575 592,142 4,067 526,392
3,047 394,373 3,767 487,563
14,836 1,920,223 14,648 1,895,891
29 383 49,572 291 37,664
16(b) 377 48,795 373 48,277
30 3,140 406,409 1,840 238,151
31 725 93,837 553 71,575
32 46 5,954 44 5,695
33 478 61,868 562 72,740
5,149 666,435 3,663 474,102
9,687 1,253,788 10,985 1,421,789
36 1 129 1 129
8,747 1,132,125 10,004 1,294,819
8,748 1,132,254 10,005 1,294,948
939 121,534 980 126,841
9,687 1,253,788 10,985 1,421,789
62 182 2022 28

Mr. Wang Long Mr. Guo Lijun
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€))
( (@) RGN ()))

2020 1 2,982 (94) (222) (187) 268 5,936 8,684 768 9,452
828 828 264 1,092
247 247 65 312
(90) (90) (90)
31 31 31
« ) 247 (59) 828 1,016 329 1,345
@ @ @ (©))
886 886 123 1,009
(238) (238)
12 (599) (599) (599)
* 29 (10) 19 19

" *

7 1 ®)
* 29 885 ®3) 1 (607) 305 117) 188
2020 12 31 1 3,011 791 25 (249) 269 6,157 10,005 980 10,985
2021 1 3,011 791 25 (249) 269 6,157 10,005 980 10,985
1,068 1,068 230 1,298
(36) (36) 9 @7
4 4 4
(26) (26) (26)
« ) (36) (22) 1,068 1,010 239 1,249
®) ©) (€)) ©
1 1
274) 274)
12 (332) (332) (332)
* 3 w 2 2

" *
() (1,931) (1,931) (1,931)
c (©) (©)

* 2 (@)
() (1,928) (6) (€H) 2 (334) (2,267) (280)  (2,547)
2021 12 31 1 1,083 785 (11) 272) 271 6,891 8,748 939 9,687
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@) (4 oy
2020 129 385,961  (12,168) (28,733) (24,203) 34,688 768,297 1,123,971 99,401 1,223,372
107,168 107,168 34,170 141,338
31,969 31,969 8,413 40,382
(11,649) (11,649) (11,649)
4,012 4,012 4,012
« ) 31,969 (7,637) 107,168 131,500 42,583 174,083
(129) (129) (259) (388)
114,676 114,676 15,920 130,596
(30,804)  (30,804)
12 (77,529)  (77,529) (77,529)
* 3,753 (1,294) 2,459 2,459
(G *
906 129 (1,035)
* 3,753 114,547 (388) 129  (78,564) 39,477 (15,143) 24,334
2020 12 31 129 389,714 102,379 3,236  (32,228) 34,817 796,901 1,294,948 126,841 1,421,789
2021 129 389,714 102,379 3,236 (32,228) 34,817 796,901 1,294,948 126,841 1,421,789
138,231 138,231 29,769 168,000
(4,660) (4,660) 1,165 (3,495)
518 518 518
(3,365) (3,365) (3,365)
« ) (4,660) (2,847) 138,231 130,724 30,934 161,658
77 () (388)  (1,165)
129 129
(35,464)  (35,464)
12 (42,971)  (42,971) (42,971)
* 388 (129) 259 259
" *
(9 (249,929) (249,929) (249,929)
© (518) (518)
* 259 (259)
( 9 (249,541) (777) (129) 259 (43,230) (293,418) (36,241) (329,659)
2021 12 31 129 140,173 101,602  (1,424)  (35,204) 35,076 891,902 1,132,254 121,534 1,253,788
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50 10

25

2021 12 31 NCI
NCI
NCI NCI
2021 12 31
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Ooooooog
®
12 31
2021 2020
1,700 220,031 1,315 170,200
(30) (3,883) an (2,200)
139 17,991 135 17,473
©) (1,165) ©) (518)
(25) (3,236) 12) (1,553)
538 69,632 495 64,067
130 16,826 139 17,991
4 518 7 906
9 1,165 8 1,035
2 259 2 259
24) (3,106) (29) (3.753)
61 7,895 115 14,884
167 21,615 209 27,051
4 518 25 3,236
1 129 2 259
(10) (1,294) 13 1,683
2 259
1) (129) () (906)
2,656 343,766 2,398 310,373
407) (52,678) (106) (13,719)
25 3,236 224 28,992
(170) (22,003) 136 17,602
an (2,200) 19) (2,459)
159 20,579 272 35,205
2,246 290,700 2,905 375,994
(288) (37,276) (418) (54,102)
(136) (17,603) (130) (16,825)
1,822 235,821 2,357 305,067
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12 31
2021 2020
(922) (119,334) (551) (71,316)
1) (1,424) 1) (2,718)
2,112 273,357 1,695 219,385
(1,591) (205,922) (2,049) (265,202)
) (9,190) 1) (9,190)
84 10,872 58 7,507
12 1,553 12 1,553
22 2,847 10 1,294
3 388 2 259
5 647
') (7,378) 1) (9,190)
® (1,035) (€Y} (129)
12 1,553 18 2,330
1 129 8 1,035
18) (2.330)
13 1,683
(©) (388)
8 1,035
(&) (259)
(409) (52,937) (963) (124,641)
5,220 675,625 3,279 424,401
(3,978) (514,872) (3,793) (490,927)
(283) (36,629) (246) (31,840)
(332) (42,971) (599) (77,529)
© (1,165) ® (388)
2 259 19 2,459
(123) (15,920) 132) (17,085)
(1,931) (249,929)
1 129
996 128,912
(1,433) (185,473) (479) (61,997)
(20) (2,589) 915 118,429
23 2,977 86 11,131
1,553 201,005 552 71,445
1,556 201,393 1,553 201,005
1,556 201,393 1,599 206,959
(46) (5,954)
1,556 201,393 1,553 201,005
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WH ( )
2014

2021 12 31
( )

46

2.1

1ASB IFRS

2.2

2021
12 31

(a
(b
(c

(a
(b
(c
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IFRS
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2.3
IFRS
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS -
IFRS IFRS 16
IFRS 16 2021 30 Covid-19
IFRS
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 —
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
RFR
IFRS
RFR
RFR 24
2021 12 31
RFR
2021 30 IFRS 16 COVID-19
2021 IFRS 16
12
2022
30 2021
2021

CoVID-19
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IFRS

IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
1AS
1AS
1AS
1AS
1AS
1AS
IFRS

IFRS
IFRS

IFRIC

IFRS

IFRS 10

10

17
17
17

12
16
37

2022
2023

2020

21

10
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IFRS
1
IAS 28
3
2
IFRS 17 IFRS 9 -
2,4
IFRS 2
2
1
2018-2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
1
IFRS 17 IFRS 2023
IFRS 1AS 39
IFRS
IFRS
2018
IFRS
IAS 37
IFRS
2022
IAS 28
IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10
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oOoOooodn
2015 12

IFRS 17

IFRS 17

2005 IFRS IFRS 17 IFRS 17
IFRS 17
IFRS
IFRS 17
IFRS 17
IFRS 17 2023
IFRS 17 IFRS IFRS 15

IFRS 17 IFRS 17 IFRS -

IFRS 17 IFRS 17 IFRS - IFRS 17

2023

IFRS 17

IFRS 17 IFRS 17

IFRS 17 2023
IASB IFRS 2023 IFRS
IAS 39

IAS

1AS

2023

IAS

1AS

IFRS
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1AS 2023

IFRS

IAS

1AS

2023

IAS 12

IAS 12

2023

IAS 16

IAS 16

2022

IAS 37

IAS 37 IAS 37

2022

IFRS 2018-2020

IFRS 2018-2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41
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IFRS 16

IAS 41

IFRS 16
IFRS 16

IAS 41
IAS 41

22

2022

13
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CGU

IFRS

CGU

cGU

cGu

ey

IAS 19

CGU

cGu
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(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)
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IAS 36
IAS 36
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90
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(b

©

(a

49
23

13
14
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I1AS

40
10
20
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CGU CGU
CGU
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FVPL
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FVOCI
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IFRS 15
SPP1
SPPI
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2021 12 31 1,243 2020 1,028
17
2021 12 31 2,625 2020 2,641 22
2021 12 31
2020 90 2021 12 31

490 2020 575 33
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2021 2020

13,808 12,167

11,969 12,296

1,516 1,126

27,293 25,589

99
2021 2020
520 305
2021 12 31
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OooooOodd
2021 12 31

4,216 6,123 1,360 11,699
(787) (396) (1,183)
4,216 5,336 964 10,516
902 (53) 81 930
8,515 9,789 87 18,391
(€)) (4,204) (4,207)
8,512 5,585 87 14,184
885 64 (30) 919
1,124 1,489 557 3,170
(G2)) (441 92) G
1,080 1,048 465 2,503
108 () 17 117
13,855 17,401 2,004 33,260
7 (5.432) (488) (5,967)
13,808 11,969 1,516 27,293
1,895 3 68 1,966
(203)
42
(139)
9
25
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2020 12 31
4,037 7,075 1,024 12,136
(1,002) (306) (1,308)
4,037 6,073 718 10,828
836 271 33 1,140
7,160 8,581 37 15,778
®3) (3.412) (3.415)
7,157 5,169 37 12,363
571 (33) (123) 415
1,019 1,534 452 3,005
(46) (480) (81) (607)
973 1,054 371 2,398
92 103 (1) 174
12,216 17,190 1,513 30,919
(49) (4,894) (387) (5,330)
12,167 12,296 1,126 25,589
1,499 341 (111) 1,729
(108)
(185)
(135)
4
10
1,315
2021 2020

3,237 2,560

7,024 6,102

1,225 1,929

11,486 10,591
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2021 2020
64 26
30 17
15 10
24 21
133 74
2021 2020
18 17
24 29
® ™
O (25)
@
(€Y @
1 5
24 7
105
(32) (69)
131 (47)
2021 2020
@D (76)
(35) 37)
19 (20)
®) ®)
1 3
(139) (135)
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2021 2020
4 4
1 1
538 495
130 139
9 8
2 2
61 115
10) 13
112 114
179 148
3,843 3,983
353 82
10.
2021
()
A
(Wan Long) ( ( ) 1 1
(Guo Lijun C () 1 * 1
(Wan Hongwei) ) * * *
(Wan Hongjian) ( ( )) + * *
(Charles Shane Smith) ( ( )) 1 3 * 4
(Dennis Pat Rick Organ) ( ( )) 1 9 * 11
Ma Xiangjie 1 * * 1
5 4 9 * 19

2021 12 31

B)
Jiao Shuge
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)
Huang Ming + *
Lee Conway Kong Wai + *
Lau Jin Tin Don * *
+ +
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 19
)
) 2021 12 31
) Wan Long 2021 2021 11 2021 12
2021 12 Guo Lijun
) Wan Hongwei Charles Shane Smith 2021 12
2021 11
) Wan Hongjian 2021 17
) Dennis Pat Rick Organ 2021
2021 15
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2020
() ()
A)
Wan Long () 1 1
Wan Hongjian 1 * 1
Guo Lijun 1 * 1
Sullivan Kenneth Marc * 2 * 3
Ma Xiangjie 1 * * 1
4 * 2 i 7
2020 12 31
B)
Jiao Shuge
)
Huang Ming * *
Lee Conway Kong Wai * *
Lau Jin Tin Don * *
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 7
)
() Sullivan Kenneth Marc
2020 12 31
() Sullivan Kenneth Marc 2020 12 31
2020 12 31
( ) 2020 12 31 Wan Long
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2021 12 31

24,000,001
31,500,001
39,500,001
44,000,001
45,500,001

2020

24,500,000
32,000,000
40,000,000
44,500,000
46,000,000
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2020
2020
2021 2020
3
10 3
1 +
14 4
2021 2020
1
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11
2021 2020
(192) (229)
45) (34)
4) (25)
() €©))
(32) (35)
(109) 103
(402) (223)
EIT EIT
25
( ) EIT
2008 149 EIT
EIT 86
EIT
( EIT
EIT
(
2012 58
15
( EIT
2009 203 15
15
EIT 27 91
10  EIT
2021 12 31 2020 12
31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 21%
2021 12 31

%-21% 2020 16%-19%
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2021 2020
1,700 1,315
(404) (23.8) (311) (23.7)
7 0.4 3 0.2
4 0.2 8 0.6
32) 1.9) (26) (2.0)
29 @.n @ 0.2)
1 0.1 +
22 1.3 60 4.6
13 0.8 25 1.9
32) 1.9) (32) @9
4 0.2 3 0.
21 1.2 25 1
23 1.4 24 1.8
(402) (23.6) (223) (17.0)
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2020
2019 0.265
2021
2020 0.05
2021 12 31
13

0.125

0.05

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2021 2020

237 504

95 95

332 599

0.14
2021 2020

1,068 828

14,142.45 14,733.55

2.69 55.22

14,145.14 14,788.77
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2020

2020

2021

2020

2020

2021

2021
2020

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31
12 31

2021 12 31

2021 12 31

2021 12 31

15

34

34

2021

2021
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542 2,721 139 4,269 346 8,017
5 87 4 129 5 230
1 11 9 20 479 520
3 3

4 180 20 392 (596)
) (31) (CD) @ (106)
552 2,992 141 4,746 233 8,664
) ®) 3 (18) 1 (26)
+ 21 30 929 980
73 228 8 105 18 432

1 146 5 309 (461)
®) (5) 17 (48) (73)
616 3,356 161 5,124 720 9,977
729 81 1,801 2,611
26 2 61 89
123 10 362 495
7 1 17 25
®) (25) (56) @n
879 69 2,185 3,133
® €3] 2 ®
149 13 376 538
4 4
(&) (16) (39) (57
1,018 64 2,528 3,610
616 2,338 97 2,596 720 6,367
552 2,113 72 2,561 233 5,531

2020
2020 188
2020

2020
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@

2020

2020 12 31 2021

2021 12 31
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150 130
2021 2020

29 48

121 82

150 130

210 211 28 52 145 646

+ 20 1 + + 21

36 43 14 32 25 150
(38) ® 13 33 “n (139)
13) @ (€Y) (Gl ©) (22)

3 1 @ 1 26 30
) ()

196 266 28 52 142 684

1 6 1 2 2 12

82 16 18 14 24 154
(49) (10) (11) (18) 42) (130)
() m @ ®)
@ @

229 278 36 43 125 711
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12 31

©

)

©

®

IFRS 16

2021

2020 12 31
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2021 2020

476 465

146 129

19 20

142) (152)

® (22)

30

(©) 6

487 476

110 103

377 373

487 476

37
2021 2020

19 20

130 139

95 o1

17 23

(G

1 2

262 275

32
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17

45

13

19

112 115
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2021 12 31

35 37

2021 2020

2 2
2 2
9 8
13 12
1 1
14 13
1 9
2 +
13 9
23 132

21
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38 42
2021 2021 2020 2021 2021 2020
132 135 19 6 3 1,182 1,244
[0) 4 ) 2 1 (19) 13
178 186 225 191 22 9,396 8,005
19 101
@2 (73 + 1 12) 167)  (209)
(8,436) (7,283) (51)  (84) (213) (157) ®) (6) (8,703) (7,530)
43)  (36) © () 0} (359)  (341)
161 132 20 19 7 1,431 1,182
2021 2020
1,263 1,047
168 135
1,431 1,182
2021 2020




979

(©)
@
(©)

(€))
@

(©)
(©)
@
@

(©)
(€]
@

(©)

(©)

*
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1,243 1,028
161 132
20 19
7 3
1,431 1,182
JLL
2021 2020
2,582 4,444
199 886
984 2,929
128 119
25 25
16 16
22 20
2021 2020
115 111
29 36
35 34
175 144
3.4 2.8
2021 2020
135 159
97 114
30 28
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34
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12 31
CGU

®

(O}
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143 139
2.0 0.5
2021 2020

2,008 1,955

78 31

(16) 22

2,070 2,008

2,070 2,008
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2021 2020
52 51
150 147
115 40
1,536 1,536
217 234
2,070 2,008

CcoU oell
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 CoU
CcoU

2021 2020 2021 2020
(0.1)-55.3 (6.9)-15.1 2.0 2.0
2 2 2 2
14 10 6 6

2021 2020 2021 2020
6.0-20.2 1.3-17.4 2.1 2.1
2 2 2 2

14 10 6 6
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2021 2020
3.5 3.5
4 4
6 7
CGU
oely oely
19
2020 1,662 5 1 55 40 6 1,769
28 * * 28
34 32 32
2020 12 31 2021
1,690 5 1 87 40 6 1,829
(G (G () ()
34 4 4
2021 12 31 1,694 5 1 87 40 6 1,833
2020 9 1 34 12 1 57
4 2 *
2020 12 31 2021
13 1 38 14 1 67
+ + +
5 3 9
2021 12 31 13 1 43 17 2 76
2021 12 31 1,681 5 * 44 23 4 1,757
2020 12 31 1,677 5 * 49 26 5 1,762
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25
CoU
CcoU

2021 2020
52 51
308 302
234 234
981 981
109 114
1,684 1,682

CcoU ol

2021 12 31 2020 12 31 oell

2021 2020 2021 2020
(0.1)-55.3 (6.9)-15.1 2.0 2.0
2 2 2 2
17 13 6 6

2021 2020 2021 2020
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6.0-20.2 1.3-17.4 2.1 2.1
2 2 2 2
17 13 6 6

2021 2020
3.5 3.5
4 4
6 7

2021 12 31
2020
20

2021 2020

62 47
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 2020
9 4
3 2

21

2021 2020

191 307

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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30
31 90
91 180
180
2021 12

31

632
40
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2021 2020
25 12
5
2021 2020
1,222 1,018
145 103
1,258 1,520
2,625 2,641
2021 2020
1,070 931
14 (24)
1,056 907
8 8
1,064 915
30
2021 2020
912 802
142 112
9 1
1
1,064 915
2020 567
2021 2020
(¢Z)) (11)
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10 13)
+ +
14) (24)
90 91 180 180

0.015% 44.13% 98.35% 1.34%
1,047 16 7 1,070
7 7 14

90 o1 180 180
0.51% 99.52 91.48% 2.53%
911 11 9 931
5 11 8 24
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24
2021 2020
89 61
190 38
46 60
59 130
46
42
26 81 80
128 101
100 53
735 569
668 512
67 57
735 569
25
2021 2020
232 882
12 10
244 892
232 882
12 10
244 892
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
FVPL
26
2021 2020
3 6
1 2
+ 1 + 4
28 * 95 *
8 3 5 5

36 8 100 17
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2021 12 31
(15)
- 350,000 3,065,000 2023 11
- 110,700 2022
- 6,310,000 24,185,000 2023 12
42,240,000 80,720,000 2022 12 12)
2020 12 31
(10)
- 5,000 2,995,000 2022
- - 77,000 2021
- 225,000 6,030,000 2022
44,640,000 121,360,000 2021 10 22
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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2021 12 31
86,240,000 1,354,440,000 2022 )
123
- 34,040,000 79,692,568 2022 11
- 320,900 527,900 2022 12
18,977,516 55,848,336 2022 11 [6))
2020 12 31
131,280,000  2,328,040,000 2021 12 515
@4
- 64,144,044 110,857,129 2021 12
- 520,900 969,000 2021 12
4,000,000 62,537,541 2021 12 @
/
2021 12 31
(163) (169) ) 27 Q)
120 164 3 an 123
2020 12 31
489 594 26 (75) 515
(19) (155) ) 111 (24)

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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2021 2020
8 5 3 14
4 2 + +
43 3 10
2 + + +
57 7 6 24
2021 12 31
35,000 1,685,000 2023
1,313 174,682 2022 11
11,800,000 192,966,578 2022 10
16,441,111 48,401,835 2022 11
10,000 3,720,000 2023
6,300,000 16,350,000 BTU 2023 12
16,632,000 37,800,000 2023 12
3,300,615 3,360,706 2032 12
8,131,305 178,003,131 2022
2020 12 31
395,000 3,110,000 2022
95,100 2021 10
10,680,000 486,950,909 2021 10
758,809 21,455,000 2022 12
5,000 2,765,000 2021 11
4,800,000 2021
6,930,000 14,050,000 BTU 2021 12
18,060,000 32,130,000 2021 12
3,300,615 3,300,615 2032
4,495,667 62,475,302 2021
30 2020 51
2020 79
2020 2020
¥
27
2021 12 31 0.01 4.13 2020 0.01 4.13

0.02 4.13 2020 0.03 4.13
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2021 12 31
2020
2020
2021 12 31 2020
2021 12 31
36 2020 49
2020
28
30
2021 2020
30 1,127 891
31 90 13 19
91 180 4 1
181 365 5 2
1,149 913

12 2020 42(b)
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2021 2020
609 732

99 90

223 261

157 77

151 155

23 27

177 11

45 45

33 24 23
26 3 16
29 24

35 32

60 14

523 520

478 302

118 98

2,754 2,427

2,371 2,136

383 291

2,754 2,427

2020 305
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30
2021 2020
2021 10 2.650 310
2022 3.350 307
2027 4.250 597 596
2029 5.200 396 395
2030 10 3.000 490 490
2031 2.625 490
1,973 2,098
)
)
5 11
2,033 524
)
1 1
2 2
4,014 2,636
) 46
)
874 796
24 326
1,141 31
1,975 1,483
4,014 2,636
(874) (796)
3,140 1,840
2,515 2,599
1,499 37
4,014 2,636
2021 2020
2,195 2,099
1,135
539 489
145 48
4,014 2,636
( ) 2018
397
1,750 2021 12
31 2020
() 2021 12 31 1.80 5.80 2020 1.80 5.80
LIBOR 0.50 ROBOR 0.8 2020 WIBOR 0.58 ROBOR
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() 2020 12 31

)

2020 12 31
31

2020

2020 12 31
2021 12 31

2021

34
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2021 12 31 0.9 2020 0.9
2.8
2021 12 31
40
2021 2020
42 61
(725) (553)
(683) (492)
* 5 25 3 62 163 12 76 346
+ + + + 1 ) 1
+ * (15) 4 (©) (30) 52 40 78 126
31 (€)) 30
+ 5 10 7 60 164 52 52 153 503
+ + + + (G (G (G
10 5 15
1 * O] ® 7 (€D)) ® an 15 (28)
9 2 aan
1 5 1 2 77 131 46 35 175 473
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2020 12 31

2021 12 31

34

2021

34

2021 12 31

263

56

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

3,853

2

2020

020
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ooooood
(463) (32) (429) ®) 13) (940)
® @ (10) @ (D)
@n 3 ®) + 7 23)
(G * (11) (11)
(498) G (445) ©) 18) (995)
() ®) @ @ ®
“4) 39) (83)
(41) 1 ®) (©) (€X)) @D
(] (G (G 11 11
(583) (36) 452) ) ) (1,156)
505 2020
298 2020 200
207 2020 63
2040
2021 2020
1
16 15
4 3
27 24
104 20
151 63
3,468
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

33

)

65
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2021 2020

46 44
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12 31
2021 2020
2.80% 2.80%
4% 4%
2021 12 31 2,194 2020 2,123
2021 2020
53 85
(105)
12 17
(40) 102
105
2021 2020
111 154
(88) 75)
23 (121)
(19) 31
4 (90)
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2021 2020
2,684 2,608
(2,194) (2,123)
490 575
12 10
502 585
24 23
478 562
502 585
2021 2020
2,698 2,378
53 85
76 80
(126) (120)
(105)
88 275
2,684 2,608
2021 2020
2,123 1,812
64 63
22 214
(126) (120)
111 154
2,194 2,123
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12 31
2021 2020
110 117
909 1,062
891 645
5 10
261 211
2,176 2,045
18 78
2,194 2,123
2021 12 31
937 978 261 2020 835 999 211
8.24 2020 8.07
50 210

2020 221

135/303



23

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

136/303

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
128 -10 195 -
909 40-70 1,062 30-50
891 20-50 645 35-55
266 -20 221 -20
2,194 2,123



MPF

30,000

2021 12 31

34

2021 12 31
MECOM GROUP s.r.o. Schneider Food, s.r.o.

2021 17
Group
2021 12 31 Mecom Group

Mecom Group
27,455 1,708

Granjas Carroll de Mexico GCM Group

2021 GCM Group
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MPF
MPF
401(k)
119 2020 76
Kaiser Food Kft. Mecom Group
Mecom Group 100 Mecom
81
2021 12 31
GCM Group 16

50 66 GCM Group
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2021 12 31 GCM Group 159
20
GCM Group 2021 12 31
27,611 1,740
2020 12 31

Edelmann Provision Company Inc.

2020 10 30 Edelmann Provision Company Inc. Edelmann
Provision
2020 12 31 Edelmann Provision
15
Edelmann Provision 2020 12 31
MECOM Group GCM Group
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2021 2020
MECOM GCM Edelmann
Group Group Provision
14 52 380 432 3 3
19 4 4 32 32
17 101 101
15 24 39 4 4
13 18 31 7 7
+ 13 13 2 2
2 2
1 17 18 3 3
19 1) (35) @ @
€)] ® ® ©)) ©)
(123) (123)
31 (68) (68)
11) @ 12 &) 3
57 337 394 43 43
18 78 78 31 31
57 415 472 74 74
2021 2020
MECOM GCM Edelmann
Group Group Provision
57 18 75 74 74
63 63
27 27
141 141
166 166
57 415 472 74 74
€Y (18) (75) (74) (74)
1 17 18 3 3
(56) ) (€D) M) (1)
(56) ()] (€] (7) ()
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(a
143 146
2020 139 129
(b
2020 18 465 3,092
(845) (132) (514)
129
20 +
(20)
(22)
30
837
4 6 58
2020 12 31 2021 14 476 2,636
(615) (123) 1,242
146
19 +
19
®
606
55 123
e ] @) 3.
2021 12 31 60 487 4,014
(c
2021 2020
131 134
11 13
123 132
265 279
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2020

2020

2020

2021

)

0.0001

2020 12 31 2021

12 31

12 31

() 2021 12 31

37

2021 12 31

2021

(

)

191,694
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2021 12 31 50,000,000

14,720.75
) 24.46

14,745.21
) 1.93
(1,916.94)

12,830.20

1PO

1,916,937,202 1,923
1,916,937,202

30

D/E 25.4 2020 9.9
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2021 12 31
*
12 12
232 232
81 81
181 181
20 1,384 1,404
/ 51 51
1,556 1,556
526 2,991 3,517
2020 12 31
*
10 10
882 882
80 80
161 161
20 1,091 1,111
/ 62 62
1,599 1,599
1,153 2,752 3,905
* FVPL
2021 2020
1,657 1,099
487 476
( ) 4,014 2,636
46
6,158 4,257
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3 15
2
* 1
43 11
6 8

6
* 8
1 18
1 1
22 20
2 2

+ +
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25
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2020
2020

FVPL
30

30
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2020

2021 2020

FVPL

25
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23 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 /
12 31
2021 12 31
12
8 1,056 1,064
320 320
51 51
1,556 1,556
1,935 1,056 2,991
2020 12 31

12
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176 176
62 62
1,599 1,599
1,845 907 2,752
2021 12 31 5,796 2020
2021 12 31
1,149 1,149
508 508
116 133 86 204 539
960 1,234 237 2,144 4,575
2,733 1,367 323 2,348 6,711
3 3
2020 12 31
913 913
121 65 186
120 147 95 224 586
46 46
876 401 205 1,649 3,131
2,076 613 300 1,873 4,862
7 9 16
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2021 12 31 2020
12 31

2021
12 232 244
37 22 34 93
53 114 14 181
20 20
90 168 280 538
12 3 15
2020
10 882 892
96 8 2 106
47 84 30 161
20 20
143 122 914 1,179

29 2 10 41
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@
(b)
1.5 4.8 2020 12 31 1.5 4.1
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
LIBOR
2020 447 ) 26
29 8 4
« D
2,049
(1,695) 1D
52
2020 12 31 2021 882 ® 30
24 58 (16)
1,429
@.112) (16)
9
232 34 14

2021 12 31
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37 (11) 26 ) 24

12 (11) 1 ()
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38

1PO

2014 21

2014 1PO

1PO

243
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96 (10) 86 (45) 41
26 (10) 16 (16)
1PO 2014
584,795,555
6.20
1PO
2014 10
IPO 1,883
6.66
6.20
10
42
2.06

150/303



2020

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

2020 12 31

oOoOooodn

2021 12
31

2014

1PO
10 462,905,269 24,464,584

2021 12 31
2020

39

708,138 437,732,547 1,942,410

598,500 435,191,637

435,191,637

437,732,547
6.24 2020 7.06
1PO
2021 2020
165 165
564 305
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2021 2020
9 8
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2023 11
SPV
SPV SPV
SPV
2021 12 31 SPV 632 2020 567
26 2020 107 2021 12 31 2020 12
31 SPV
41
2021
12 31 2020 12 31

Smithfield Foods Inc. Smithfield
16

2009 2018

Agri Stats, Inc.

2018 Smithfield
2019
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2020 10 16
Corporation

2018

2021 29

2022 19

Smithfield
Smithfield

Smithfield

Smithfield

77
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Indiana Packers

83
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Maxwell Foods
2020 13 Maxwell Foods, LLC Maxwel | Smithfield
Smithfield
PSA 1994 12
Maxwel l Maxwel |
Maxwel l
PSA 2020 Maxwel |
Smithfield Smithfield
Maxwel l 2021 22
Maxwel l Smithfield
2021 Maxwell (UDTPA)
Smithfield
Maxwel | 2021 13 Maxwel |
Maxwell UDTPA
2020 Maxwel l
Barden
2020 18 20 Smithfield Smithfield

Murphy-Brown LLC

2020 13 Smithfield

2021 15

154/303



42.

(a

(b

2021 12 31

2020 12 31
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2021 2020
21 16
17 13
144 223
19 28
2021 2020
1
* 4
12 9
12 31
2021 2020
9 7
9 5
9 2
1
29 14
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2020

12

2020 12 31

12

2021 12 31

36

2021
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2021 2020
5,139 5,139
151 84
1 1
152 85
1,126 319
1 2
1,127 321
(975) (236)
4,164 4,903
1,128
1,128
3,036 4,903
1 1
1,083 3,011
61 61
220 221
1,671 1,609
3,036 4,903
1 2,982 61 231 1,660 4,935
548 548
(599) (599)
* 29 (10) 19
+ 29 (10) (51) (32)
1 3,011 61 221 1,609 4,903
394 394
(332) (332)
(1,931) (1,931)
3 (€)) 2
1 (1,928) () 62 1,867
1 1,083 61 220 1,671 3,036

156/303



44

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
29.67% 29.67% 223 245 932 964
7 19 7 16
230 264 939 980
12 31
2021 2020
2,559 1,950
2,755 3,406
(1,562) (1,536)
(135) (117)
(3,566) (3,650)
51 53
881 911
932 964
12 31
2021 2020
10,286 10,652
(9,541) (9,729)
745 923
745 923
522 677
3 2
220 244
745 923
8 17
922 1,289
@78 (533)
(930) (34)
(86) 722
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2021
23 (121)
(19) 31
4 (90)
@n 312
(36) 42
10 (11)
(53) 343
(49) 253
46
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
- 100 100
Rotary Vortex Limited 33,883,510,411
— 70.33 70.33
3,464,661,213
100 100

Smithfield
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Resuls
bedoae

biokogical  Biological

Fair value fair valoe
Adjustments  adjustments Total ndjus
UsE'million  USE'million USS'sillon

T - 27283 — 27,283
[ 42 (22,587} 290 (22,2871
ol 4,708 290 4,998
f and g Apen {2,038} = {2,038) 1914 1,914
irative axpanses {803} — (803] (874 g4
FRIF Wail 35 CO51S
: of harve o {an @1}
— (&7 {187
133 e 133
131 - 131
{286} - (366) 1
{138} = (139 135
1 i <] —_ ] 4
i 25 — 23
ROFIT BEFORE TAX 3 1,658 az 1,700 150
Taxatic 11 . {381} Zn m]. 263
EAR 1,277 21 1,288
o
4
4
Tar
rabic 27}
kg kot 28)
(53}

62 WHGROUP LMTED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)

Eesulis
befare

biological  Biokgical

Falr value fair value
adjustments  adjusiments Toaad
U million  US%'million UEE'million

NCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,248 5

TR 1,068 7
g infereat 230 o

1,208

i E gy 1,000
condr g ITeerrads ESB
1,248 i34
el 7.55 5.6
i 758 E

WH GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021

S5 million

HON-GURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equigsment 14 B 36T 5031
Reght-of-iise assels 1464a) TJ11 e
Biodogical assels 17 168 135
Goodwill 18 2070 2,008
Intangible assets 19 1,757 1,762
Interests in associates 20 G2 47
Interests in joint ventures 21 1 07
Othed receivables 24 &7 57
Financial assets al tair value through prolil or loss 25 12 10
Pledged bank deposits 27 T 11
Delerred tax assels 31 42 il
CHhad non-ciiirent assels 335 e
Total non-carment assets | 11,789 10,881

CURREMT ASSETS

Properties under developmen 15 150 1508
Biodogecal assels 17 1,263 1,047
Inveniores 22 2625 2641
Trade amd bdills recenvables 23 1,064 915
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 2 BE8 k12
Taxafion recowerable 20 LT
Fimancial assels at falr value through peolil or loss 5 232 g&ar
Pledgedirestricted bank deposits 27 4 Al
Cash and bank bhatances 27 1,556 1,599
Total cument assels 7,622 1834

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payabbes 28 1,149 913
Accrued expenses and olher payasbles 29 23M 2136
|Lease habilites 165k} 110 103
Taxation payable M 3
Bomrowings A0 874 196
Bank overdralls A0 - 46
Tatal current liabilities 4575 A,067
HET CURRENT ASSETS | 3,047 1,767
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURREMT LIABILITIES 14,836 14,648
WHERIUP LMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

2021

NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Us$million

LESS roml lson

Other payables et 383 a1
Leste limbalities 16t} a7 ira
Bomowings 3 3140 1,840
Lraferred tax liabilitics 31 125 Bh3
[heberred revenise 32 A6 a4
Pension liakbality and other retivement benefits 3 478 562
Total pon-current labilities 5.149 3,663
MET ASSETS 89,6587 10,585
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Sheare capital 35 1 1
Reserves B.747 10,004
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 8,748 10,005
Non-controlling interests B g93s8 SHO
TOTAL EQUITY 9.587 10,585

The consaldated linancial slatements on pages 62 lo 182 woere approved and authorised o0 issee by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2022 and ae signed on its behall by:

Mr. Wan Long
Director

162/303
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Feor Iha pes wrced 31 Decambar 2021

Capital reserve

Caphal reserve represinty ihe aRemnce teiween iha smounis By which the pon-Comingliag wlerssts sie sdsied 1o e Change m the
CRO0up’s o hip: inh in " Eubsdisres and the fair vides of the conmderstion paid or recdied,

Stwistory sedphen reserve

Puriant o [ ek 8 in Mans China. and 1he arfiches of stbtcamon of the Greeps- Subsiltanes negistited m Mamand

China, nmohhamnrpquud 1o transder: §0% of im poofit, pn detonmised wndel the Ching scoounting reguiations, bo fue ststutory surpius
Teland URGl [ Fedenve Bigreranes 10 500 of its regitened capitsl The transter 8o This reterve must De msds Difoe disvibution ol
dividends & shamhckdes

The: sinluliory Surplus ressrve shall ordy be woed 10 mafe Up. previous pasn’ et of 10 ncréabe [hE relevas] company’s capilal. Lipsn
spproval by 8 ivsslubon of sharsholden® genaml mesting, asch of the relswant companies may comwrt B shlutory srplus aarve inky
capital, provided {he balanie of ihe tesarse Mis w:hlmummmnﬁ'ﬁulhw“m

Trmsider of contisclunl pst opthan in elitkon B Aon-coabiclimg inteieats

Durring the year ended 31 Decembes 2021, the Group enlersd inlo & condrachial put option in relaton 10 non-contiolng inteiest [*M01°)
shares in 3 subsiciary. The NCI sharencider can mquise the Group 10 acquine Me shars of ihe subsidary s 3 luasm daje. The Group
appled e pastinl secognilion of NI method K il gt oplicn, of which The peofil tod 1R year shared by the NCI shareholdes B nktalion o
tha portion of Tha pol opbion i eoeded as 3 Habaly i “accieed expenses 800 olfver payables™ in the consciidaied staberment of financisl
poiton as a1 31 Decambar 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2021

USS million LS million

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit belore tax 1,700 1,315
Adjustimants for
Imberest ineoime {30y (A ¥
Fimance cosls 138 135
Share of pralits of associates 1] {4}
Share of paofits of joint ventures {25) (12
Cepreciation of property, plant and equipment 538 495
[repasciion of r|_}_:;|1| ol - use assels 130 | 535
Less on disposal of properly, plant and equipment 4 7
Amortisation of intangble assels a 8
Amortisation of other non-current assets 2 2
Fair value gain on financial assets al fair value heough peofil o loss (24} {250
Invenlones prosvasions, el &1 115
Loss arsing om changes in fair walue bess costs to sell of beclogical
assets 167 20
Imijsairnent ks an ;:-||||_u-:rl5-_ plant @nd e paent 4 25
Impairment kss on right-of-use assels 1 2
{Reversal of impasmient losses) imparment losses on trade
receivables, nel 1oy 13
Impairment kss on mlangible assets - bd
Gain on Insurance recoveny {1 {7}
2,656 2,398
Incieage in bWologksal assas {407} RLLAY]
Decrease in mvenlories 25 224
flecrease) decrease m bade bdls and oty receiabdes {170} | S
Increase in groperlies under development mn {19
Dwscrease in iade and olher payables 159 2F2
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIOMNS 2,246 2,505
[axation pakd {288} (18}
Interest paid {138} (1300
Met cash flows from operating aclivities 1,822 2,257

(i) WHEGRIUP LMTED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

LISE million

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (922) (5513
Acditions of sighl-of-use assets {11 1213
Proceads fiom dissal of fnancial assels at lal valoe thecugh peolil

o loss and debt investments at amortised cost 2112 1 655
Purchase of hinancial assets al tan vale thictgh prolit o loss and

debl Bvestments at amortised cost {1,581) (2,0449)
Placement of pledgedirestricled bank deposits (71} {11
Withdrawal of pledged/restncted bank deposils B4 o8
Proceeds from dispesal ol progerly, plant and equipment 12 12
Inderest received 22 14
Dividends received from associates 3 2
Dividends received from joinl veniwes 5 -
Mel cash outlka on-acquisition of subsidiares {57 {71
Acquisiben of interests in associates {8 (13
Hecefpl of repaymment ol loans 12 18
Insiifance clame on peopeity, pant and g,ﬂuimn::rﬂ 1 o
Seftlerment of culstanding consideration for acquisition of subswdianes S {18)
Procesds lom dispess]l of equily inferests m subsidianes — 13
Purchase of alher non-currenl assels X (3}
Proceeds from sales and leseback of assels - B
Constiuchion of assets o be sold _— (]
N-;.'l -:‘-u..r_u flows used ininvesling activities H_UE-:I_ {S53)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrewings, net of ansaclion costs 5,220 3,279
Repayment of borowings {3.978) (3 793
Dividend paid o non-controlling interests (283) {24&)
Davidend paid fo sharcholders of the Comgeany {332} (5957
Met cash oatfin on acquisition of addibonal interests in subsidearies {9 {3}
Proceeds Tom issue of shares 2 19
Lease payiments {123) {134
Paymenl o share repurchase {1.,931)

Conlributson Trom non-conirofling inlesest 1

Procesds from ssoe of shares by & nnlmn‘.‘il:ir:{ — G0
Wel cash llows used in lmancing aclivilies | {l.ﬂ&?i {479

wrsrour Lvires [
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

2021 2020

US% million LIS million

el {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {200 alh
Ellect of loreign exchange rate changes 23 i
Cash and cash equivalenis al beginning ol year 1,583 hhZ
CASH AND CASM EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,558 1,553

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 1,556 1,595
Bank awerdratls = (18]
1,556 1,553

T WHEGROUP LMTED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ai inded 3] Decambar 201

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

WH Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman lslands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Beard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Komg Limited (he "Stock Exchange™ on & August
2014,

The addiess of the repsteied office of the Company and the addiess of its principal place of business arne
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” i the annual repo

The Company acts a5 an investment holding conpany. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021 comprise the Company and its entities (ncluding streclured entities,
conlrodlied by the Group) (Collectivaly refered to as the “Group") and the Group's inlerests in associates sod
interests in joint ventures, The Group s primarily involved in the production and sale of packaged meats and
pork. The pincipal activities of its principal subsidianies are sel ool in nole 46 o the consdidated financial
slatemants.

The tunctienal currency of the Company 15 the United States Dollar (*LIS$").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepased i acoordance with International Feancial
Reporting Standads (“IFRSs™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “1ASE") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Hong Comganles Ordinance.

The consolidated financial slalemenls have been prepared under the historical cost convention, excepld for
biological assets, linancisl assets at fain value oough profit o less, certain non-curment assets and dervative
financial assels and liabilities which have been messured al fair value These fimancial statements are
presented o LSS omnd all wlues are rounded to the nearest million (LSS milion”) excepd when othenwise
indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated fnancial statements comprise the financial statements of fhe Company and its entities
{including structured entities, controfled by the Group) during the year ended 31 December 2021, Contiod s
achieved when the Group s exposed, or has rights, o variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the abilily 1o aflect those relums through s power over the investee, Specifically, the Group conliols
an investes i, and only il, the Group has:

{a) power over the nvestes (e, existing rights that give | the currend abdity to direct the relevan activities
al the investeel;

{b} exposure, o1 rights, fo vanable relums from its involvement with the investes; and

{c)  the ability 1o use its power over the investee bo affect ils returms,

st pzront oo weerour Lo [EEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)
Generally, there is & presumplon thal 8 majonty of voting nghts results in control,. To support this
presumplion and when the Group has less than a majority of the voling or similar righls of an investes, the
Group considers all relevant lacts and circunslances in assessing whelher il has power over an invesies,
mcluching:

fa)  the contraclial anangement(s) with the other vole hobders of he invesbes;
(b}  mghts ansing [rom other contractual amangements; and
{c} the Group's voling rights and polential voling rights

The Group re-assesses whelher or not it controls an investea il facts and cicwmstances indicale that there
are changes to one o mose of the thiee elements of contiol, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group oldains control over the subsidiary and ceazes when the Group loses confrol of the subsidiany. Assets,
Ratsilies, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired of diposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated linancial statements Trom (he date that the Group gains confrol until the date the Group ceases
to contiol the subsidiary,

Profit of loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“0C1) are attributed to the owmess of the
Company and 1o the non-controlling inferests, even iF this results in the non-controling imerests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments ane made lo the financal slatements of subsidianes 10 brng
their accounting polices inkto line with: the Growup's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liab#ities,
equily, imcome, cxponses and cash flows relaling to transsclions - between members of the Gioup are
elminated in full on consolidation

Changes in the Group's ownership interests i existing subsklianes thal do not result in the Group losing
control over lhe subsikdianes are accounded lor &5 equity lransactions. The carmying amounls of the Group's
relevant components of equity mcluding reserves and the non-controlling inlerests are adjusted o reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsideanes, Any dilference between the amount by which the
mo-controlfing imteresis are adjusted after re-athribation of the relevant equity component, and the fair value
ol the consideralion pawd of receved s recogmised dieectly i equity and attributed o owners of Hhe
Company.

When the Group kses conlrol of a subsidiary, a gan of kes s recognised in profil or ks and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the teir value of the consideration received and the fair value
ol any retaned inlerest and (i) the campng amounts ol the assels (includmg goodwal} and liakalities of the
subsidiary  attributable to the owners of the Company, AN amoants previsusly recopnised in other
comprehensive incoma in relation o thatl subsidiagy are accounted for as it the Group had direclly disposed
of the related assets o liabalities of the subsidiany (e, rectassified to profit or kess of t@nsferred dieclly to
retained earnings). The fair valee of any mvestmenl retained in the fomer subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded @s the fair value on initial recognition ol subsequent accounting under IFRS 9
Firancial Insfruments of, when applicable, the cost on initiad recognition of an investment in an associate or
a join venture.

12 WHEGRIUP LMATED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tedr inced 31 Decatibar SO0

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Growp has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the cument yeass linancial

statemanits.
Amendments o IFRS 9 1AS 39, Interest Rate Benctimark Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
Amendment o IFRS 16 COVID-19-Redatad Rent Concessions bepond 30 fune 2021

{eanly adopted)

The nalue and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 [nlerest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Fhase 2

Amendments 1o IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address issues nol deall with in the prévious
amendments which alfect lmancial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmak is replaced with an
alternalive risk-free rate (CRER™). The amendments provide a practical expedient 1o allow the effective interesl
rate to be updated without adjesting the camying amount of financial assets and liabiities when accounting
for changes in fhe basis for determining the conbactual cash flews of financial assets and labilities, il the
clange i5 a diredd consequence of the inlerest mbe benchmark reform and the new bases lor delermining the
contraciual cash flows is economically equivalend o the previous basis immediately preceding the change. In
addifion, the amendments permill changes required by the interest rate benchmerk refonm to be made 1o
hedge designations and hedge documentabion witheut the hedging relationship being discontinsed. Any gains
ol losses thal coubd arise on ransition ane deall with theough the noomal requirements. of IFRS 9 o measure
amd recognise hedge ineflectiveness. The amendments also pronde a lempoany rebel to entiies (rom having
fo meed the separately idenfifigble requirement when an RFR s designated as a sk component. The relel
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, bo assume that the separately identifiabie requirement is met,
prosded - the entity reasonably expects the RFR sk component to become separstely identiiable withm the
next 24 months, Furthermaone, the amendments requeire an entily to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements 1o understand the elfecl of inlerest rate benchemark relorm on an enlily's
fimancial instruments and risk management strategy.

The Group had ceibsin interest-bearing bank and olhes bobiowings denominated @ USE and forekzn
curmences based on varkous inferbank offered rates as at 31 December 2021, W the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future pencd, the Group will apply this practical expediend upon the
mexdification of these borowings when the “economically equivalent” criterlon is met and expects thal no
significant modilication gain or boss will anse as a result of applying the amendments 1o these changes.

oot werour uvires [EETR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTINE POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Amendment to IFRS 16 COWD-19-Related Rent Concessions beyomd 30 June 20271 (early adopted)
Amendment to IFRS 16 lssued in March 2021 exdends the availability of the practical expedient for lessees to
elect nol o apply lease modilication accountng for enl concessions ansing as a direct consequence of e
COMID- 19 pandemic by 12 months, Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rend concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments onginally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other condiions for applying the practical expedien] are mel. The amendmaent @5 eflective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Apsil 2021 with any cumalative effect ol initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjusiment to the opening balznce of relaimed profits at the beginming of the
cutrent accounting pencd, Earlier application is permitted,
The Group has early adopted the amendment on | January 2021, Howewer, the Group has not received
COVID-15-refated vent concessions and plans o apply the practical expedient when it becomes applicable
within the allowad period of application.
2.4 |SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has nol applied the lollowing new and revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are nol el
efective, in these financial stalements
Amendments 1o IFRS 3 Referance to the Conceptial Framework!
Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sk o Conlribinion of Assely between an Investor and s Associale
IAS 28 ar Joind Venture?
IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts®
Amendment o IFRS 17 Initial Apedtcabion of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Irnformation”
Amendiments bo IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts®*
Amendments to 145 1 Classification of [iabdies a5 Current o Mon-cuvrent
Amendments to 165 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
IFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to 1AS 8 Disclosure of Accounting Eslimetes”
Amendinents to I6S 12 Defarred Tax relaled o Assele and Lialilties avising from & Single
Transachon’
Amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds belfore fnlended Lise!
Amendments 1o 1AS 37 Gnerous Contracls — Cost of Fulfiting 8 Contract!
Anndal improvements i Amandments to IERS 1, IFRS 9. Nustiative Eamples sccompetiying
IFRS - Standards 201 8=2020 IFRS 16, and IAS 41°
Effechive for annual penods Beginning on or sfés 1 Januany 2022
2 Effection for snnunl porinds teginning on or w1 January 2023
I Mo mghdalony efeciive dile yel daleimnad bul Sialible 160 aarl BOGHIGS
i AL 8 CoRSeqU of tPe smerdments b FRS LT aued In June 2020, IFRS 4 wes smended i exlend B lampomny exemphion
Ml parmils Eunss 0 appdy NS 30 waher Ehan IFRS S dor g usl padicdty paginning . bedmie 1 lasusry 023
WHGROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tedr inced 31 Decatibar SO0

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{eontinued
Further information abmd those IFRSs that are expected o have an impact on the Group upon adoption is
describied Bedow. Whilsl management has performed an assessment of the estimaled impacts of these
standards, that assessment is based on the information currently available 1o the Group. The actual impacis
upon adoplich could be diflerent to hose below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information beng made available to the Group al the time of applying the standards.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference fo the Conceplival Framework

Amendments bo IFRS 3 are ntended to replace a reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
arvd Fresentalion of Financial Stafemenis with a relerence o the Concepfual Framework for Financial
FReporting Baued o March 2018 without significantly changing ils requirements, The amendments alse add 1o
IFRS 3 an excepfion 1o ils recognition prnciphe for an enfity 1o refer to the Conceptual Framework 1o
deberming whal constitutes an asset o a liability. The exception specifies that, for labdities and contingent
liabslities. that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 il they were mcumed separatety rather than
assumed in & business combination, an entily appling IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 2]
respectivily nslead of the Conceptial Framework. Fusthemone, the amendinents clasify 1hat conlingent assets
do not qualify for recognilion at the aocquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2022 Since the samendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date ks on or after the date of fhst application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on e date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 Sale or Contribufion of Assels hetween an lhvestor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments o IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 address an inconsitency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in
145 28 in dealing with the sale or conbribution ol assefs between an investor amd its associate or joind
venture. The amendiments require a full recognition of a gam of loss resubling from a downstream ansaction
when the sake o conlmbution of assels between an imvestor and iks associabe of joind venlure constitutes a
business, For a tiansaction invelving assets that do nol constilute 8 business, a gain or boss resulling from
the transaction is recopmised In We investor's profit of koss only o the edent of the unreiated investor's
interest in thal associate of joint venture. The amendmems are to be applied prospectively, The previous
menvdatony effectve date of amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 was removed in Decomber 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined affer the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint venlures. However, the amendments are svailable for adoplion now!.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{continued)
IFRS 17 lnsorance Contracts
IFRS 17 lnswance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance confiacts covering
recognition and measurement, presentalion and  disclosure, Once elfective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4
Inserance Condracts thal was ssued in 2005, IFRS 17 applies to all lypes of inswrance conbracts {le., lide,
non-life, direcl insurance and re-insurance), regardiess of the type of enlities that issue them, as well as to
certan guaraniess and linancial instruments with disciationary parlicipateon Tealures, A lew scope exceplions
will apply. The ovemll objective of IFRS 17 s to prosede an accounting modd o insurance contracts thal e
more useful and consistent lor msurers. In conliast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are Brgely based
on grandiathering previoas local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a compachensive model for msu@noe
contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 s the general model, supplemented
by:

. a specilic adaptalion o contracts with direct paticipation features (the wariabhe fee approach)
. a simplified approach (the premium allscation approach) malnly to short-duiation contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for repoding periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the enlity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the
dale it fiwst applies [FRS 17, This standard is nol expecied to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 17 lnitial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 8 — Comparalive informalion
Amendment o IFRS 17 Inital Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information provides
transiticn option relating b comparative information about financial assets presented on initial application of
IFRS 17, The amendment aimed at helping enfities fo avoid temporary saccounting mismatches between
linancial assets and iswance contract liabilities, and therefose impiove the usefulness of comparalive
information for users of financial salements, The amendment s elechive for annual reporting  periods
beginning on or aller 1 January 2023 and Is not expected lo have any stmificant impact on the Group's
financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracls

Amendments to IFRS 17 insurance Condracts: address concemns and implementation challenges that were
ibentilled after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date of initial apphcation of IFRS 17
{incorporating the amendments) to annual reporting pefiods beginning on or affer 1 Janeary 20230 AL the
same time, the IASE amended IFRS 4 1o extend the temporary exemplion that permas insurers to apply 1AS
35 rather than IFRS 9 lor annual periods Beginning before 1 January 2023

Amendments to 1AS 1 Classification of Liabifities as Current or Nown-corrent

Amendments 1o 1AS | Classification of Lishiities. as Current or NMon-current clary he requiremnents fof
classilying liabibfies a5 cudrent of non-cumrent, The  amendments specily that o an enlity’s nght to deler
settlement of a llabdlity §s subsject to the enlity complying with specified conditions, the enlity has a right o
defer selllement of the labdity ol the end of the reporting peniod i il complies with those condiions at that
date, Classilication of a hability is unaffected by the likelilvood thad the enlity will exercise 15 right o deler
setllement of the labilty, The amendments also clarify the situations thal ane considered a setilement of a
liakyility. The: amendmints are efective for annual perkods beginning o o aller 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Ealier application ks pemmilled. The amendments are nol expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial sktatements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ted inced 31 Decatibar SO2)

2.4 ISS5UED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{continued )
Amendments o IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Amendiments 1o 1AS 1 Oveclosive of Accounting Policies require enlities to drclose their msteial socounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting paficies. Acoountng policy Information is material i,
when consedered  togethor with other information incheded in an entity's financesl statements, it can
tessonably be expecied toinfluence decisions that the primary users of general purpose linancial statemenis
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to [FRS Practice Statement 2 provide
non-mandatory  guidance on how 10 apply the concepl of mateislity to accounting policy  disclosures.
Amendments 1o 1AS | are effective Tor annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application s permiled. Since the guidance provided in the amendments 1o IFRS Practice Statemenl 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments s not necessary, The Group is cumently assessing
the impact o the amendments on the Group's acoounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to I1AS 8 Disclosure of Accounting Estimates

Amendments 1o IAS 8 clwily the distinction between changes in accounting estimafes and changes in
accounling policies. Accounting estimales are defined as monetary amounts In linancial stalements that are
subject 1 measurement uncertainty, The amendments also dlarify how enfities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are elfective for annual repoiting periods
beginning on or after 1 Janwasy 2023 and apply lo chamges in accounfing policles and changes in
accounting estimates that ofow on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are nol expected o have amy significant impact on the Group’s Imancial statements,

Amendments to 145 12 Deferred Tax refated to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaclion
Amendments to 1AS 12 narow the scope of the intial recognition exceplion o that it no longer applies o
transactions thal give rise lo equal laxable and dedudible femporary differences, such a5 leases and
decommissioning oblipations, Theredore, enliies are required to recognise a deferred tax assel and o delered
tax bability for temporary dilferences arising from these tansactions, The amendments are elfectne for annual
reporting periods beginning on o after 1 January 20232 and shall be applied to transactions related 1o leases
and decommissoning oblggations at the beginning o the earbiest comparalive penod peesented, with aiy
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment 1o the opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equily as appropriate al thal date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively 1o
transactions olber than leases and decommissioning obligations: Earlier application i permitted.  The
amendments are nol expecled o have sy significant imgact on the Group’s linancial statements,

Amendments lo IAS 16 FPropacly, Plant and Equipiment: Froceeds before Intended Use

Amendments 1o IAS 16 prohibil an enlity from deducting from the cost of an idlem of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling tems produced while banging that asset to the lecation and condition
necessany for it o be capable of opesaling in the manner infended by management. Instead, an entity
recogmises he proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those ilems, o profil of loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beamning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be applied
retrospectively 1o lems of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning o
the eapliest penod presented in the francal statements in which the entity (st apphes the amendments.
Earlser application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINAMCIAL REFORTING STANDARDS
{continued)
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerows Coniracts — Cost of Fuifilling a Conrtract
Amendients 1o INS 37 clarity thal for the puipose of assessing whelher o conliact is oneious under 1AS 37,
the cost of Tulfiling the contract comguises the costs that relate disectly to the contract Cosls that relate
directly to a contract inclede both the incremental costs of fullilling thed contract (eg., divect labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that refate divectly to fullilling that confract (e.g, an allocation of
the deprectation chaige for an item of property, plant and equipment wsed in uliilling the contract a5 well as
confract management and supervision costs) General and admndistrative cosls do not elate divectly o a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable 1o the counlerparly under the conlracl. The
amendments are effective for annual pecds beginning on of after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
confracts for which-an eniity has nol yet fulliBed all is obligations at the beginning of the annual reporiing
period in which it fist applies the amendments. Eadier application & permitled. Any cumulative affect of
initaally apphving e amendments shall be recognised a5 an adjustment 1o the opening equily at the date of
mitial application withoul restating e comparalive nformation. The amendments ae nol expected o hawe
any significant impact on the Group's financial stalements.

Anmal fmprovements to [FRS Standards 2018-2020

Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, [Nustative
Examples accomganying IFRS 16, and IAS 41, Detalls of the amendments thal are expected fo be applicabde
o the Group are as follows:

. IFRS & Finance! nstrements: clarifies the fees that an entilty includes wiven assessing whethes the terms
of a new of modified financial lability are sobstantially different from the terns of the orginal financial
Bability. These lees include only these paid or received between the bosrower and the lender, mcliding
fees paid o received by either the bomower o lender on the other's behall, An oentily applies the
amendment 1o loancial [Ebalities that are meditied or exchanged on of after e beginning of e
annual reporting peniod inowhich the entity first ?Ipi:-“t':ﬁ the amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual pericds beginning on or afler | lanwary 2022, Earlier application is permitted. The amendment
B not éxpected to have o ssnilicant impact on the Gioup's Hnancel statements.

. IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illusiration of payments from the lessor relating 1o leasehokd Impaovements
n lustative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16, This removes polential confusion reparding the
treatment of lease mcentives when applying IFRS 16,

. 145 41 Agricuffurs: removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41 that entiies exsclude cash llows

for taxation when measuring the fan value of assels within the scope of 1AS 41, An entily applies the
amendment prospectively o fair vakie measurements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tes nriced 31 Decembar 20321

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted o using the acquisition method. The comsideration transferred in
business combination s measured a1 far value, which is calcubsled as e sum of the acquisiion date Eair
values of the assets ransferred by the Group, lisbilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
goquires and  the equily interests issued by the Group in exchange lor confrol of the acquires,
Acruigition - relaod cosls are recognised in prolit on loss as incurned,

The Group determines thal it bas acquired a busingss when the acquired set of achvitics and assels includes
an inpul and ‘a substantive process that together significantly confribade to the ability to create outpats,

Al the scquesition date, the kbenlifisble assels acquined and the Babdities assumed are recogeised at their Bir
value, except that:

*  deferred tax assels of l@bilities, and assels or liabilities related fo employee benefil arangements are
recogmised and measumed inaccordance with 1AS 12 facorme Tages and IAS 19 Emplopee Benedits,
respeclively;

. lEabalities oo equily instiuments sclaled 1o share-bated payment armngements of the aoquirés of
share-based payment amampements of the Group entered into to replace  share-based  payment
arrangemants of the acquiree aie measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounling policy below); and

. assols (or disposal groups) thal are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 AMon-cuvrent
Aszets Held for Sale and Discorfimeed Operations are measured In accordance with that standard,

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration fransfermed, the amount of any
non-contolling interests in the acquires, and the fair alue of the acquigers previously held equity inferest in
the acquires (i any) over the net amount of The identifiable assels acquined and The liabilities assomed a5 al
acquisition date I, aller re-assessment, the net amount of the idenhilable assets acquired and liakslities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of amy non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair walue of the acquirer’s previowsly held inlerest in the acquires ( any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain

Non-contrelling nterests that are present owneishep interests and entile their hodders 1o a propotionate share
ol the relevant subsidiany's net assets in the event of liquidation are imtially measured either at tair value or
al the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s dentiliable
net assets. The choice of messurenent basis s made on & lansaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition ol a business is camied al cost as established al the date of acquisition ol
the business (see the accounting policy above) less any accumilated impaimeent lases, i any.

For the purposes of ingsairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating unils
("CGUS") (or group of CGLISY Whal i expecied to beneddl from e synargies ol the combination, which

represent the lowest level al which the goodwill §s monitored lor internal management purposes and  nod
larger than an operating segmaent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinuad)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

A CGL (or group of CGLEs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impainmend annually, of more
fiequenlly when there s indicalion thal e uni ey be impaiied. Foi goodwill ansing on an acquisition (i a
repoeting period, the CGL (o group of CGLS) o which goodwill has been allocated s tested for impairment
before e end of thatl reporting pedod. | the recovemble amount @5 less than its canying amount, the
impairment loss 15 allocaled fist 1o reduce the canying amaont of any goodwill and then 1o the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carving amount of each asset in e unit (or group of CGLIS),

O disposal of the relevant CGL, the atiributable amount of goodwill is Incheded in the determination of the
amounl of profit or loss on disposal.

Fair valie measurement

Fair walue is the price that would be received fo seil-an assel or paid to bansfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants al the. measurement date, The fadr wlue measurement & based on
the presumpdion that the fransaction to sell the assel or transfer the liabdity takes plBce eithor i the
principal markel for the asset of l@bility, o in e absence of @ princpal nackel, in e most advantageoes
market for the asset or lability. The principal o the most advantageous market mast be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of Bn assel or @ labilily B messured using the assumpbions that markel parbcipants
would e when picing e assel of [mabilly, assuming thal maikel participants acl in theii econoine best
interast.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assef takes into account & markel paticipant’s ability 1o generale
ecoonomic benelits by using the assel in s highest and best use or by sellmg it o another markel paticepant
that would use the asset in s highest and besl use,

The Group uses valuation technigues thal are appeoprisle in the arcumstances and for which sullicient data
are available to measure fain value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpuls and ménimising the use
ol unobsarvabla inputs.

Al assets and Rabilities for which (s value B messued of disclosed in e linancial statements are
categormed withan the fair walue hierarchy, described as lollows, based on the lowest level inpol that e
skpnificant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quated prices (enadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or kabilities;

Level 2 —  based on valuation technicues for which the: lowest level input that s significant o the fai
value moasuremenl is obsesvable, either directly or indirectly; and

Lewvel 3 — based on valuation lechniques lor which the lowest level inpul that k& signilicant o the fak

value measurement is unobservable,
For assels and Imbdities thal ané recognised o the financial stalemends on a recurring basis, the Group
defermines whether transfers have occumed between lesels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation

(based on the lowest bevel mput thal is significant o the fair walue measurement as a whole} al the end of
each reporting pericd,

i WHEGRIUP LMATED

177/303



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

s Wriced 3] Decatnbar 20T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Related parties

A party i considered to be related to the Group if;

{a} the parly & a person of 8 close member of that person's family and that person
{i¥  has controd o1 joint control over e Group:

{ily  has significant inlluence over the Grougs; o

{im) s a member of the key managemant personnel of the Group of of a parent of the Group;

(b} the party & an entity where any of the following conditions apphes:
{iy  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

{ii})  one enlity 35 an associate of joent ventore of the other entity {or of a parenl, sulbsidiary o lellow
subsidiary of the other enlity),

{ii}  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
(i) one enlily = A pand ventore of a thind entity and the othes entily is an sssociste of the thind entsty.

(v} the enlity is a post-employment benclil plan for the benefit of emplyees of either the Gioup of
an entity related to the Group;

il)  the entity i contiolled o jeintly controlled by a person identilied n (a);

{vil] 8 person identilled In (aXi} has signilican inluence over the entily of s a member of the key
ranagement personnel of the enlity (of of & parent of the entity); and

{villy the entity, o any member of a gioup of which it 5 a part, provides key management personnel
sanvices to the Group o to the parand of the Group.

Investments in associates and joint venlures

An mssociate is an enlily over which the Group has signilicant influence. Signilicant influence is the power o
participate in the financial and operating policy decssions of the investes bt 15 not control or joint control
ol those poficies

A joant venture 5 a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have point control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the jpin amangemeant. Joint control s the contractually agreed sharing of control of

ai aranpement, which exists only whien decisions: aboul the réevant activitles require the unanimous consent
of the parties shaning control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in asseciates and joint ventures (continued)

The rtesults and assets and Eabilities ol associates and jonl ventures are incorporaled m the consolbdated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Adjustments are made 1o bring inlo line any
dissimilar acoounting policies thal may exist The financial statements of assoclales or joint venhures used fog
equily methed aocounting purposes are prepated using unifoem accounding policies as those of the Group lo
like transactions and everds in similar circumstances. Linder the equity method, an investment in an
mssociale o a joinl venlure s anitially recognised In the consobdated statemnent of financial posilion al cosl
and adjusted therealler 1o recognise the Group's share of the proll or lss and othe comprebensive income
ol the associale o joinl veniure. When the Group's share ol losses of an associale o joint venture exceads
the Group's inferest in that associste or joint venfure {which inchudes amy long-ferm inferests thal, in
substance, form part of the Group's nel nvestment in the associate o joint venture), the Group discontinges
recognising its share of lurther bsses. Additional losses are recognised only 1o the edent thal the Group has
incuried legal o constructive obligations of made payments on behall of that associate or joind wenture.

An investment in an assoctate of a jeint venture s accounted for wsing the equity method from the date on
which the investes becomes an associate of a joinl venlure. On acquisition of the investmenl n an associale
of & joinl venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the nel fair valee of the
identiliable assefs and liabilities of the investes is recognised as goodwill, which s incleded within the
carmying amount of the mvestment,

Any meess of the Groups share ol tha nel fair valee of the identilable assels and liabilities and conlingent
liabxilies over the cost of acquisition, afler reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit o loss in the
period in which the mvestment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there 15 an objedive ovidence that the interest in an associale o a joinl ventume
may b imgadred. When any  objective evidence ewsts, the enlire caending amount of the investment
{including goodwill) i tested for impairment in accordance wilth 1AS 36 Impairment of Assels as a single
assel by comparing ite recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair walue less costs of disposal) wilh
its camying amount. Any impairment bss recognised forms pat of the carying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of thal impainment loss is recognised in accodance with 1AS 36 lo the adent thal the
recoverabde amount of the investment subsequently incréases.

When the Group ceases to have significant mlluence over an assoctate or pint controd over 8 joint venlure, i
ks accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest In the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised i profit of loss. Il an investment In an assocale becomes an investment in & joinl venlure o viee
versa, the retained inferest s nod remeasuted, In other cases, the Group measuies and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. The difference between the canying amount of the associate or joint
varure and the fair value of any relained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant miterest in
ther associabe or joint ventune s included in the determination of the gain or loss on dsposal of the associale
of pant venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in - ofher
compretensive income in relation o thal associale o joint venture on the same basis as woukd be required
i hat associate of jonl venlure had diectly diposed of the relatled assels o lmbilities. Therefore, il a gain
of loss previowsly recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate o joint venture would be
reclassified to proll or loss on the disposal of the relBted asscels of l@bilities, the Group reclassilies the gain
or loss from equity to prodit o loss (as a reclassiication adjustment) when the equity method s
discontinued,

When a group enlity tran=acts with an associale or joint venbure of the Groap, profits of ksses resulling from
the transactions with the associde of joinl venlure are recognised m the consolidated financial statements
only to the exent of interests in the associate thal are nod related to the Group,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ted indsd 31 Decatibar SO2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment tesling for an asset i equired (other
Whaan necitones. conliact assels, delered Lix assels, linancial assels, investmenl propeities and non-current
assetda disposal group classified as held for sake), the: assel’s recoverable amount = estimaled. An asset's
recowerable amount is the higher of the assel’s o cash-generating unil’s value in use and its tair value less
costs ol disposal, and is detenmined Tor an individual assel, unbess the assel does nol generate cash indbows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is delesmened los the cash-genersling unil o which the assel belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unil lor Imgatiment, a poation ol the carrying amount of a couporate assel (e, a headquariers buliding) is
allocated fo an individaal cash-generating unit f #t can be allocated on & reasonable and consisten! basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generaling units.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracls with cuslomers

Revenue from contracis with customers is recognised when control of goods of serdces is transierred 1o the
customes al an amount thatl rellects the conshdesation 1o which the Group expects to be entiled in
exchange for those poods of services

Contral of the goods o serviees & anslened ovwd Hme | e Group's peilolmance:
. provides all of the benelils received and consumed simultanecusly by the customer;
. creales of enhances an assel that the customer controls as the Group pesforms; of

. doss not create an asset with an allernative use o the Group and the Group has an enforceabla right
to payment for perormance compbeted fo date,

It control of the asset ransfers over lime, revenue is recognised over the period of the conteacl by reference
to the progess towards complate satisfaction of that perfomance obligation. Otherwse, revenue 15 (ecognised
at a point in fime when the costomer oblains confrod of the assel.

The progress towards complele salistachon of the pardormance obligation s measured based on the Group's
clforts o inputs o the satistaction of the pesformance obligation relative to the fotsl expecied efforts o

inpats.

Depending on the terms of the conlract and the kws that apply fo the confract, the control of the goods o
services may be transfened over time orat a point in time,

When the considesation in & contract includes a vasiable amonnt, the amount of considealion & estimated 1o
which the Group will be enfilled in exchange for ransferring the goods of services bo the customer, The
variable consideration s estimated af conbract meeption and constrained ontil it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will nol occur when the
ssociated uncedainty with the svarable considemtion is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition {conlinsed)
Revenue from contracts wilh costomars (confinued)
When he contracl contams a linancing componenl which provides the customer with a significant benedil of
financing the transfer of goods or services fo the customer for mode than one yest, revenue is measured at
the presond value of the amount receivable, discountied using the discount rate that would be refllecled inoa
separale linancing Wansachion between the Group and the costomer al contiact imception, Wihen the conlrct
containg a financing companent which provides the Group with a significant financial benefit lor more than
one yoar, revenue recognised ueeder the oconfract includes the inferest expense acoeted on the contract
fiabily wnder fle effective inlerest method. For a contract where the petiod between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods of services s one year of less, the lansaction gice is not
adpusted for the effects of a sigmilicant linancing component, useng the practical expedient in IFRS 15

Revenue from the sale of meal and relbted prodects s recognised at the point in e when control of the
assdl B transierred o the customes, generally on delivery of the meal and related products.

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at he paint in bme when the purchasers oblained the
physical possession of the legal tile ol the comgdeted property and the Group has the present rght to
paymnent and the collection of the consideration & probable.

Payment is genemlly due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, whete payment in
advance b nomally required. Some contiacts for the sake of meal and related products provide customerns
with & right of retum and rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to constaint.

Service income B recognised over lime when sesvices are rendered becawse the customer simallaneously
receives and consumes the benefdl provided by the Group.

Rewenue from other sources

Interast income is recognised on an accrnual bask usigy e ellective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly descounts the estimaled Tulure cash recepts over the expected life of the lmancial nstiument o
a shorler period, when appropeiate, to the net carrying amount of the Tinancial assat.

Dividend income s recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable thal the economec benelits associated with the diindend will flow 1o the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured rediably,

Contract assels

A contract Assel s the rght to consideration In exchange lor goods or services transfarred to the customes, I
the Group peforms by ransfeming goods of services looa customes before the customer pays considerafion
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that &= conditional,
Conbract assels are subject lo mpairment assessment, details of which are included in the acoounting
pediches for impasrment of fmancial assels

Contract liabilities

A contract labdlity 1 recognised when a payment 15 received or a payment 15 due (whichever is eailser) from
a customer before the Group traosiers the relaled goods of services, Conlract lEabilfies are recognised as
revenue when the Group pesfonnes under the contract (e, transfess control of the related goods or serdces
fi the customer),
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ted indsd 31 Decatibar SO2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventorses, propedies under development, properly, plant amnd
equipment aind ntangible assets, cosls incuired Lo Wllil & conlacl with a costomer e capitalised as an
asset it all of the Tollowing crteria are met:

fa) e costs relle divcclly bo 8 contiacl of bo an anticipsted contract that the entity can speclically sdeinily:

(b} the cosls generale or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satistying (or in continuing o
=atisty) performance obligations in the fulure; and

{c)  the costs are expected to be recovered

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and chaged 0 profit or loss on @ systematc basis that is
consistent with the ransfer to the customer of the posds or services o which the assel relates. Other
contrac] costs are expensed as incurred:

Right-of-return assets

A right-of -returm assel s recognised Tor e right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customens,
The assel s measured at the former canymng amount of the goods o be refurned, less any expected costs to
recover fhe goods and any potential decreases in the value of the relwined poods. The Group updates the
meazurgment of the assel for any revisions o the expected bevel of relurns and any additional deciesses in
the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund Bability i recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration receved {(or
receivable) from a customer and s messured at the amoum the Group ullimately expects it will have 1o
reburn b the customer. The Group updates ils estimates of relund liabilities (and the corresponding change
in the transaction prica) al the end ol each reporting period.

Leases

The Group assesses al contract mceplion whether a8 contracl i, of contains, & kease A conbiac s of
contains, a kease if the confract conveys the right to conlrol the use of an identilied assel for a period of Hime
in exchange lor consideratbon,

Group as a lesses
The Group applies a single recognition and messurement approach for all leases, excepl for. shori-term

leases, The Group recognises bease labilities to make lease payments and right-ol-use assels regresenting the
nght to use the undedying assels
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinued)

Leases (conlinued)

Grovp a5 a lessee (continued)

(8] Right-of-use assels
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that i the date the
underlying assel i avadable for use). Righl-of-wse assels are measured ol cosl, bess any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusied for any remeasurement of lease Rabiliies, The
cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease labilties recognised, initial direct costs
meurred, and bease payments made atl or belore the commencermnent dade less any lease incenlives
received. Righl-of-use assets are depreciated on a straghl-line basis over the shoer of the lease lenns
and the estimated useful lives of the assels as follows:

Leasehold land mare tham 1 year 1o 49 years
Buikdings maore than 1 year o 23 years
Motor vehickes more than 1 year fo 9 years

Plant, machimery and equipment more than 1 year o 13 years
Conteacl famms mare than 1 year o 14 years

Il ownership of the leased asset ransbers to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculbted using the estimaled useful He of the
assel

When the righl-of-use assels relates 1o inlerests in leasehold land held as propertees under
development, They are subsequently measured at Hhe bewver of cost and nel realsable walue 0
accordamce with the Group’s policy foe “Propedies under development™.

() Lease Salwines

Lease liabifities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease &l the present valee of lease
peyments 1o be made over the bease teome The kease payments include lived paymends (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, varable lease payments that depend on
an index or a ale, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual value guarameess. The lease
paments akio inclide the exercise piice of a puichase option reasonably cemtain o be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of 8 lease. # the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the oplion o terminate the kease The vanable bease paymaents that do nol depand on an
Ewdex or A rabe are recognised a5 an expense in the period i which the evenl o condition thal Irigrers
the: payment occurs.

In calculating the presenl value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental burowing ate al the
lease commencement dale because the interest rate imglicit in the lease s not readily determinable,
Alter the commencement date; the amount of lease labdlities & increased o reflect e accretion of
mterest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the canying amaunt of lease Rabilities
B remessured d thene 15 8 modilication, a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (eg.
a change to futme blease payments resulting from a change in an index o rate) of a change in
essessment ol an oplion 1o purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease labilities are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position,

L] WHEGRIUPLMATED -

183/303



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tew nriced 31 Decembar 2031

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Growp as a lesses {continued)

fe}  Short-larT leases
The Group applies the sho-term lease recognition exemplion to #@s shor-term leases of baikdings,
plamd, machmery and equipment, molor sehicles and conliact larmes, {(that s those leases thal have a
legrse lenm of 12 months or kess from the commencement. dade and do nat contain a puchase opbion).
Lease payments on shorl-leem leases are recognised as an expense on a siraight-liee basis over the
learse lenm.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts 85 a lessor, it classifies at lease inceplion {or when there 5 a lease modification) each
of fs leases as either an operating lease or a fmance lease,

Leases in which the Group does mol franster substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownesship of
an assel are clhssilied as operating leases. When a condract contains kease and non-lease components, the
Group ablocates the consideration in the contiact to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income s accounted for on a straight-line basks over the lease lerms and is recognised in
“Ciher Income” in profit o loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negoliating and asanging an operaling bease
are added o the caimyng amounl ol U leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingenl rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned

Leases that transfer substanbally all the riks and rewards incidental fo owneeship of an undeslying assel to
the lessee are accounted for as finance: keases

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, mnchliding buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods o
serices, o o administrative purposes other than properties under construction, as described below, are
stated im the consobidated stalerment of financial position at cost lbess subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accurmulated impaimmen losses, it any.

Freahold land is nod deprecisted.

Depreciation s recognissd so a5 to write off the cost of tems of poperty, plant and equipment ofther than
freshold land and properties under constrochon less their residual valiees over Ihelr estimated useful lves,
using lhe straight-line method. The estimated wselul lives, residual valees and depreciation method are
revizwved at the end of each reporting pedled, with the ellect of any changes in estimate accounted for on the
Tollowing basis:

Buildings 10 1o 40 years
Maolor vehicles 3 to 10 years
Plant, rachinery and equipment. 5 to 20 years

Construetion in progress lor production, supply or adminisirative purposes is camied a1 cosl, less any
recognised  Impairment boss. Costs inclade professional fees and, for qualilying assets, borrowing  cosls
capilalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such assels are classified to the approprale
calegories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for infended ise Depeeciation o
these assets commences when the assels are ready for their imended use
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipneent (Confinuad)
An itern of properly, planl and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fubure economic
benefits are expecled o arse from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or kss arising on the
derecognition of an itemn of property, plant and equipment determined as the difference Betwesn the sabes
proceeds and the canrying amount of the assel & recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properes under development are stated al the lower of cost and net realisabde value and comprse land
costs, construction costs, borrowing cosls, prolessional fees and olher costs directly attributable o such
properties incumed during the development period.

Propesties under development are classified as cumrent assels unless the consbuction period of the relevant
property development project s expected fo complele beyond the normal operaling cycle. On completion, the
properties are ranslened o completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated al the lower of cost and el realisable value. Cosl is
determined by an apportionment of (ol land and construction costs attributable to the unsold properties, Met
realisable value is determined by relerence bo the sales of proceeds of propeies sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable varkable selfing expenses, o by management estimates based on prevailing
market conditions

Borrowing costs

Barrowing cosls directly atiributable to the acquisition, constiuction of production of qualibying assels, which
are assels thal necessarily take a substantial period of lime to get ready Tor thelr inlended vse or sale, ane
added 1o the cost of thoss assels untl such time as the assats are substantially ready Tor their mtended wse
o sale

Al other borsowing costs are recognised in profit o kss in the period in which ey are incurred.

Biological assels

Biological assets represent live hogs and poultry, which fall into fve calegonies: suckling hogs, nussery hogs,
finksher hogs, brolleis and beeeding stock (hogs and poultivl, They are messured on iniiad recopnition and at
the end of each reporting period at ther lair vahoe less costs 1o sell A gain or loss ansing on iniial
recognition of biokigical assel al fair value less costs o sell and tiom a changa in lair value less costs o sell
al a bidogical assel s incleded in profil or loss for the period m which & arises.

The agricullwal produce (ie., carcass) harvested from the biological assels s measured at its lair value less
costs to sell al the point of harvest Such measuremend s the cost at that date when applying 1AS 2
Inveritories upon Initial recognition. A gain of loss arising from-agriculiural produce at the point of harvest at
falr value less costs to sell is incheded in profi o bess for the period nowhich it anises,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a besiness combination

Intangitle assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are nitially
recognised at their fair value al the acquisition date (which i regarded as their cost)

subsequent to indal recognition, nlangible assels acquited ina business combinalion with finfe uselol lives
are epodted of cosl less accumulated amortisabion and any accumubaled impanment losses, on the same
basis o intangible assels thal are acquired segarately. Allematively, nilbagible assels acquited in a business
combimetion with indefinite wuseful bves are camed o cost less accumulated impabment bsses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impainment losses on tangitde and intamgible assels below)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ted indsd 31 Decatibar SO2)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [conlinued)
Intangible assets (conlinued)
Intangible assets acquired separately
Intamgpible assels with finile useful lves thal are aoquired separately are canied ab cost hess accumulated
amadisation and any accumulaled impairment losses, Amortisation for inlangible assets with finite useful fives
is recognised on A shaight-ling basis over their estimated useful kves. The estimated wseful lile and
amodtation method are reviewed al the end of each reporting period, with the affect of any changes in
estimate being accounted lor on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and development expenditure
Expendifure on research activities s recognised as an expense in the period in which it 15 incurred,

A internally-gencrated intangitde assel ansing from development aclivities (of Trom the development phase ol
an infernal project) ks recognised i, and only i, all of the following have been demonsirated:

. e technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be avallabde lor use or sale;
*  ihe intention to complete and s ability and intention to use or sell the assel;
. how the: intangibde: assel will generate probatde uture economic benefits:

s b avalability of adequate technical, linancial and other resources to complele the development and 1o
use of sell the intangible assel; and

= the abdity to messure rekably he expenditure attnbiutable to the inangitée assel dunng its development.

Thie amount iniially recognised for mtemally-generated ntamgible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the inlangible asset first meels the recognition criteria listed above, Where no
internally-penerated mtangible aseel can be recognsed, development expenditure B recognised i piodil or
loss im the pegied in which it is incurmed,

Derecognition of intangihle assets

An intangible assel is derecognised on disposal, or when no fulure economic benelits are expected Trom use
of dispesal. Gains and ksses anising from derecognition of an intangibbe asset, measured as the dilerence
between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amoun! of the assel, are recognised in profil o loss
whan i as5el is derecognised.

lnventonies
Inventories are staled ot the bower of cosl or the deemed cost for agnculture produce harvested from
biological assels and nel realisable value, Cost is calculaled using the weighted-avedge mathod.

Impairment ol langible and intangible assets other than goodwill {see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

Al the end of each repoting period, the Group reviews the carmying amounts of its tangible and infangible
assets wilth linde uselul ives to determine whether there s any indicalion Uhal those assets have sulfered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 1o
determing the etent of the impairment loss, il any, When it is nol possible 1o estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual assel. the Group estimales the recoverable amount of the CGL o which Ihe assel
belongs. When a measonable and consistent basis of allocation can be idenfified, corpoate assels are also
allocated 1o individual CGUs o othemwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basks can be kentified,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
ol goodwill above) (confinued)
Intangible assels with indefnile uselul lives and Intangibde assels nol yel awailable lor use are hested To
impairment at least annually, and whenever there B an indication that they may be impaired,

Recoverabhe amount & the higher of fai vaboe h=ts coals of disposal and value in use. In assassing valug in
use, the estimated future cash flows ate discounted o their present value wsing a pre-tax dscount ate that
reflects current markel assessments of the lime value of monoy and the risks specrlic 1o the assel fo which
the estimates of fulure cash (lews have not been adjssted.

Il the recoverable amount of an asset {or a CGUY 5 cshimasted to be less than its carrying amount, e
camying amaunl of the asset (or a CGUY i reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impatrment
loss, the impairment koss is allocated st o reduce the canying amount of any goodwill (it applicable) and
then to the other assels on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amaount of an assel is nol reduced below the highest of #s lair value less cosls of disposal (if
measurablel, s value in wse (i determinalde) and rero. The amount of (he impairment koss thal would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assels of the wnil. An
mmpddrment loss s ecognesed immedetely in profit of loss.

Where an impairment loss s subsequently reversed, the canrying amount of the asset {or CGU) s increased
to e revised estmate ol d5 recoverable amount, S0 hat the inoedsed carming amount does nol excesd The
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment boes bean recognised for the assel (o
a CGLUY in prior years. A reversal of an impainment koss s recogmised immediately n prodit o loss

Financial ingtruments
Financial assets and financal Babibies are recognised when & group enlity becomes a party o (he
contractual provisions of the insliument.

Tiansachon cosls that are directly afinbutablde to the scquistion of ssue of financil assets and financia
liakyilies (other than fnancial assels o linancial liabilities al ftair value through profit o loss ("FVPL™)) are
added to o deducted Trom the lanr value of the fmancial assels or hnancisl habilities, as appropriale, on
imitial recogmition, Transaction costs direclly atbributable 1o the acquisition of financial assels or Tinancis
liakyilics al FVPL are recoghised immedately m prolil of boss,

Financial assets

Irutial recogrition and measurernant

Financlal assels are classified, al Initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amostised cost, fair valee
throaggh other comprehensive income ("FVOCE™), and FVPL

The classification of financial assets al inilial recognition depends on the fmancial assef’s conlrachual cash
flow chamacteristics and the Group's business model for mamaging them With the exception of lrade
receivables that do not contain @ significant financing component o Tor which the Group has applied (he
praciical expedient of not adjusting e effect of a significant financing component, the Group nitially
measures a hinancial assel al s fab walue, plus o the case ol & lmancial assel nol at fair value through
prodit or loss, transaction costs, Trade receivables thal do not contain a significant financing component o for
which the Group has applicd he practical expedient are maeasuisd al the mnsaction price detemined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tese nriced 31 Decembar 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (conlinued)

Finamcial assets {continued)

il recagnition and measurerent (continued)

In order for a financial assel to be classified and measured at amortised cost o fair value through other
comgrehensive income, il needs o give fse o cash (lows lhal are solély payments ol poncipal and infarest
{“SPPI"Y on the principal amesnt oulstanding. Financial assels wilh cash flows thal are not SPPl are
classified and measured at fair valive through profit o loss, irespective of the busmess model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assels refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order lo generate cash llows. The business model delormines whether cash Tows will resull rom collecling
contraciual cash flows, selling the financal assels, or both. Fmancial gssets classified and measured at
amaised cost are held within a business model with the objective o hold financial assels in order 1o collect
contraciual cash llows, while financial assels classified and measured &l fair value through other
comprehensve mcome.are held within a business model with the objective of both holding o collect
contraciual cash llows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the atorementioned business
inodels are classified and messuied at fair value thiough pealit oF boss

Al regular way purchases and sales ol linanclal assets are recognised on lhe trade date, that is, the date
thail the Groaip comimits b purchase of sell the assel. Regularn way purchases o sales are puiclases of salkes
of financial assets that require delivery of assefs within the penod generadly established by regulation or
convention in the markelplace.

Sulmequent measirement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classilication as follows:

L kT T OST EROST PTSLI TGS

The Group's financisl assels at amortised cost includes trade, bills and other receivatdes, pledgedirestricted
bank deposits and cash and bank balances are subsequently messured wsing the elfedive interest mathod
and are subject to impalrment, Gains and: fosses are recognised an prodit o loss when (e assel is
derecognised, modified o Enpaired.

Einarrcial sgseis gt FVPL
Financial assels at FYPL ave cared i (he statement of financeal position at fair value with net changes in
faln value recogmised i profit or loss.

This - calegory indudes dedvalive and unquoted  equity instruments which the Group had nol inmnevocably
elected o clssily al FVOCH Dividends on equily investments classified as linancial assets al FVPL are also
recognised as other income in profil o loss when the right of payment has been established, it & probable
that the economic benefits associted with the dividend will flow o the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be messured elkably,

fmpsatrrnent of fingneh assets
Thie Growp recogmises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for all debf instruments not hedd at

FYPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractusl cash fows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at-an approximation of the
aniginal effective inlerest ale, The expected cash lows will inclede cash flovws from the sabe of collaterad held
of other credil enhancements that are infegral fo the contractual tenms
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinued)
Financial instruments (conhnued)
Financial assats {contmued)
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has nof been a significant increase
m credi risk since mitisl recognifion, ECLs are proveded for credit losses that resull from defaull evenls that
are possible within the nexd 12 monihs (a 12-meath ECLY. For those credit exposseres for which there has
been a significant increase in eredit risk since initial recognition, a loss allewance & required for credit losses
eapcled over the remaining life of the exposure, inespective of the timmng of the defawlt (a lifetime ECLY).

Al each eporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on & financiad insbhument has increased
significantly since mifial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the nsk of a default
pccuming on the financial instrument as al the repoding date with the risk of ‘a8 defaull ccourring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognilion and considers reasonable and suppontable nformation
that 15 awmbable without undue cost o effedt, mcluding histoncal and Torward-looking infosmation

Financial assets al amortised cost are subject o impasment under the genesal approach and ey are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receiables which apply the
sumiplded approach as detasled bebow,

Sage 1 — Financaal instruments for which credit rsk has nol ncreased signilicantly since  initia
recognibon and Tor which the loss allowance s messuned at an amount equal 1o 12-month
ECLs

Hape 2 — Financial mstrumenis for which credil gisk has moreased signaficantly since. mitial recognition

Bub thal are nol credit-impaded Gnancial assets and for which the kss allowance s
measured at an-amoun! equal bo lifetime EClLs

Sape 3 = Financial assels that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (bal that are not purchased or
otiginated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured al an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Hmplitked_approach

Fou trade recelables that do nol contain & significant financing component of when the Gioup applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the elfect of a significant financing component, the Group applies. the
simiplified approsch in calculaling ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does nod track changes in
credit sk, but instead recognises a bss allowance based on lifelime ECLs at each reporling date. The Group
has.. established a provision malrix thal is based on its historical credil bes experience, adjusted for
torsand-looking taclons specilc o the deblors and the econdmec environment

For trade receivables thal contain a significant linancing comgoenant, the Group chooses as its accounting
podicy to adopt the simplified approach m calculating ECLs with policies as descnbed above,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ted indsd 31 Decatibar SO2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Financial instruments (conlinued)

Finamcial liabilities and equity instruments

Dbt and equily mstiomednts ssoed by a proup entily are classified as either linancial habslities of &8 equtly
in acoordance with the substance of the conlractual amangements and the definitions of a financial liability
gnd an equily instiement:

Equely Instruments

An oequity instrument Boany contract that evidences a residual inferest in (e assets of an onbity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company ade recorded al the proceeds
received, net ol direct issue costs.

Financial kabiities 8t amertised cost
Financial liatdlities, including bofrowings, bank overdiafls, and bade and othes payables, are subsequently
measured al amortised cost, wing the elfective interest method.

Effactive. infenest melod

The effective Interest methed s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a linancial liability and of
allocating interest expense during the year. The offeclive inferest rate i the rate thal exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments. (ncluding all fees and points paid or received that (oo an integral part o
the effective mberest mte, transaction costs and other premivms o discounts) through the expected lite of the
financial kability, o, where approprlate, a shorter period 1o the nel canying amount on initial recognition
Intedest expense i ecognised on an effective inferest basis

Olisetting of linancial instruments

Financial assels and financal liabilities ate offsel and the mel amounl is reported i the consolidated
statement of financel position if theie is a curently enforceable begal nght o offsel the recopnised amaunts
and there is an intention o seftfle on a net basis, or o realise the assels and setlle the labdities
sirmultaneoushy.

Derivative financial instruments

Desrivalives are indially recopnised al fair value al the dale when dervabive conlacts are entered inlo and are
subsequently remeasured to their faar value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in proft or loss immediately unless the derbative is designated and elfective as a hedging
instiument, in which event the timing of the recognilion In profit or loss depends on the nalure of the hedge
relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conlinuad)
Financial instruments (conlinued)
Derivative firancial instruments {confinued)
Hedge aceoiniing
The Group designates certain dernvalives as hedging instruments for tair valee hedges and cash flow hedges,

At the inceplion of a hedging rebalionship, the Group documsents e relationship between the Pedging
mstrument and the hedped item, along with its sk management objectives and its strabesry for undertaking
warious hedge tansactions. Furthermare, at the inceplion of the hedge and on an ongoligg basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrumend is bighly effective in ofisetting changes in fadr values or cash
lows of the hedged item attribudable 1o the hedpe risk

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair wlue of deriatives that ane designated and qualify a5 Bair valee hedges are recognised in
prodil of boss immediately, together with any changes in the fain value of the hedged assel or Habibty that ae
attributable o the hedged risk The change o the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the
hedged item attribolabie 1o the hedged sk are recognised in profit of loss in e line item selaling o e
hedged item.

Hedge sccounting s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedgiog
mestrument expires of 15 sold, terminaled, of exercised, or when it no lbnger qualifies 1or hedge accounting.
The fair value adjustment 1o the camying amount ol the hedged fem ansing from ihe hedged risk s
recognised to profit of loss from that date

Cash flow hedges

Tha effective portion of changes In the fair value of degivatives that are designated and qualify as cash fhow
hedges are recogmsed m olher compiehensie income and accumutied o other resenve. The gain o loss
relating 1o the ineflective portion s recognised Immediately In prolit o less and is included in the “Other
paints and (lossas)” bine item,

Amounts previously recognised in other comprelsensive income and accumulated in equity (other reserve) are
reclassiliad 1o profil of loss in the penods when the hedged item alfecls prolit o less, in Ehe same line of the
consolidated statement of profil of loss and oter comprelensive income as the recognised  hedged flem

Hedge actounting is disconlinued when the Group revekes the hedging reltionship, when the hedging
mstiument cxpires of B sold, terminated, of exercised, or when it no knger qualifies (of hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss recogmised noother comprehensive incoms and accumulatied noequity at that time remains
in-equity and s recognised when the lorecast iransaction is ultimately recegnised In profit or loss. When a
lorecast transaction i no bonger expected o occur, the gain or loss accumulaled in equity is . récognised
mmedulely in prolil o loss
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tade incsd 31 Decatibar S02)

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (conlinued)

Derecognition

The Group derecopnises a financisl assel only when the conliaclual ights 1o the cash lows fiom the aseel
expire, of when il transfers the financial assel and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assel lo ancthes entity, On derecognition of a linancal assat in iBs entirety, the difference belween the assel's
canfying amount and the sum of the consideration received and recevable b recognised in prodit or boss

The Group derecognises financed |akdities when, and only when, the Group's obligations ae. dischaged or
cancelled, of expire. The difference betwesn the canying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the comsideration paid and payable & recognisad in pro of loss

Provisions

Provisions are mecognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constivctive) as a result of & past
event, it s probable that the Group will be required to settbe that oblgation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
comsideration required 16 setthe the present obligation at the end of the reposting penod, taking imo accoum
the risks and uncertainties surrcunding the obligation, When a provision s measured using the cash flows
estimated o settle the present obligation, its camying amound s the present value of those cash liows (where
the effect of the Ume vaboe of money 5 matenial),

When somwe or all of the economic benelits required to settle a provision are expecled 1o be recovered lrom
a thivd party, a receivable i recognised a5 an assel il it s virually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of (e receivable can be measuned reliably,

Share-based payment arrangemants

Awarded shares/shane options granled to employees

For grants of sharesfshare options that are conditional upon satistying. specified vesting conditions, the Eair
valug of services received is delermined by relerence to the fail walue of shares/share oplions granted al the
date of grant-and is expensed on a straight-line basks over the westing peviod, with a coresponding increase
in equity (other reservel For granks of shares/share oplions that vest immediately at the date of gant, the
fair valwe of the awarded shares s recognised immedialely mprofit or boess,

Al the and of the repoting pedod, the Group revises s estimates of the humber of share options that ame
expected lo wiimately vest, The mpact of the revision of the cdginal estimates, | any, ks recognised in prodil
of boss such thal the cumulative expense reflects the revised eslimate, with a comesponding adjustment 1o
olher rEsenve.

When share oplions are exercised, the amount previously recognised in other reserve will be transfernred 1o
shate premwum, When the share options are lorfeiled afler the vesting date o are still ned exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in other reserve will be tansfermed to retained profits,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dividends
Final dividends ase recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
mesting. Proposed linal dividends ane disclosed in the noles 1o the mancial statements,

Interim dividends are simultaneously propesed and declaed, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association gram the diectors the authorly to declare inledm dividends, Consequently, inlenm
dividends are recognised immediately as a Rability when they are proposed and declared

Taxation
Income Bx expense repesents the swm ol the tax carrently payable and deferred &

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “prolit before tax”
as reported in prodil of koss because of income of expense that s xable of deductible in other years and
Hems that are never lazable or deductibbe. The Group's lability 1or current tax i calculated using tax rates
thal have been anacled o substantively enacled by the end of the reporling pariod.

Dederred tax is recognised on tempoary differences between the canying amounts of assels and liabilities in
the consolidated linancial slatements and the coresponding tax base used in the compolation of laxable
prodit. Deferred tax liabdities are geneally recogmised for all teable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are gencrally recognised for all deduchible temporary diflorences that can be ulilised. Such delerred tax
assels and Hablltes are not recognised il the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {ofher
than in a bisiness combination) of other assels and BEabdlities in & transaction that affects neither the taxable
pralit nor the accounting profit

Defered tax habilities are recopnised (o taxable lempoary differences associated with investiments in
subskdiarees, associabes and poant ventures, excepd where The Group i abde o control the reversal of the
temporary  differance and if is probable thal the temposasy difference will not reverse in the foesesalle
future. Defened ax sssels arsing Trom deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and mterests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sullicient taxable prolits
apainsl which 1o willise the benefs of the lemporary dilerences and they are expected lo reverse in the
foreseaable Tulure

The camyang amount of delerred b assels 5 reviewed @1 the end of each repobing penod and reduced to
the extent thal it is no lnger probable that sufficient taxable prolits wall ba available 1o allow all or pat of the
assel o be recovered. Unrecognised delemed lay assels are re-assessed al cach reporting date and are
recognised to the extent thal it has become probable that fulure lasable profits will allow (he defened b
aseel o be recoversd,

Dederred tax assets and labiliies are measured at the lax rates thal are expected 1o apply in the period in

which the lability is setiled o the assel is realised, based on tax iales {and tax Bws) thal havwe been
enacted o substantivedy enacted by the end o the teporting period,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tew nriced 31 Decembar 2031

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (conlinued)

The measurement of defened tax liabilities and assels reflects the lax consequences that would follow from
the: manner in which the Group ecpects, at e eénd of the epoiting perod, 1 recover of selthe the carmying
amount of fs assets and liabilities.

Current or defeired e is recopmised in profit o loss, excepd when il relates b0 ilems thal are recognised in
other comprehensive income of directly in equity, in which case the curent and deferred tax s also
recognised in other compretwsnsive income of direclly in equity respectinely,

Foreign currencies

In prepaning the financal sklements of each indivdual group enfity, transscions in currencics. otfer than the
functional currency of that entity {foreign cumencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
datés of the ansactons. Al the end of the reporting pericd, monelagy fdems denomingled i foraign
currences are relransiated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-monetary ilems that are measured in
lermes of historical cosi in a foreign cunrency are nol refranslated.

Exchange dillerences arsing on the settlement of monetary flems, and on the retranslation of monetary items
are recognised in prodit or loss in the persed inowhich they anse.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the loeign cumencies denominated
assets and labilities of the Gioup are iranskated into the presemtation cwrency of the Group (US$) using
exchange rales peevailing at the end of each reporting peried, Income and expense dems are lanslated al
the wcchasge @ies that approomale (o those prevadling at the dates of the bransactions. Exchange differences
arising, Il sy, are recognised in olher comprehensive income and accumulaled in equity in the ranslation
reserve (attributed to non-conlrolling interest as appropriste).

In detesmining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related assel, expense or income on the
derecognition of & noen-monckry assel of non-motetary labaliy relating 1o an advance consideration, e dite
of mitial ansachon s the date on which the Group initeally recognises the non-monglary assel o
non-monetary lability arising from the advance consideration. [ there are mulliple payments o receipls in
advance, the Group determings the lansaction dale o each payment o receipl ‘of the advance
civsideration.

On the disposal of & foeeign operation, all of the exchange differences scoumulkated in equily in respect of
that operation attribulable 1o the owners of the Company ane reclassified 1o profit o loss
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there i reasonable assumance that the Group will comply with the
condiions attaching o them and that the granls will be received,

Govemment grants are recognised in profit or loss on 8 systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recopnises a8 epenses the related costs fog which the grants are mviended lo compensate  Specilically,
povernment grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct o othemwise acouire
naak-curren] assels are tecognised as delerred revenue m e consolidaled stalement of financial position and
transfemed to profit or loss on a systemalic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants thal are recéiable as compensalion ol cxpenses or losses already incumed of Tor Hhe
purpose of ghing immediate financial support fo the Group with no future related costs ae recognised in
profit or boss in thie pericd -in which they becomea eceiable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Fou the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprse cash on
hand and demand deposits, and shorl team highly liquid investments. that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, am subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valee, and have a short maturity of
penerally within three: months when acquired, less bank overdralis which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management

For the purpose of the consolidaled statement of financial position, cash and cash équivalents comguise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposils and assels similar in nadure to cash, which are not restricted
as o use

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Fion defined benefit retirement benedit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuanal valuations being carred out at the end ol the reporing. perod,

Defined benefil costs are categoised as lolkows:

. service cosl (including curmrent service cosl, past service cosl, as well as gains and bsses on curlailments
and sellements);

. el interest expense of income; and

. remeasurement,

The Group presents the list two components of delined benefil costs in profil of bss as employea benafit
expeiivse. Curlailment gains and  losses are accounted for as pasl semvice cosls. Pasl semvice cosl is

recognised in prolil of kss in the period of a plan amendment. Net inlerest s calculated by apphang e
discouni rate at the beginning of the peried lo the nel defined benefil liability or asscf.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tew nriced 31 Decembar 2031

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits (conlimued)

Remeasurement, compising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the assel ceiling (il
applecable) and the ieluin on plan assets (excluding inferest), B rellected mmmediately in e consolidated
statemment of financial positien with a charge of credd recognised in other comprehensive income in the
petiod in owhich they ocour. Remeasurcment recognised in other  comprehensive. income  i5  redfeched
immediately in retained profits and will not be reclassilied to profit or loss.

The retirement borelt obdigation recognised in the consolidated stalement of linancial position represents the
defict or suplus in the Group's defined benefit plans; Any surplus resulling from this calculation is limited to
the presenl value of amy economic benglils available in the form of refunds and  reductions in Tulure
contributions to the plans,

The employesas of the Group in China and Hong Kong are members of siale-managed elivement benedil
schemes and members of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPE™) respectively, the obligations of the
Groasp under which arg equivalent 1o those arising in a defined contribution relirement banefit plan.
Conlilbations 1o state-managed retirement Denelit schemes and MPF -are recognised a8 an expense when
employees have rendered serdces entitling them o the contributions,

Payments o delined contribution refirement benefil plans ane recognised a8 an expense when employees
have rendered services enliting them: to the contribamions,

A hability for a lermination benefit is recognised al the earlier of when the group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the lormanateon benelit and when it recognises any relsfed restructunng costs.

Put option over non-conlrolling interests

A opul option held by NG whereby the holder of the put option can require the Groug fo acquise the NCI's
shareholding i the subsidisaey at a fulure date, the Group examines the nature of such a pul option. The
Group assesses whether or nod the NCI continees o Tuve a present ownership interest in the shares subject
fo the put option. Present ownership interest can be evidenced by NG coninumg to lave a nghl o the
receipt of dividends, or benefiting from increases i nel assels while holding a voling entitlernent to the
shares Subject to e pul oplion. I ot B deemed that the pul option holders conlinue Lo have a present
ownership interest, the Group applies the partial recognition of NG method of recognise the amount that
would have boen recognised for the non-conlrolling nferest, including its share of prolil o losses, diidends
and other changes, as a Fability. The Group recognises a flinancial lability In accordance with 1AS 32 being
e estimate of the fak walue of the consideration o acquine (e MGl shares that ate subject to the pul opdion
amd records this i “other reserve” inoequity. Any changes o the fai value of the linancisl hability ane
reflecled a5 a movement in other resenve

1 the NGL put option s exercised, the same treatment is applied up to the date of exercise, The amount
recognised as the financial liability at thal dafe is extinguished by the paymenl of the exercise price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group's financeil statements requires mamnagement o make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the repoded amoumls of revenues, expenses, assels and  liabilities, and  thelr
accompanyng discosures, and the disclesure of contingent labalities. Uncertainly about these assamplions
and estimates could result in citcornes that could requite 8 material adjustment to the camying amounts: of
the assels or liakilities alfecied in the Tuture

Estimation uncertainty

The key sssumplions conoeining the future and ofher key sources of estimation uncetlainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significand risk of causing a material adjusiment o the camying amounts of
assels and labilties within the next tinancial year, are described below.

Fair wvalee measorement of live hogs included in biological assels

The Group engaged an independent qualfied valuer o pedomm the e hog valuations at the end of each
reporting period, the faw values less costs to sell are determined based on the price of hogs in the aclively
traded markel, reduced by the breeding costs requived o raise the hogs fo be slaughlered and the mangins
that would be required by a mise and less costs o sell, with reference 1o the Blest budgels approved by
management, This delesminalion involved the use of significant dgements and estimates. Il the actus
resulls defer to the ofiginal estimales made by management, such diferences from the onginal cslimales will
inpact the fal valie chapge recopnised o profit o koss. The camang amount of e hogs was S$1,243
million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: USHL0EE million) {see node 170

Invenlories

Inventories are staled al the lower of cost or the deemed cost bor agriculiure produce  harvesbed  from
bilogical assets and nel realisable value. MNet realisable value 15 the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of production and selling expenses,

The management of the Group periodically reviews inventories for slow-moving inventories, obsolescence or
dechings in markel value This review requires them o estimate tha nel realisable wlue based upon
assumplions about fulure demand and markel conditions, 1If the estinsate of net realisable value s below the
cost of ventories or the carrying. amount, the Group will record a wiile-down of invenlones lor the difference
betweon cost or canying amount and nel realisable valee, which will resull in a conesponding increase in
cost ol sales. The camying amount of inventories was USF2625 million 85 a1 31 December 2021 (2020
U532 641 million} (see note 22).

100 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDBEMEMNTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (conlinued)

Valuation of the obligation in respect of defined benefit plans

In determining the obligation m respedd of defined benclil plans, the Group has engaged an actuareal exper
1o petiorm the actuarial waluation of plan assels and the present value of the defined benedit obligations, and
the key assumplions used incleding descount rate, cxpecled salmy  incieases and modlalty iales. The
discount rale assumplions are delermined by reference b yields on high-quakly  conporate  bonds  amd
government bonds yvields of apgropiiate duration and currency at the end of the reporling pericd. The
expiecled relurns on plan assels are determined on the histonical returns and assel allocations by considaring
the futiure markel and economes conditrons, The expechid rate ol 5.ala|3,r ncrease B orelerenced by the ‘-ahd]l
scale projected by management and the mortality rales are eferenced by demographic market data.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, remeasurément gains after tax amounting fo LS$4 million
ocounred (20020 remessurement lesses US$50- million) were recognised directlly in equity in the period in
which they, The Group's obligation in respect ol net pension hability & at 31 December 2021 amounted 1o
US3A906 million (2020: LISE57S million] {see note 33}

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

An anabyss of revenue 1586 Tollows

2021

WSS mlison US43 million

Packaged meats 13,808 12167
Pork 11,568 12,296
hess 1,216 1,126

27,283 25,589

Oheer 9% (2020 over 99%) of the Group's revenss was recognised at a point in Limae.
Sel out below is the amount of revenue recognised from

2021 2020

US§ millkon LIS$ million

Amaints incheded mocontract labdides al he ij:urmlrl;::
of the year 520 305

The memaining performance  obdigations (unsatisficd or pasally unsatesfied) as al 31 Decembaer 2021 and
31 December 20020 regarding the sale of meatl and relsted products, sale ol properties and service oome
are expacted to be recognised as revenue within one year

wrsrour Lvires [N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)
Segment information
The Group determines its opemting segments based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors of the
Company, who are akso the chiel operating decssion-makiers, thal are used o make strategic decisions, The
Group's reportable sepments, which are alkko the operating segments, are classified based on their locations
mcluding China, U5, and Mexico, and Europe and the nature of operations as (i) packaged meals, (i} pork,
and {i=) olhers,

The deladls of the Group's basiness aclivities ate a5 lolows:

(i} Packaged moals — represents produchon, wholesale and retail sales of kw temperature and
high tlempeialune meal products

(i) Pork — represens slaughtering, wholesale and refall sales of fresh and frozen pork
and hog fanmang.

(i)} CHhers — represents siasghtening and sales of poultry, sales of ancillary products and

serices such as provision of logistics senices, manufactunng of (Evouring
ingredients and natural casings, manufacture and saks o packaging
maderials, operaling finance companies, property development companies,
a cham of relail tood stores, sales of beologecal pharmaceubicsl materls,
Ireding of meal related products, and conporate axpendes incurred by e
Group,

Each reportable segmenl derives its revenue from the sales of praducts and provision of services based on
the lecation of operations. They are managed separately because each segmend requires dilferent produection
and markeling strategies,

segment results represent the prolil eamed by each segment before biobogical tair value adjestrments without
aliocation of other ncome not attributed to the respective segments, other gains and losses, other expanses,
finance costs and share of profits of associales and joinl ventures. This 5 the measure reporfed to e chial
operating decision-makers for the pirposes of rescurce allocation and assessment of segment pedomance

Inter-segmend revenue was charged al cost plus margin basis,

10 WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continued)
The follwing is an analysis of the Group's revenue and resulis by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Packaged
[ Fork Others Total

US55 million US§ million U5 million USE million
Clitna
Gross segment revenue 4216 6123 1,360 11.699
Liess: Intersement revenue = {787} (304E) {1,183)
Revenue 4.2'!_13 5,336 __EB# 'E_l2|151_ﬂ
Reportable segment profit (loss) a0z (33 a1 930
U5 amd Mexico
Gross segment revenie 8515 9,788 a7 18,391
Less: Inter-segment revenue (3) (4, 204) -_ (4,207
Revenye B EE E_E&_E _ﬂ' M.!M
R-::p-c’:-ll.i'!.-h: segment prodil (less) BaS [ (30 aa
Europe
Gross segment revenua 1.124 1,484 5587 3,170
le:. Intzr SERMENT Fevenu e {44] _f44'|:| EEEJ (57?1
Revenue 1.080 1.048 463 2,593
Regoitable sepment profit (boss) 108 (8) 17 117
Total
Gress segment evenus 13.855 1740 2.004 32,260
Leggs Inber-Segmen] revsnie {47 {5,430 [-‘IB-EJ {5,967}
He'.!:nu.:: 13.808 11,968 l.ﬁ_'lﬁ 2?.29_3_
Reportable segment profit 1.885 E) 62 1.966
Mel unallocated expensas {203)
Biclogpcal fair value adjustments 42
Frnance costs {139)
Share of profits of associales -]
share ol prolits al joind venbures 25
Prafil betone Tax 1.700

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMEMNT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continuacd)

For the vear ended 21 December AL
Podk (thers Total
LER million LS8 il lior LSS million
China
Gross segmenl revenue 4,037 1,075 1,024 12,136
Less: Imter-segment revenue {1,002 (304D {1.208)
Rovenue 4,037 6,073 718 10,828
Reportable segment prolil 236 271 3 1,140
us.
Gross segment revenise 7160 B.581 w 15,778
Less: Inter-segment revenus {3} {3415 {3415
Hevenie S 15? S 169 37 12363
Heportable segment pralil {(loss) afl {33y (123} 415
Europe
Gross segment pevenoe 1,019 1.534 452 3,005
Less; Inler-segment revenue (ki) (4800 (Bl (E0F)
Hevenue 9ra 1,053 Lrd | 23498
Reportable segment profit {loss) 92 103 (21} 174
Taotal
Gross segment revenise 12216 17,190 1,513 30,919
Less; Inter-segment revenue [ {4 850} (3B7) {5, 230
Revenie 12,167 12,2506 1.12% 25 550
Reportabde segment pralit (loss) 1,499 341 (111% 1.729
Met unallocated expenses {10
Biological fair vatue adjustrments (185}
Finance cosis (135
Share of profits of associates 4
Share of profigs of joint wentures 10
Prodit belore tax 1,315

1M WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Mo sepment assets and Habilibes are disclosed as they are nol regularly provided fo the chief opemating

decision makens

Geographical information

Intoamalion aboul e Group's revenee présenbed above s based on e geographical locations of operation

Information aboul the Group's non-curment assels, exchuding lnancial instraments and delerred tax assels, is

presented below based on the geographical locations of operation

USE million

2021 A0

LISE million

MNon-current assels

China 3,237 2 5l
s 7,024 6,102
Eurogs 1,225 1,505

11,486 10,551

OTHER INCOME

2021

US$ million

Gevsirnrment sibswdy (5]
Bank interest income 30
Ineomse: an sales of raw malemals 15
Othets 24

133

LSS million

20
17
110
21

202/303
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

2021 A

USE'milling LS $million

Gain on non-qualified relirmment plan assats 18 17
Fair value EAIN N Tmancial assels at e value

through profit or loss 24 9
Loss on despaosal of propeiy. planl and equigment £4h {7}
Impasrment loss recognised in respect of property, plant amd

equipment (4} (25}
Impasiment loss recognised in respect of intangible assels — L]
Impairment loss recoanised in respect of right-ol-use assets (1) {#
Met exchange gains 1 B
{3300 odf NSEFaRceE Fecovery 24 &
Gain upon modilication of delined benef plans 08
Others {32y (i)

131 (47)

8. FINANCE CO3TS

2021 A1

UES' million LIS [y

Iteiast of Sennd dnsedcied noles a1y (TR
Imerest on bank and other loans (350 (37)
Imeest on lease labdities {18y {20
Amortisation of ransaction costs {5h {5}
Lesss: Aumounts capialised in the cost of qualifying assets 1 3

{138) [135)

106 WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Proilt belore tax has been amived ol after charging (crediting)

2021

USS million LISE million

Auditor's remuneration

Audit services 4 4

MNon-aisdfl seraces 1 1
Degreciation of property, plant and equipment 538 A
Deprecation ol fght-of-use dvsels 130 139
Amaortisation of intangible assets incleded in administrative

CAPENSES B 8
Amortisation of othel non-cuient assats 2 2
Inwentories provisions, net, ncheded in cost of sales &1 115
(Reversal of impairment losses) impaimment losses on trade

receiables, ned, included in admanistalve eapenses {100 13
Lease paymanis nol included in the measurement of lease

liabilibies 112 114
Research and development expenses 178 148
Stall cosls {excluding direchors’ remuneration) 3,843 34953
Legal confingencies 53 az

The cost of sabes represemded the cost ol invenlories and senvices provided recognised in prolit or bss during
bath years.

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors” and  chiel execifive’s  remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Rubes
Governing the Lisling of Securdies on the Hong Kong Slock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Fong Companbes Crdinance, s as follows:

Baic
silaies md e Share-based
Feed S pEmET
UEE'millisn L 3 i UsSmillion

= 1 3 s = —t i
v Fici; Capm
‘N — 1 = - ] - 1
AT = 1 =" — — — ]
& = ] 4 - ] = 18
¥ b W & 1 ot ¥ ¥ | [ " X
Wl i TN e i = 1] = 1
B3 NON-EXECUTIVE (MRECTOR
W ol = 2 = = = - =
) INDEFENDENT NOM-EXECUTIVE
DRECTORS
M. Hesg Mg -t = = wx = - ¥
Wy Les way Kong W — — - - - - —
B T - - - - - —_ -
-t - - - = - -t
v : -5 Ve L Wil 3w § payabie b Ber sraies i e e ended 31 Detembe
s direcians of B
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

A} EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

W Wan Hone
LE I.II. . 1 + 1
A W W ¥ f
B) MON-EXECUTIVE DRECTOR
! L b -] i wr abova o hor of e 1
C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DRECTORS
K L Kong ‘Wl . —
veciilve: diectors' emoluments: shown abowe wese pend gnd payadis for e sevioes T e yea ended 31

el o |he

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (conlinued)
The fve highest pald individuals for the year ended 31 December 2021 inclided two directors of the
Company (20020: four), details of whose emoluments are sel oul above, The emolumeants of the remaining
three (020 one) non-direclon highest paid individuals. daring the yesr were as lollows:

2021 20

UES'million LIS S il leaon

Employees

Basic salaries and allowances 3 1
Performance bonus 10 3
Shawe-based payments 12
Heliremen! Benedd scheme cosmbnbatsos 1

14 A

The emoluments of an employee who was appointed as a director during the year ended 31 December 2021
and the remaining non-director hghest paid Individuals were williin the Tolkewing Bands:

Rumber of employsss

2021

HE$24, 000, 0061 1o HEE24, 500, 000 1
HE$31, 500,001 to HES32, 000, (00 e
HE D SO0 00T o FIREA0, 000, (00 1
HEFR, 000,000t HESA, 500, (00 1
HE$A5, 500,001 1o HE$AE, 000, 000 1

Durig the year, no emolbments wore pald by the ﬁlﬂuu 1o any of e directors or the The Dighest pﬂil;,!
mdividuals {including dieclors and employees) as an inducement to join of upon jolning. the Group of as
compensation for loss of office (2020 Nil)

Ihere are nd Toreted contribulon thal meay be oased ll,r thee Group &5 The empdoyer o reduece the exsibng
feved of contribufions.

11. TAXATION
202 AN
U5S'miflion LSS mallson
China moome bax {192} (255
LS, income tax [45) (34)
Eurogee income lases {24} {25)
Cther income taxes {—* {3
Wilhholding tax 32y {35}
Dhetedied Eaabion {109} 103
{402) (223)

110 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tedr inced 31 Decatibar SO0

11. TAXATION (continued)
Under the China v on Enterprise income Tax (the “EIT Law™) and the Implementation Regulateon of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the China subsidiaries is 25% except for the follewing:

{iy  According to the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and the EIT exemptions reguiation set oul
in the Circular of the Minishy of Finance and the Siate Administration on Releasing the Primary
Piocessing Ranges of Agrcultusal Pioducts Entithes 1o Preferential Policies onn Enterprise Income Tax
{Tual Implementation) (Cal Shui [2008] Moo 149) and the requirements of Article 86 of the
Implermentation Regulation of the EIT Law, the income from vanous China subsidiaces of the Company
engaging n primary processing for agriculhural products & exempled from EIT,

it Pursuant to the retated reguiations in respect of the Implementation Reguistion of the EIT Law, the income
from: vasious China subsidiaries of the Company engaging in projects of animal-husbandry and poutiry
Tesicking was enlitied o exemplion from EIT during bodh yesns.

{in}  Pursuant Lo the relaled régulations in respect of the Noboe of Cedain Tax Pobcies for Implementation of
Expdoration and Development of Western Region (Cai Shui [2012] No. 587 jeantly issued by the Minstry
of Fimance, the General Admanistration of Custonss and the State Adminstration of Taxation, warieus
China subsidiaries of the Company were entitled 1o a preferential income tax ate of 15% during both

YEAPS.

(v} According lo the Implementation Reguiation o the EIT Law and the Clroular of State Admindstration of
Taxation on lssues Conceming Implementation of Preferential lncome Tax Enjoyed by
High-amd-new-tech Enterprises (Gueo Shui Han [2009] Neoo 203), high-and-new-tech enterprises are
levied entesprise income tax al 15%. Vamous China subsidiarles of the Company are classified as
high-and-new-lech enterprices and were entitled o enjoy & preferential income tax rale of 15% dwing
both years.

According to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Atticks 91 of s Implementation Rules, dividends
distribubed to foreign mvestors out of the profits generated by China subsidianies are subject 1o EIT at 10% or
a reduced fay rate 0 a tax treaty or amangement applies. Under the relevant tax amangement, the
withholding lax rale on dividend distribulion to the quakiing Hong Kong resident companies is 5% Deleried
tax liabilities on the undistribbuted profits eamed by the Ching subsidiares have been accrued at the tax rate
of 5% for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

The U5 federal corpoate tax rabe s 21% for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020

For the year ended 21 December 2021, the Group's bsinesses in Europs were sulbbject to the lecal
corporale income laxes al @les ranging from 9% to 21% (2020: 16% to 19%).

Other owersess laxation is calculated at the rales prevalling in the respective jurisdictions,

oot wierour uires [N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

11. TAXATION (confinued)
T taxaeon charge for both years (s reconciled o the profit before tax as follows:

2021

WSS mil L

Frodil before Lax 1,700 1.315
Tax at the applicable rates (Mote) (4041 (23.8) (311 {(Z3.7)
Tax effect of share of profils of associates

and joink ventures 7 0.4 3 i
Taw effect of income that is nol taxabie in

determimng curienl yesar Lamablde prali 4 0.2 8 i

Tax elffect of expenses thal are nol
deductible in determining curtent year

tasable prold (32} 1.9 (26) {200
Tax effect of tax lesses nol recogmised {289 1.7} () [LR ]
Uilisation of Lax losses presiously nod

recognised 1 o -

Ellect of tax exemplions and prefarentsal
tax rates pranted fo Chimg subsicianes a9 1.3 Bl 4.

Effect of tax exemplions and preferential
tax rates granfed to LS. and Eurogse

subsidarses 13 0.8 o] 1.9
Withholding tax on undistributed eamings

ol subsidinies (&2h (1.8) (320 {2.4)
Recognition of deferred tax arising from

tax losses presaously nob recognised 4 0.2 3 02
Chverproviston in prion years 1 1.2 5 145
Tax eflect of lax lossos recogmised on

intra-group fransactions 23 14 * 18

Tax charge and effective tax rate
T the year (4023 (23.8) (223} (1F.00

& thal il ks mond - mesananghul 1o

Details of recognised and unprovided deferred taxation are set out in note 31

- Losa than LISE] millon

117 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. DIVIDENDS

2021 N I

US S million LISE million

Davidend recognised as distribution during the year:
A0 hinal divedend of HK12.5 cents per share

(200%: HE26,5 cents) 237 5

A2 imdenm ddend of HES cents par share
(2020 HES cenls) 85 G5
322 59

The final dividend of HKl4 cenls per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval at the ferthcoming annual general meeting

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and dilted eamings per share atlribulable to oaners of the Company is based
on the Tollowing dala

2021 220

US$ million LIS$ million

Earmings
Profit 1or the year atiribulable 1o owners of the Company Tor the

purpose of hasic and dilubed eamings per share 1,068 HIR

million million

Humber of shares
Welghted average number of ordinary shares Tod the pu pose ol

basic earnings per share 14.142.45 14,733.55
Effecl of dilulive polenlsd odingdy shares: share oplions 260 8522
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose ol

dilded earnings per share 14.145.14 14.788.77

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant,
machinery

Freehald Mol and  Copstioction
(ETT] Ealdingd ielicled el p e I paogiedd

Gost-

I Janusy H020 552 2,002 141 &4,748 131 BG4S
rency realignmend (0] 5 1 (1L-1] 1 Lri]
Additio - — n 0 a0 980
Foquisition of spbsidanes [(Mote 34 12 g ] L] 18 4312

Trahats 1 148 5 &1 [LI31] -
B | 3 (51 m {48} = L] ]

1] 3,758 181 LR Ti0 P

114 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {confinued)

Plani,

misching ry

Frechald sl Camvirpcdion
L Biildifigs equipineal i pregiest

Depreciation and impairmest:

1 f=nuary 2971 = Bra L3} 2,185 = 3,133
i s Tkneri - ®) (] 2 — Ll
- 199 13 378 - 538
(i d = = - 4 - 4
MO - (1] & (20 - =T
AL 31 Decermber 2021 = wwe s 25w - e
Carrying valmes:
Al 3] Decemie E16 2,338 a7 2,504 720 8,387

Cerlain of the Group's buildings of USES47 million as al 31 December 2021 (2020 LISEESG milion) are
erccled on land hedd m Chna wiale the rest are erected on freehold land siuated i the LS, and Europse

As at 31 December 2021, the application for obtaining the ownership cerificales of buildings in China with
an agmegale carying valve of approdnetely DSE192 million (2020: USE188 million) was sl i progiess

Property, plant and equipment with a canying amoeunt of approximately US$4 million (2020: US$E25 million)
have been fully impaired and recognised in prodit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021,

wrsrour Lvires [TEIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMEMNT
Propestses under development expected to be oomplabed

202 2
USE million LIS 3 il leon
Within the normal operating cycle included under current assels 150 130

Properties under development expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle and recovered,

2021 )

USE millian LSS millson

Willsin ofe visw b ] 48
After one year 121 82
150 130

16. LEASES
{a) Right-of-use assets

The carying amounts of the Group’s nght-of-use assets and the movemenls during the year are as
Talkniis

Fland,
machinery

and Mator Contiact
Buildings equipment vehicles farms

1 January 2021 198 2648 8 52 142 [1:5
P 1 [ I 2 2 Iz

1 B2 (L} 1B 14 24 154

[E1:H] (10y (i} (11-1] {42 11200

I =" i = ] mn (B}
in = = = = {n

Al AT Decermibar 2021 229 278 e} oh 125 Til

116 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. LEASES {continued)
{h) Lease liabilities

The canying amounl of lease labilities and the movements during the year are a5 follows:

2021

US% million

As al 1 January

478 M5
Mew leses 148 129
Interest expenses 19 20
Fagirwenils {142) (152)
Ferminated (8) [y ]
Rermessurement = 30
Currency realignment 611 5
As at 31 December 487 476
Analysed lor meporling purposes as
Currant Habilities 110 103
Mon-curent liabilities 17 3r3
487 476

The maturity analysks of lease liabilies is disclosed in note 37 to the consalidated financial statements

The Group has early adopted the amendmenl to IFRS 16 and applied the practical expedient to Al

eligibbe rent concessions ganted by the bessors for leases of certain property, plant and equipment
during the year

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. LEASES (continued)
) The amounts recognised in prodit or loss inorelation to fesses are as follows

2021

USS'million

Interest on lease lEbilties 19 20
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 130 139
Expenses relaling to shorl-ferm leases a5 91
Variable lease payments not mouded in the measurement of
edse labilties 17 24
Gain on sale and leaseback transactions — {=—*}
lmgerrmaent of righl-of-use assets 1 2
262 275

() Extension and termination options
The Group has leases with remaining lease terms ranging from more than 1 year to 37 years. The
feases contaming exlension amd terminalion options are mansged locally and ary in lesom, The Group
has included extension o ermination oplions in the measurement of the lease obligations when i s
reasonably certain 1o exercise the options.

(e} Variable lease paymenls
The Group has leases containing wriable lease payment lemms not depending on an index or rale Tor
g ralsing lacilities, buildings, meotor vehicles, machinery and equipment Management s responsible
for negotiating the lease terms and each lerm may vary depending on the underlying assel and
reportable segmenl. Varable lease payment lerms are based on a muBliple of lactors ineluding the
cvvedall usage of the underbying assel, maintenance and repalr sersoes, property taces and insurance,

Thia Glﬂup expects e overall fesancial impact for (utore years o be consstent with U variakbde leasp
payments that were mcuned during 2021

{f} Sale and leaseback Iransactions
Cunng: the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group sold 4 farms for an apgiegate prce of US$S
iy witale I;!1.:lu:ir|H owrership of the |.|ib|!|.':|!:|rll'|r: land. Subsecduent 1o each sale, e Group keased fhe
farms back for & non-cancellable term of approximately 15 years with renewal options. There were no
sale and leaseback transactons for the year ended 31 December 2021

{g) The tolal cash ocutflow for keases and future cash outflows relating to leases thal have nol yet commenced
are disclosed in noles 35 and 37, respectively, 1o the consolidated linancial statements.

Log= than LS| million
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLDGICAL ASSETS
The biological assets of the Group are live hogs and poultry al vanous stages of development, including
suckling hogs, nursery hogs and finishing hogs and broflers which are classified as currend assets. Biological
assels also inchede breedmg stock (hogs and poullry), which are used o produce fulure v hogs and
broiders, are classified as non-cument -assels ol the Group. The quantities of live hogs, broders and breeding
stock owned by the Group al the end of each reporting poniod are as lollows:

2021

Head “million Head ‘million

Live s

suckiing 2 2
nursery 2 z2
fins hing 8
12 12
Breeding stock (hogs) 1 1
14 13
Broilers 11 9
Hllsﬁ:rlrl;.;_ slock (ot} 2
13 g9

Le=s than | malion heads
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continusd)
Hogs

In genaal, once a sow is inseminated, it will pestate for a period of 112 1o 115 days. New born hogs are
classificd as “suckling”™. The suckling bogs will stay with Uhelr motlier for thiee to four weeks at which i
they will be weaned, Once the suckling hogs are weaned, at approximately | to 8 kilograms, they are
transtemed to the “nurseny”.

The nursery laclities are designed to meet the needs of newly weaned pigs. They are fed with 8 seres of
specilly formulated diels to meel ther changng nubritional needs. The pigs will stay in the nursery for
approzimately 6 weeks whese they will grow to appredmately 7 1o 45 Rlograms and then be Bansferred to
the: “finishing™ farm

Finishing hogs lypically stay in this phase for 13 to 19 weeks: During that time, they will grow to
approximately 23 to 132 Kilgganes and be considered as a live hog with markel value Once the hog
reaches the ideal wemght, they are kaded onlo specally desined tnucks for transport to the processing
facility.

Poultry
In peneral, once a puallet lays cppes, the eggs will be sent to the hatchery and it will take approximately 21
days to be hatched. The hatched chicks are then sent lo the broiler karm,

The chicks are fed with a senes of specially formubaled diets o meet their nulsition needs. The chicks will
stay in the broiler {arm for approdimately 38 o 42 days where they will grow o approximately 2 kilogrames
and then be considered as a brofler with market value.

Cnce the broilker reaches the matkel weight, they are loaded onto specially designed trucks for lansport to
the processing lacility

The Group = exposed o a nember of msks relaled to is biological assels. The Group s exposed o the
follewsing operating risks:

(i} Regulafory and environmental risks
The Group s subject to lbws and regulations in the location in which it operates breeding of hogs and
poultry. The Group has established envionmental polices and piocedures aiming al complying with
local environmental and other laws, Management performes regulban reviews Lo identify  envieemmentad
tisks and to ensure that the systems in place are adequate to manage these risks,

{il) Climale, disease and other natural risks
The Group's: biological assels are cxposed lo the nsk ol damage from climalic changes, diseases and
other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes i place aiming al monitosing and  mitigating
thase tisks, including regulas inspections, disease controls and insurance,

120 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS {conlinued)
Carrying value of the Group's biological assets

[E R

2011

USE millinn

Eeeefing shsck (hapi)

201
U5 milin

Fiedein Bigedap 1tark (pesfiry)

HIZ| 2021

3S'millim n UES mllinn

¢ | larusny Loz8 12 ] 3 (RT3
1] ril 2 1 1 (k] 1
=g Conl L5 1] 1 178 el il w18 0%
A n ol
e M = ] -— - e
e ¥
(e 3 el o Biodago
vinel [LE1] 13 L] 7 - 1 k] (16T L
il ol | A 511 d Lk H (= }] (705
- o o ool g cal
ATy ks o
L343 181 L. ko L 1 1401

Analysed lor reporting purposes. as:

2021 M)

US$ million

LIS$ mil il.l i

Current assels 1,263 1,047
Mon-current assels ! }_l;'\_ﬂ__ 135
143 1,182

Fair value measurement — Level 3

2021 200

UsS million

LSS million

Baological assels

Live hogs 1,243 1,08
Breedmg stock (hogs) 161 132
Broilers 20 19
Breoding }lu: K {poullng & ? 3

143 1,182

wrsrour Lvires [ EEEI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (conlinued)
The fair values of breeding stock (hogs and poultry) are determined based on the average of the hislorical
selling price of hog and poullry of smilar brecd and genetic menl less cosls bo sell (Level 3). The eshimated
fair value will significantly increase when there is a slight increase in the average historical seling price, and
WEGE Wersa

The fair values of live hogs and broillers are mainly detesmined based on the price of hogs and broilers in the
actively trded markel, subliacting the breeding cosls required o mse the fve hogs and broilers to be
staughtered and the margins thal would be required by a raiser and less costs to sell {(Level 3} The
eslimated fair value will incresse when there & an increase in the market mice of hogs and biolles o
deciease m the Lm,'.etFu'll.'; st required 1o @ise the live hogs and Drolers, and vice versa

Changwes in tair walue bess costs bo soll of biclogical assets include changes in the fair vabue of the hogs and
poultry al the end of both years, The Group's biological assets were valued by the independent qualified
valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporatle Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"} situated o 7/F, One Taikoo
Place, 979 King's Rosd, Hong Kong

Sel forth below are the key assumplions and mpuls adopled in the waluation process of biological assets:

China
Breedmg stock (hogs)
Per head menket price’™ 2,582 4,444

Suckling hogs
P hesad oost 199 Ehi

Finishing hogs
Per head markel price a4 2.8

Per head weekly average breeding costs required lo
raise o finishing hogs™ 128 119

Eresdump stock (poulliy)

Per head market price’™ 5 25
Broilers

Pesr head monkel price™ 16 16

Per head average ieeding costs requited 1o maise o broilers™ 22 20

13 WHGROUPLMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS {conlinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (contmued)

U.5.
Breeding stock — Sow (hogs)
Pey hesed mnsarkel price!’ 115 111

Breeding stock B (hogsi
Per hesd market price 28 an

Suckling hogs
Pear head cost™ a5 34

Frnishing hwges

Per head markel pnce”? 175 144
Per hesd weekly avemge bréeding cosls iequired o raise
tor fimishing hogs™ a4 28

Europe
Breeding stock Sow (hogs)
Per head market price” 135 159

Breeding stock Brar {hops)
Per head markel price! a7 114

Suckling hogs
Per head cost™ 30 28

Fenishing hogs

Py hesd markel price 143 139
Per head weekly average breeding costs required o mise
Lo liavishing haogs™ 20 0.5

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIOLOBICAL ASSETS (conlinumad)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (conlinued)

Motes

1 Mlacket prces of beeading

Flock

shock valmbon dale
i g, AR

Cosls of sucking hogs
Wy s

i al st the

Wk

od In e valuabon

2 g
18. GDODWILL

2021

USS million

oS!t
Al 1 January 2 008 1,955
Acqusition of subsslsrees {MNote 34} T8 il
Cumrency realignment {18} 22
Al 31 December 2,070 2,008

Acoumlated impairment losses:
AL Jamiisiy and 31 December -

Canying value:
At 31 Decemibe 2,070 AL ]

124
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. GOODWILL ([conlinued)
Impairment testing on goodwill
Based on the Group’s business units, poodwill has been allocated for impainment lesting purposes o the
Tollowing CGLS;
. Potrk
- Packaged meats

The carying amounl of goodwill allocated to the CGUS & & lollows

2021 M

US$ miltion LIS% million

Allocated o

Park Chinga 52 a1
Packaged meals China 150 147
Paork — LLE. and Mexico 115 A4l
Packaged meats s 1,538 1,536
Pork and packaged meats — Europe 217 234

2,070 2008

An impairment review ol these CGUSs s undertaken annueally or when events or ciicumstances indecate thal
the camying amounts of CGUs may nol be recoverabla, The recovarable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined by the value i use et s cash oy projectons pefomed By the management (o botli
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

For the purpose of impairment lesting, the Group prepares cash fbow projections and the recoverable
amants of these CGLUs are caboulated by using pre-tax cash llow projectons based on & S-yeasS-year

fingncial budgel approved by management and extrapolabion of cash flows beyond the 3-yeanS-year bucdget
periad.

'WH GROUP LIMITED 125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. GODODWILL (conlinued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)
Koy assumplions used in the cash flow projections of pork in China'the US and Mesico covering a
A-yeanDeyear budgel period and extrapolaled cash (lows beyond the budgel pencd are a5 follows:

0.5, amd Mexico

2021

Revenue growth rate {Mole 1) (0.14-55.3 {69151 2.0 20
Long-term growth rate {Mobe i) 2 2 2 b
Discount rabe {MNole §i) 14 1{ ] G

Koy assumplions oded in the cash low propections of packaged meats in Chinafthe LS covening a
F-yeanTeyear bidgel period and extrapolated cash flows beyond the budael period are a5 follows:

Revenue growth rate {MNote 1) 6.0-20.2 1.3-17.4 i | 21
Long-term growth rate (Nobe i) 2 2 2 2
Chscont rate {MNote m) 14 10 B &

Hey assumplions used in the cash (low projectons of pork and packaged meats i Europe covering a S-year
budgiel perod and exdapolsled cash llows beyond the budigel period are as Tollows

Hevenue growth rate {MNate 1 2.9 a5

Long-term growth rate {Note i) 4 q

Discount rate (Mole #i) [ 7
ot

[} & VENILIE Riow ole el @ wanfDyear bodgel period w Ll Bt f perimance and i
ey sselnnrant
# fong-teem growt mb used dogs nof sxceed the long-serm growth smie for fve meat producton Busingss in whch @ cperaies
fistcunt rate used i the poe-tan discount rale apphéd to the cask low prjections which sdlechs specilic reks relating 6 Ehe

Mo impasrment boss B recognised at the end of both yvears based on the ampairment assessment perfonmed.
Management believes thalt any reasonably possible change in any of these assumplions would not cause the
apgreiale canying amount of the CGLE lo excead the ageregate recoverable amound ol the CGLs

126 WHGROUPLIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19. INTAMGIBLE ASSETS

1. 6o ] 1 ar 40 E 1639
=5 = = =) = Vel ) e |
] ] — - - e o 4
1,684 5 1 a7 A B 181
"] n
- N i
13 - 1 kL] 14 1 L1]
- ) — — — — p— S—
- - - ] i 1 ]
A o 13 — 1 43 " 2 T
WTNg D
M 31 December 202 1,681 ] — £ n 4 1,750

Patents, customer relations, confract farm relations and nghts and permits are amortised over their estimated
useful lves of 5 io 25 years.

Trademarks and distribution network acquied m the business combimations are ientified and recognised as
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and camried at historical cost withoul amortisation for the Tollowing

T OMns:

—  they are capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost; and

there Is no (oreseeable limit o the perled over which the asset is expected (o generate net cash Tows,
based on an analysis of all of the relevant factons.

= Lt thoom LSS million

'WH GROUP LIMITED 121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment testing on intangible assets
Based on the Group's business unifs, trademaks and distribution nebwork have been allocated for
mgairment tesling purposes to the lollowing CGLE:
. Pork

- Packaged meats

The camrying amounts of rademarks and distribution network were allocated 1o CGLS a5 follows:

USE'million

Allocated o

Patk China 52 51
Packaged meats China i 1] 302
Park LS. and Mexico 234 234
Packaged meats LS 081 =1 |
Pork and packaged meats Eunape 108 114

1,684 1,682

An impairment review of these CGUs is underlaken annually of when evenls of circunstances ndicate that
the canying amounts of CGUs may nod be recoverable, The recoverable amounts of these CGLs have been
delermiamed by the wvalie o use method usang cash T projechons by management fod the years ended
31 December 2021 and 31 Decembser 20020

For the purpose of impairment testing. the Group prepares cash flow projections based on a 3-yeanh-year
linandcial budpels approved by I'I'li,ll'l.i!j._:l'!ll'l,“l'lt and extrapolation of cash lows tr{"y'q:-mj the S-yean'D e hIJIJ_E:I,![
peniod

ley assumplions used n the cash low progections of ademaks and distnibubion netwark of porkl covenng a
3-yeanb-year budgel period and extrapolated cash flows beyond the budget period are a5 follows:

U5, and Mexico

2021

Revenue growth rate {Mole i) (0.1}-55.3 {6,91-15,1 20 20
Long-lenm growth rate {Mobe i) 2 2 2 2
Discount rate (Mol Wil 17 13 G o

128  WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS {confinued)

Impairment testing on intangible assets {conlinued)
Key assumglions used in the cash flow projections of trademarks and distibulion network of packaged meats

covering & Dyeanbeyear budgel period and exdrpalated cash low beyond the budgel penod are as Lollows:

China

Rewvenue growlh mate (Mole i) 8.0-20.2 1.3-17.4 21 2.1
Loang-term growth rate (Moke i) 2 2 2 2
Discount mbe {MNote iy 17 13 ] G

Koy assumplions used in the cash fllow projectons ol rademarks and distnbulion  network ol porkl and
packaged meals in Europe covenng a S-year badget period and exdrapotated cash flow beyond the budgel
peiiod se s follows:

Reswenue growth mate (Mote i) 3.9 350
Long-term growth rate (Mobe i) 1
Cascount rate (Mate i 8 )

ot

t @ 3peaniSoyest Dudgel penod wilh relerencn 1o 1he past performance and it

The long:term growih re: uind does nol excesd the long-team growih rase for e meat production husisess in which § operates

The Group has nol recognised any impaimment boss in respect of bademarks for the year ended
31 December 2021 (20020; US$2 million) based on the impaimment assessment performed, Management
believes thal any reasonably possible change in any of these assumplions would nod cause the aggregale
camying amount of the ademarks and disinbution netwolk (o exceed the agpregate recoverable amount of
these assels.

'WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2021 20

USSmillinn Us§million

Share of net assels G2 47

All the Group's assecales are nol considercd as individually materal as al 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020, The aggregate amounts of its share of these associates are sat ol in the consolidated

financial skatements.
Aggrepate information of associales that are nol individually material is sel oul below

2021 2020

USS'million LSS mllson

The Gioups shere of prolits and lodal comprehensieg incoime

for the year E] A

Divdends received during the year 3 2

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2021

UsE' million LISl lson

Share ol nel assets k:11

All the Group's ot ventures are nol considered as individually matenad as at 31 December 2021 and
i1 December 2020, The appregate amourds of (1S share of these ol venlures are sel oul in the
consofidated financial stalemeants

.ﬂ}:qll_*.]bf;l:r i oammaleon of poinl veniures that are nol indivedually material s set oul Bislow

2021 2020

USS'million LIS $ million

The Group's share of profits and lofal comprehensive income

for the year 25 12
Dividends received during the wear 3
WHGROUP LMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

22. INVENTORIES

2021 N I

USS million LiSE million

Raw malerials 1,222 1,018
Work in progress 145 103
Finished goods 1,258 1.520

2,825 2641

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2021 L

Uss million LSS million

Trade receivbies 1.070 931

Imipaliment {14) {240
1,058 907

Bills receivable ] 8
1.064 915

The general credit tlerm allowed by the Group o Bt customers is within 30 days i China operations whike
the credil lerms vary depending on the sales chanmel and customers for the U5, and other counres’
OpErations The following s an aging ﬂl'l.iﬂ:"‘il.‘u of the trade and bills recervables net ol loss allowance
presented based on the dates o delivery of goods which approsimated the respective dates on which
TEVENLE WEs TeDognised

2021

USE million LSS milion

Current 1o 30 days a1z g
11 to S0 days 142 112
ol 1o |80 dans =] 1
Orver 180 days 1

1,064 915

wrsrour Lvires [EETI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES {confinued)
Belore accepting any new customers, the Group uses past expenence o assess the polential customers
credit quality and deflines credit limits for the costomers, Limits atiibuled to cuslomers are reviewed
regubarly.

In detarmining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group monitors the change in the credit quality
of the Irade receivables snce the credit was granted and up to the repofling date. The dwectors of e
Company considersd that the concentration of credit risk i limited due to a large and unrelated  customer
base of the Group.

Mo inesest s charged on Bade recenvables. Loss allowances are made based on the estimasted rrecovesabde
amourds from Ihe sales of goods by relercnce lo pas! delaull expérenc: and objechive evidénces ol
imgairment determined by the difference between the carmying amount and the present value of the estimate

fulure cash MNows discounted al the onginal effective interest mie.

As al 31 December 2021, bade recenables of USE632 million (2020 USES6T milkon) were pledped as
secufity for certain credit facilibes of the Group {Note &)

Mavement n loss allowancs for impairment ol rade secenablos

2021

USS'million

Al 1 January 24} (11}

Reversal o impairment losses (mpairment losses), met 10 {13}

Currency _|_|~u|q_’,|||1h:n1 =" =

Al 31 December {14) {29}
Impairment

An impairment analysis s performed al each reporting dae using a provision malrix 16 measwe expected
credil losses, The provision rales are based on days pasl doee lof groupings of warnous cusbomes Segments
with- similar loss patterns {ie., by geographical region, product lype, customer type and raling, and coverage
by letters ol credil of olher forms ol credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-wesghted
oulcomne, the time valee of money and reasonable and supportable Information that i avaslable at the
reporting date about past evenls, currenl condilions and lorecasts ol fulure economic condilions. Generally,
trade recervables are wiitten off il past due oo more than one year amd are not subpect o enforcement
actiity

. 1 fiar =21 r=ilben
Laes than LSS mills
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Impairment {conlinued)

Set oul bebw s the information aboul the credil risk exposwre on the Group's trade receivables using a

provrsin mgkn:

31 Decamber 2021

Current to

More than
180 days

a0 days 91-180 days
past due past due
Expected loss rate 0.015% 44.13%
Gross carying amount
{LESE g 1,047 16
Loss allwance prowision
(LSS million) = 7

past due

98.35% 1.34%
7 1,070
7 14

31 December 2020

Cugrent e

da

E .-l,|_u_:|:|1'rj |l raule h5]% O 5N 0% 4=% 254%
Gross carrying amount
{LFSE wmillicn) 911 I 9 131
Loss alloaance paovision
CLESE milliom) 5 il B 24
® Lo thae LSS m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

2021 2Vl

USS'million LIS $ millkon

Prepaymaents a9 &l
Debt investments al amorised cost 190 a8
Loans receivables a6 &0
Deposits paid o suppliens 58 130
Receivables {rom financial mstitutions -_ L[
Deposits placed with financial instilutions 42 .
Denvatve Tinancial instruments {(Mote 260 1) B
‘Value-added tax recovemable 128 191
Cithers 100 53
735 ]
falysed fof reporting puiposes as
Cumrent assels Gag al2
Mon-curront assels 67 5F
735 ]

25. FINAMCGIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOS3

2021 S

UsSS' millian LIS il leon

Lislisted inveslimenis

Fimancial producis 232 BR2
Equity investiments 12 I
244 892

Analysed 1of iepoding puiposes A%

Cumrent assels 232 582
Mon-cunrent assels | _1_2 | 10
244 ok g

The mvestments classified as current sl 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are mainky weallth
r‘:n,iluiHL:n'u,‘:|1r products sseed by baaks m Ching |]'||,'.-',l W r|'|.'ir|d..L1I||||.1:,l classihed a% linancesl assets al 1an
value throsgh profit o loss as their contractual cash flows are nol solely payments of principal and inferest.
The non-current equily investiments were measured @f FYPL a5 e Group has nol elected (o recogmise (e
fair value gain or loss through other compeehensive income

134  WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Derivatives under hedge accownting

A Liahilities T | et it hes

US S million UES'million LISS million LS% million

Fair value hedges

Gram conliacks _ a A
Livestock conlracts -_— 1 2
Cish flow hedges
Foreign cunency forward contracts e 1 » q
taram contracis 28 —_ a5
Livestock contracts B 3 5 5
6 [ (L] 17

Fair value hedges

This Group entered wmlo dematie indboments (phaanly. foivard contracds) 10 minimse 15 exposire o B
value changes of its commitments 10 buy grains and livestock. The directors ol the Company consider Thal
these dervalive Bstruments aqe highly  elfective  hedging  instruments. Major  terms ol the  dedivalive
instruments are sel oul beloe

At 31 December 2021

Change in Gair value
mied lod measuring

Kolional velsme bedge inefectiveness

Dermative insirmments Mininmm Maximum lor the year

UAE sl lian

{15}
piesd 350,000 1065000 Bushels Up 1o Mavember 2023
Sovbean meal = 110700 Tems Up 1a lanusry 2022
i 6,310,000 24185000  Bushels Up to December 2023
42,240,000 80,720,000  Pousds Up 1o December 2022 {12

wrsrour Lvires [ECHIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Derivatives under hedge accounting (conlinued)
Fair walee hedges (continwed)
At 31 December 2020

The hedge neffectiveness can anise fron

. changes to the forecasted amounts of cash fows of hedged items and hediing instruments

. dillerences in the iming of cash Tows of the forecasted bansactions and the hedging nstioments

T commedilies contracts as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are recorded n “Prepayments,

other receivables and ofher assels™ and “Accrued expenses and ofher payables™ in the consoldated
statement of financial position.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Derivatives under hedge accounting (conlinued)
Cash flow hedges
Al 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2000, e Group enlered nto demvabive instruments, such as
futures, swaps, oplion contracts and foreign exchange looward contracls designated as highly eflective
hedging instruments In order o manage the Group's exposure (o the varability in aopecied Tufure cash flows
attributable to commodily price risk associated with the lorecasted sabe of live hogs, pok, and the forecasied
purchase of comn and soybean meal as well a5 foreign cumency risk associated with Muctuating foreign
currency rates. The ferms of the desivative instruments have been negotiated o match the lemmes of the
respchive l.[!‘L*,iHr'L.'ltl,u] hedgged dbems, The map lems of hese contracts ang as 1olkows

A 31 December 2021

mEFHIN

Nabioral yolume 1reffer

e issliumenls Mirimus Mzinm Melric

U5 million

SE2H000 L ENAAS000  Pomh Up lo Rugnd 2023 1
£Ein 123
34,040,000 THESLSEE  Bunbely Up'le November 2002
Sonean mes 350,900 51800 Tem Up lo December 2022
formend confrach USREBOTTSIE  USSS5A4B336  Waiouw cumencies Up to Rowember 2032 {1

At 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Derivatives under hedge accounting {continued)
Cash fMow hedges (contimued)
The hedge meflecliveness can arise from
. changes to the forecasted amounts of cash fkvws of hedged items and hedging instruments

- differences in the liming of cash llows of the forecasted transactions and the hedging mstruments

T impsact of lhe hedped erns on e comsolidated fnancial statements 5 oas follows

Total hedging Amouni
gain (fossy reclnssified Fom Change i Fair
recognised in nther Hedge beiened net waloe wsed for

other  comprehensive  ineffectiveness gain (loss) measuring hedge
comprehensive  imcome to profit mecopnised in  incheded in other  Inefftectiveness
inchm & [ profit or loss IEsRIvE for the yeas

A3 8t 31 December 2021

(163} (e (B} ) LA

acticr 120 184 3 (17h 123

A% at 31 December 2020

The commodidies contracts, inerest rate contracts and Toregn currency lonward confracts as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 are recorded i “Prepayments, other receivables and olher assets™ and
“Accrued expenses and olher payaldes” in the consohdated stabement of linancial position

The hedge ineflectiveness for lorecast kean hog and grain transactions i recognised in “Revenue”™ and “Cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, respechively

WHEGROUP LMATED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting

2021

| bt

Liabilities hssels

Assels

US S milliom LISS million LS% million

USS'million

Grain contracts a8 5 3 14
Livestack conbacls 4 4 r
Eneagry contracts 43 —_ 3 10
Foreqpn currency forwand conliacls 2 — :

57 T [ 24

Major termes of such dernalives are as follows;

Mulmaal volume

Miaimum Maximum

Malurity

Dervative msirmmenis

Whesl 35,000 1,685,000  Buvbels Up 1o July 2023
jhean mes 1,313 174682  Tons Up 1o Movember 2032
aan b 11,800,000 152 966578 Pamds Up lo Beleber 2022
I 16584011 48,401,835 Emhely tp fo Movembes 2022
jbaar 10,000 3,700,000 Beihels Up ln March 2023
§,300.000 16,350,000 Enitish (Bermad il Up o Decrmbes 2033
16,632,000 17800000  Easflom Up 1o December 2023
nengy 00615 3,360,705 Megawall-hoer Up o December 2032
mency fonwand conlract USSR.131,305  USSITB00C1M  Valous cureaches Up la Agail 2022
Le an LISEL million
wrsrour Lvires [ECHI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Derivatives not under hedge accounting (confinued)
Major terms of such derivatives are as Tollows:

Derivative financial assels and liabilities of LIS$E30 millien, USE51 méllion
million, USEMS millen, USES milion and USET miBion) are recoded as
mon-cument liabilities and cument liabilities, respectively.

il and LISE3 milkon (2020; LISE1
non-canrent assets, cwment assels,

WHEGROUP LMTED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

27. PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Af 31 December 2021, bank balances canry interest at markel iates manging from 0.01% o 4.13% (2020
001% ko 4.13%) per annum, The pledged and restricted bank deposits carry inferest at fized rates mnging
from 0.02% to 4. 13% (020 0.03% to 4.13%) per annum.

Al 3] December 2021, pledged bank deposits represented deposits of USE3 milllion (2020. US$3 million)
pledged 1o banks tor secunng banking and trading facildes such as letlers of credit and bank loans granted
1o the Groasp, and USE3 million (2020 USE3 million) pledged for seciming a kan from a third party. These
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the selllement of the relewmnt borrowings or the relesse of the
relevant facilities

Al 31 December 2021, bank balance of WSE3 millon (2020: USH2 million) s pledged for woakes's
compensation insurance claims in the LS,

Al 31 December 2021, a subsidiary of the Group which is engaged in financial serdces, was governed by the
i lo place USE36 millon (2020: US$49 million) of a shtufory deposit in the People’s Bank of Chisa In
addition, USHEG million (2020 USES million) was placed al a designated bank account by a subsidiary of the
Group which & engaged In property development as guaiantes deposils

28, TRADE PAYABLES
The avwsrage credidl period on puichase of goods is about 30 days in China operations and the credit berms

vary depending on the vendor Tor the L 5, and other counlnes of operations. The Group has linancial dsk
managemanl policies in place to enswe that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe

The following s an analysis of trade payables tased on the invoice dale:

2021

UES milleon ISE million

Within 30 days 1.127 831
31 to S0 days 12 19
91 to 180 days A 1
181 o 365 days ! 5 2

1,148 913

Included in trade payvables of US$L2 million {2020: US$S million) were amounts due o associafes (Mote
4H L)y

wrsrour Lvires [T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued stalf cosls

Deporsils feceaved

Gales rebates payables

Payables o respect of soquesation of progedly, plant and
equipmeant

Accrued insuranoe

Imerest payable

Balance of conlingent consideration in respect of acquisition ol
subsidiaries

Growers payvables

Pension liability {Note 33}

Dezrivative Timancial nstruments {Note 260

Accreed professional expenses

Accrued renl and ulilflies

Divedend payabses

Contract [Eabilities {(Mole)

Other accrued expenses

Cther payablies

Analysed for reporting purposes as
Cumrent liabalibies

Mon-current abilities

2021

UES million

EDINETOOOO
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732
G0
261

7
155

?In'

11
45
3
IG
24

14

520
2

2427

2,136
ot |
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

30. BORROWINGS

2021 )

US S million LISE million

Semior unsecured notes:

2.050% semor unsecured notes doe Octaber 20021 - 310
3.350% senior unsecured notes due Febouary 2022 _ 307
A250% senlor unsecured nobes due Februaay 2027 5a7 HO3E
5.200% senior unsecured notes due April 2009 386 395
5000% semior unsecured nobes due Oclober 2030 490 A5}
2.625% senior unsecured notes due Seplember 2031 450
1.973 2058
Commencial pagsess (Nobe () ==
Bank loans (Mofe i)
Secured - 11
Lnsaciped 033 Bad

Loans from thind parlies {Nobe ik

Secured 1 |
Unsecured 2 2
Total bosrowings other than bank ovwerdiafis 4014 2636
Bank overdrafts {Note v} o 46

Bosrowings other than bank overdafls are repayable as follows

(Mode )
Within one yes a74 796
One bo two years 24 425
Twer to live yesars 1,141 kil
Alter five years 1,875 1.433
4,014 2636
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilties {a74) {796)
Amounts due afber ahe year 3.140 1 844}
Tokal Bosrowings other than Dank owverd @il
At ficed rates 2,515 2,559
Al !Ir,.‘!lul;-: mtt.-s_ _EEEE__ i
4,014 2636

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

0. BORROWINGS (continued)

2021

UES' million il o

Analysis ol bomowings (olther than bank overdeafis) by currency:

Descimanated in LSS 2,185 2,09
Dencamanated in HES 1,135
[erwareiated in BRME 539 485
(ther currencies 145 A5
4,014 2636
Fochas

[ Fiad 1ale Bank boass caary inteiesd a1 ficed

&I and Toatng
BOR = 050% £ 1%

GE0R « |

BOR &

o x
KA par annumg)

i Loans faom ihind pardes canry indecest ab o fooed ke ol O9% pee annom 81 31 Decembser 202
n Bank overdiafis ai- 37 Decembar 2020 chrry mbeted 5l 8 Mosdng me ol 287 g Bhnum

v e amcants cue are Dased on scheduled mpayment daces a0 out i ihe kan ageemens

The Groups borrowings contain affiomative and negative: covenants that, among other things, limil or restrict
the Group's ability to create liens and encumbrances, incur debd, enter into liquidation, enter into change of
confrol transactions or change the scope of the business, o dispose of of ransler assels, in each case,
subject 10 certain quakifications and exceptions. The Group had no material defaull In payment of the bank
borrowings, nor did i breach amy releant liance covenants lor the years ended 31 December 2021 and
31 Decemiper 2020, Detalls of the assets pledged o secure such borowings are set oul in note 40 1o the
consofidated financia - stalements.

T4 WHGROUPLIMITED

241/303



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpose ol presentation in the conseldated stlement of flinanca] posilion, celain defened tax assels
and Rablimies have been offsel, The followeng & Ihe anahsas ol e delened tax balamces los imancial

reparting puiposes:

Deferoed fax aesels 42 1
Defermed tax labdites (725 {553
{B83) {49:2)

Thiz Ii:-lll,rml'lg are e muage delerraed bae assels/Rabilites eciansed by e Group, and the movemenis
therecn during the year:

Tax effect of deduclible temporary differences;

(== o
Py el

P walme
= [ PLTRT] ehirigs ks
lopurmest ol om0 ppery, U vir e iEn dedactibir
Fisbtisl  plasd s Uigid il deefivpaisl  bedipeal  Brspainy
Fiigh el e iz |gmiori LIS e o) muts  deaén

L = — — - o=ty - - - =* =

= = = = 1 - = = 5 s

praft of 1 = o L] 1 L] L ] 13 [Fi ]
wged] to el - - - - - k] - - 2 (151]

A5 X] Decesmi 1 3 ] 2 n 131 45 . L7} LT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (conbinued)
[ax eiflect of tanaabde iﬂrllpﬂFdI!.' dellErences:

Fair valwe

changes

Atcelaiated  Undish ibiitad afiing Mo
tax  eamings of business

deprecistion  subsidiarles  combinatien
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Falr valuz
changes
ailzemg hom 0shed tanable
biolegical IEmporany
atieks difteremces Total

PERE T 148) (a1 (445)
lgramaard (=23 {8} (1}]
i) - -
o @ 1 8}
| - it - (=
A Dacdmbar 202 {583) (ad} “5

LEi LAL Y] (995)
-— (L] 8)
— 139) (B3}
a 31 @1}
==) 11 11
] {78) (1,156}
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (continused)
M 31 December 2021, the Group had unused b losses of USES05 million (20200 LISF263 million) available
for offsetting agamst future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of US$298
imillon (2000, LSS0 mullion) of such ksses, No delened tax assel has been recoghised in iespect of such
losses of USE207 milkon (2020: US363 million) duee o the unprediclabaity of futme poodit . stream
Unrecognised tax losses amounting to USES6 million (2020 Mil} may be camied forward indefindely. The
rernaining unsecognised tax losses will cxpire on o before 2090 as follows

2021 2020

UsS million LIS million

By end of
2021 — 1
2002 18 15
2023 i 3
2024 27 24
A5 or alter 104 20

151 s

Al the end of the repoiting petiod, the aggregate amount of femporary  differences  associated  with
undistributed earnings o subsideries lor which delemed tax liabdities have nol been recognsed was
LUSE3 EES million (2000 USE3 468 million), No labality has been recognised i mesped of these differences
because the Group 5 i a position o control the timing of the reversal of the temposary differences and the
Group has determined thal thes potion of profits dereed from these opeating subsidianies will be retaened by
these subsidiaries and will not be distnibuted §n the foreseeable futwre, Therefore, @ i probable thal such
differences will nod reverse in the loresecable future.

32, DEFERRED REVENUE

2021

USS million LIS% million

Government grant 46 44

The defarred revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 répresents government
grant recered in relation to the construchon of property. pEnt and equipment of the Group, As the related
assats are under construction, the grant received from the government will be released to prodit or loss as
olher income over the uselul fves of the related amounts alter the constrecton is compleled

wrsrour Lvires [EEEHIN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS
Defined benefit plans
The group entites. which operate in the US operate funded defined benefit scheme for all their qualified
employees, and pendion benelils provided are currenlly arganised primanly throagh defined benelit pension
plans. Satatied employees are provided with benefits based on years of service and average salary levels,
Hourly employees are provided with benclits of sialed amounds for cach yer ol serace.

The delined benef plan is administered by a separate fund that s legally separated from the enfity, The
board of the pension fund s composed of an equal number o sepresentatives Trom both employers,
employees and (former} employees. The boad of the pension fund is required by kw and by its articles of
association to-act i lhe inderest of the fund and of all refevanl stakeholders in the scheme, e aclive
employees, inactive employees, relirees and employers, The board of the pension fund s responsibile o the
imvestment policy with regard fo the assets of the fand,

Under the plans, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits. based on the. final average salary on
attamment of a retirement age of 65, Mo other post-retirament benefils are provided fo these employees,

The plan i the LLS, exposes the Group to acluanial risks such as investmend risk, interest rate risk, longevity
sk, =alary sk and price risk as follows:

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benelil plan Kabilily s calculated using a discount rate determined by
referance bo high quality corporale bond yields; if the retumm on plan asset is below this ate, it will create a
plan delicit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment m equity securities, debd mstruments and
real estates. Dase to the long-term mature of the plan habibily, the board of the pemsion fund consefers if s
appropriste that a reasonable portion of the plan assels should be wested in equilty securities and in real
eslates to leverage the relurn generaled by the fund.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in e interest rate of figed meoome products will increase the plan liabality, however, this waill be
partially offsel by an increase in the retum on the plan's debl inveshments,

Longevily risk

The present value of the defined beneld plan habilty = calculated by relérence fo the best estimale of the
martality of plan participants both during and after thelr employment. An increase in the lile capeclancy of
the: plan participants will mcreasa the plan's hability,

Salary risk
The: presend value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculaled by reference fo the fufure sabanes of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will ivcrease the plan's Babilty,

148  WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (confinued)
Defined benefit plans {conlinued}
Frice risk
An increase i the markel poice of equaly investments will increase the plan assels,

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carled oul al the end of the reporting period by Mercer (UIS), Inc. The present value of the delined
benefit obligation, and the related cument service cost and past service cosl, were measured wsing the
Projecled Unit Credidt Method.

The princeipal assumplions used lor the puposes of the achaanal valuations were &5 Tollows:

Valuation at 31 December

2021
Dascount mte 2.80% 280
Expected rate of salary incréase 4% 4

The actuarial valuations showed thal the markel walue of plan assets was USE2 194 million a5 at
31 December H21 (2020- US$2,123 million)

Armounts recognised in profit or loss inorespect of these defined benell plans are as follows:

2021

US§ millkon LSS million

Ciriel sepace cosl 53 85
Gain ugon moedification of defined benefit plan {Mote) (105

Mel interest capense _ : 12 17
Tatal {40) feus
10

The Growmp amended the quatied pension plans b tieers the beneft sconsal for all non-o

1. The gain upon modilicason of

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS (corntinued)

Defined benefit plans (conlined)
Remeaswmement of the net defined benelit Habilty included in other comprehensive income (expense) is as

Fallones:

2021 2020

UsE millian LSS mmllean

Redurn on plan assels (exchding amounts includesd in el intarest

expense) m 154
Actuaml [osses asmg Tram change in lmancial assumplions {88 [2F0)
s (121

Dieleared taoation (Mote 31) | a8 41
Total 4 90

T amount ncluded in the consolidated statement of inancial posstion ansing rom e Group's oblgation in
respect of s defined benelit plans is as lollwws

2021

USS'million LSS million

Present value of funded defmed beneflt obligations 2,684 2658
Falr value ol plan assels (2,194) (2,123}

Funded status and net Rability arising from defined

beruedil oblggation 400 e7E
Other retirement benefits, net 12 (1]
S02 a=1a]

Included i

Cument liablities (Moke 29) 2 23
Mon-current habilities | 478 62
502 B

WHGROUP LMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Defined benefit plans (conlinued)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the cument year were as Tollows:

2021 2020

USS million LS4 million

Defined benefit obligation al 1 January 2,688 2,378

it sepice cost 53 g5

Interest cost 76 20

Benwdils. paid {126 {120)
Gain upon modification of defined benefit pension plans (105)

Remeasurement losses:
Actuarial losses ansing (riom change in fmancial assumgdions BA 275
Defined benefit obligation al 21 December 2,684 2,658

Movements in the préesant value of e plan assets in e curment year were as 1olbows:

2021 2020

USS million LSS milion

Faw value of plan assets at 1 January 123 1 812
Interest income G4 &3
Contrebiibions Trom e emiployers i g 214
Bemnelits paid (126) (120

Remeasurermen) gains
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in
nel inlerest expeEnse) 111 154

Fain value of plan assets @l 31 December 2,184 2123
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (coninued)
Defined benefit plans (conlinged)
The fakr valees of the plan assels as at the end of the repording peried (o0 each category are as lollows

Fair value of plan assels
at 31 December

2021
UES million

Cash and cash equivalents 110 117
Lauily securilies 09 1,062
Dekt securities am &l
Allemnalive investments 5 I
Limibed partnerships | 261 211
Tolal lain value 2,176 2,045
Linesetibadd ansachions, el 18 B
Tolal plan assels 2,184 2123

The fair vadues of the above equity and debt mstroments are detesmmed based on quobed market paces in
active markels whereas the fair values of alternative investments and limited partnerships are nol based on
quoled markel prices inactive markets. As al 31 December 2021 US$93ET mallion, US$978 millkon and
USE2G1 million of plan assets (2020: USEE35 millken, USESSS malion and US5211 million) are dassified as
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3, respectively

The aclual retum on plan assets was 8.24% (2020 8.07%) over & years

Sugnificant actuarad assumplions lor the determination of the delined obligation are discount @le, expected
salary increase and mortality, The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assamplions occurring al the end of the repoling perod, while holding all
ather assumglions comstant

I the discoum rale is 50 basis points higher (lower), the defined benelit obligation would decrease (increase)
by UISE210 million {3040 decrease (increase) by US$221 milllion)

The sensilivity analysis presented above may nol be representative of the aclusl change in the delined benefit
obligation as it i unlikely that the dhange in assumplions would eccur in soblion of one ancther as some of
thie assumplions: may be cofmelated

Furthermate, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the presént value of the delined benchil obligation
has been calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the repotting penod, which s the

same &5 lhat applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the  consolidated
statement of linancal posstion

152  WHGROUPLIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMNEFITS (continued)

Defined benefit plans (conlinued}

Pension plan assels may be invested in cash and cash equivalents, equity securities, debl securities amd
allernalive astets {includimg allernative investments, Rimited partnerships and  insurance conlracls). The
investment policy for the pension plans & o batance 1isk and retum through a diversified portiolio of
high-quality equity and fixed incoms securities. Equity Eagels [of the pension plans are as indicated m the
lollowing table. Maturity for fixed vcome securities is managed such thal sulficient liquidily exists 1o meel
neal-term  bepefit payment obligations. The plans relain oulside investment  advisors 1o manage  plan
investmeands within parsmeters established by the plan lusiees.

Thit follerwing table presents the fai value of the qualified pension plan assels by major assel category as al
the end of the reporting penod, The allocation of the pension plan assels 15 based on the target range
presented in the lolkwing tabibe

1 December 2021

Target range

Assel categories
Cash and cash equivalents,

nel of unsetiled transactions 128 0-10% 195 -4%
Equity securities aga A0-T 0% 1,062 I-50%
Debt securities 891 20-50% 645 35-65%
Alternative assets 266 S-20% 221 H-H0%
Tosal 2,184 2123

The Group expects o make a contribuion of USE23 million 1o the defined benefit plan during e nexd
Tmwancial yoar.

The Iolkvwing are descriptions ol the valuation melhodologies and key inpuls used o measure pension plan
assets pecordad at i value:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with ofiginal maturities of three months of less. Due lo
thedr shodt-leom nature, the canying amounl of these nstruments approximates the estimated fair valoe
Actively traded money mearkel lunds are measured at then nel assel value, which approximeates to Tair value,
and classified as Level 1. The fair values ol cedain money markel funds lor which quoded prices are
available but traded bess frequently have been classilied as Level 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMEMT BEMNEFITS (conlinued)
Defined benefit plans (conlined)
Equity securities
When awailable, the fair walues ol equily sccurilies are based on quoled prces in active markels and
classified as Level 1. Level 1 financial instruments include highly liquid instrements with quoted prices, such
as equities and mutual funds traded oo sclive markels.

H quoted prices: ame not available, falr values are oblained from pricing services, broker queoles or other
model-based valuation techniques with obsenable inputs and clssificd as Level 2. The nature ol these equity
spourities inchade securilies for which quated prices are available bul traded less frequently, secunities whose
lair value has been detived using a model where inputs o the model are directly observable in the market,
of can be derved pancipally from of comobomted by observable market data and securities thal ae valued
using other financial instrumients, the parameters of which can be directly cbserved, Level 2 equity securitkes
nclude prefered stock and commingled lunds that are not actively traded.

Debt secarities

Thee Tair values of debd securities are obtained from pricig Services, broker quotes of other model-based
valuation techniques with observable inputs and classified a5 Level 1 o Level 2. The nalwre of these debt
secufibies includes mstruments lor which quoled poices ae aailable bul aded less Trequently, instuments
whose fal valie as been dedved using a moedel where inputs 1o the imodel are directly obserable in s
market, of can be denved principally from of cotroborated by observable market data and securities that are
valued wsing other financisl instruments, the pamelérs of which can be dinectly observed, Level 1 debt
securities include corporate debl securities and government debl securities, Level 2 debt securilies include
commingbed Tunds, assol-backed securities and ameging markel securilies.

Alternative invesiments

The fan wlues of alternative investments are oblained  frn pricing senvices, bioker quotes o ollwer
model-based valiation fechniques with observable inputs and classified a5 Level 2. The natwe of these
altemative investmants inchedes instruments for which quoled prices are available bl taded loss frequently,
mestruments whose fain value has been derved using a model where inputs 1o the model ae 'lﬂil-l.'.\{':“‘,'
observable in the marke?, or can be dedived principally from or cotreborated by observabke matket data and
secufibies thal are valued using olher tmancial instruments, the parameters of which can be directly
obsetved. Level 2 alternative investments include diversified investment funids.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tedr inced 31 Decatibar SO0

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Defined benefit plans {conlinued}
Limited parinerships
The valuation of fimited paritnership mvestments requires the use of signlicant unobserable mpits due 1o the
absence of quoted market prices, inherent lack of hquidity and long torme nature of such assets and is
classified a5 Level 3. These investments are initially wlued ol cost with quarterly valuations performied
ulilising available markel data lo determine the far walee of these investments, Such markel dala consists
prinmarily of the obsesvations of tiedieg muolliphes of public companies considered comparable to the
investmends, with adjustments for investment-specific issues, the lack of liquidity aod other fems.

Defined contribution plans

The Gioup's qualiying employees in Hong Fong partecipate n the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, The assels of
e MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in fund under the confrol ol rustee. Uinder the
MPF schema in Hong Kong, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions 1o the
scheme at 5% of the employees” redevant income, subjedt to a cap of mentbly relevant income o
HEEI0,000, Contributions to the scheme are vested mmediately,

The employees ol the Group's China subsidiares are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the China government. The subsidiaries are required o contribule a cerain percentige
of Ihear payicll Lo the retirement benelits schemse 1o lund the bepelits, The only obligation ol the Giosp with
respeact to the refirement benefits scheme is 1o make: the required conbributions under the schemse,

The Group has defined contribution plans (A01(K) plans) covering subsiantially all LS. employees. The
Group's contributions to the plans are pimarily based on each contribution and cannol exceed the maximum
allowabde lor lax purposes

The amaoant charged to profit o foss of approxemately US$119 million during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020; WS35 million) represents contributions paid or payable to the plans by the Group at rales
specified B the rules ol he plais.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Acquisilion of MECOM GROUP s.r.o., Schneider Food, s.r.o., and Kaiser Food Kft. {collectively, “Mecom Group™)
Oi 17 June 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of the equily Imeresds in Mecom Giodp
from an independent thied party. Mecom Group has two meal processig plants in Slovakia and two
specitlised sites i Hungary that produece salami and olher packaged imeal products.

The Group mcurted ransaction costs of less than USED million T the acquisiion, These Wansaction costs
hawve been expensed and are included in other expenses in prolit on loss.

Since the acquisstion, Mecom Group contibuted USEE1-million to the Group's revenue and USE4 milkon to
the consobdated prodil before tax for the year endied 21 Decembear 2021

The revenue and consolidated profit: befose tax of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be
LISF2T, 455 million and LISE], 708 million i the scouisition of Mecom Group had taken place al the beginning
ol the year.

Acquisition of Granjas Carroll de Mexico (“GCM Group™)

O 7 July 2021, Ihe Group acquired the additional 16% of the equily inlerests from the joinl weinture pailses
ol GCM Group to increase the Group's equity interest in GCM Group from 50% o 66%, GCM Group is a
main producer of hogs in Mexico and paticipates in hog processing.

The Group mcurred ransaction costs of less than USED million for the aciguisiion, These Wansaction costs
have been cxpensed and are included in other expenses in prolit o loss.

Since the acquisiion, GCM Group contributed USH159 mellion to the Gioup’s revenue and US$E20 millon to
the consodated profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2021

The revenue and consolidated profit befoe tax of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be
US$27,601 milken and LS$L, 740 million if the scquisiion of GCM Group had taken place at the Beginning
al the yeai,

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Acquisition of Edelmann Provision Company Inc.

O 30 October 2020, the Group scquired from an independent third: party the eofire equity inferest in
Edelmann Provision Company Inc, (*Edelmann Provision™), The acquisition was made as pait of the Group's
shrategy lo increase profilability In branded packsged meats and strénglhen thelr leading position In the
packaged meat market in the LLS,

The Group incured transaclion costs of less than WSE] millien foe the acquisition, These iansachion costs
have been expensed and are inchuded in other expenses in profit of loss

Since the acguisition, Edelmann Provision contributed US$15 milion o the Group's revenue and US$2
million 1o the consolidated profit belore tax for the year ended 31 December 2000,

The revenue and profit of the Group lor the year ended 31 December 2020 would remain malerially
unchanged d the acquisiion of Edelmann Prowsion had laken place al the beginning of the year,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Fair value assessments

As at the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated financial stalements, the {air value assessments of
wenifiable assels and labibes arising from the MECOM Gioup and GUM Group acquisiions have nol béen
finalised and thus, the assets and l@abilities recognised at the dale of acquisition (see below) have been
determined provisionally, Upon finalisation of the waluation, any goodwill ansing on acquisiion may change
accordingly. The directors of the Company expect the valuation will be finalised within one year from
comgdelion date ol acquisition

The fair values of e identifiabbe assels and liabilities acquired during the year as thelr respective dates of
acquisition are sel oul below:

2021 (Provisional) 2020 {Final)
MECOM GCM Edelmann

Group Gromp Total F | Tkl
USS'million US$million US%'million US§mellion USE million

Property, plant and

gl L4 52 380 432 3 3
Intangible assels 19 4 -— 4 32 32
Biohopical assets (¥ — 1mm 101
Invanlones 15 24 i q q
Trade and bills receivables 13 18 ] 7 !
Prepayments, ofher

receivables and other

assils e 13 13 2 2
Othes current assets —_— 2 2
OMher non-currend assels - el Lt
Cash and bank Lalances 1 17 18 3 3
Trade payables {14} (21} (35) {2} (2
Accrued expenses and

othet pavables 3 (5} (B} {3) (3
Bosrowings == (123) (123
Ddzreed Taxadiones 31 — {68} (E8)

Othet liabdlities {11} {1} (2 (3) (3}
Tolal wentifiable net assels

at fair valye 57 a7 ki 43 43

Goodwill 18 — 8 78 41 31
57 415 472 7 74

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (confirmaed)
Fair value assessments (conlinued)

2021 (Provisional)
MECOM GCM

Group Group Total Tvis Tatal
Us$ ' million USS'million USHmillion L} LSS million

Saleshied l_'f:,-

Cash 57 18 75 7d 74
Lhefizried paymment = &3 &3
Mon-cash oonsideraton —_ *7 27
Redecmable non-controlling interest o 141 141
Fair valee of & pre-existing intorest = 166 166
5T 415 472 74 74

Analysis of the cash flows in respect
ol Wee acauisiticn s a5 follows

Cash consideration 57 [18) (75} LFEY] [FE )]
Cash and bank balances acquired 1 17 18

Met outflow ol cash and cash

equividents in cash fows used in

Imvesting activities. (56} {1 {573 {71y {71
Tansaction costs paid during the yoar

included in cash Tows from

operating activitees - — =k

(36) {1} {57} /1) (1)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{a) Major non-cash transaclions
[ming the year, the Group had non-cash additions to righl-of-use assels and lease [abilities of LIS$143
million and USE146 mellion, réespectively (2020 US$139 million and LISE12% mallion).

{b) Changes in liabilities arising from linancing activities

Diwidemd Lease Bomowings and

other loans

LISE million

At 1 January 2020 18 A65 3062
Changes froim financing cash lows (245) {132} (514}
Mew leases 129

Interest expense - .l "
Interast paid {200

leqmmination wrtd

Remeasurement 20

Dhnchends declansd =37

Cumency realsgnment il 6 Ha

Al 31 Deoember 2020 and

I January 2071 14 476 2,636
Changes from linancing cash Nows (B15) {123) 1.242
Mew leases —_ 148 -_—
Interest expense == 18 =¥
Interast pasd = {19 =
Tesmnination —_— {8) -
Remeasurament — — —
Chvcheivd s desclaned B0G — —_—
Increase arising fiom acouisdion of

subrsicli e ] - 123
Cumency realignment — {4) 13
At 31 Decembier 2021 BO 487 4014

% Less man USE1 milion
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {continued)

{c) Total cash oulflow for leases

The todal cash outfkes for leases included in the statement of cash flews is as Tollows:

2021

oOoOooodn

‘Within operating activities
Wilhin investeng sclvities
‘Within fmancing activities

USS million

L]
LB
123

265

LIS million

134
13
132

TG

36. SHARE CAFITAL

— T
LIS S il lan

Crdinary sharas of LISE0000] aach
Aurthorised:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021, amd 31
December 2021

Issued amd Tully peasd
At 1 Januany 2020

Issne o shares on exercre ol share opbons (Maobe (i)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 Janwary 2021
Issue of shares on exercise of share options (Note (1))

Cancellation of shares repurchased (Mole (i}

Al 31 December 2021

14.720.75
24.45

14,745.21
1.93
£1,816.54)

12,830.20

&l the shares sl dluringy The vt rank panl passy with the thien e'!us.lirl.;.:_ sharas in all respadts

Less than LSE] milkion
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The 1.'1r{>|||1 manages it capita o ensure that enbities in the Group will be abde o continue a8 & poing
concom whiks maamidsing the retum to ewners theough the optimesation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall stralegy remains unchanged during the years

The capital streclure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the bormowings disclosed in note 30
1o the consolidated mancial stalements, nel of cash and cash equialents and total equity, L‘:||I|'||.|r.|“.in;.:_ [EEATTE
share capital, reserves and refained prolits. As at 31 December 2021, the Group®s net debt o equily ratio
was 25:4% (2020: 9.9%).

Categories of financial instruments
Financial assels
As al 31 December 2021

Finamcial assets
al lair value Finamcia

thmugh al amord

profit or loss* Total
Asset calegories USE million USS mi USE million
Unlisbed equily investments 12 — 12
Unlisted financial products 232 — 23z
Derivative financial assels B1 — a1
Other non-current assels 181 - 181
Irade, Lills and ofher receivables and other assels 20 1,384 1.404
Pledged/restricted bank deposits = 31 31
Lash and Bank balances — 1,556 1,556
Total 528 2,991 3,517

As at 31 December 2020

Financeal

profif o Todal

Alegonies LIS 3 mmllioa I5% 5% milion

Unlisted equity investments (1¥] 14
Unlisted financial products Be2 Ba2
Desgivabive hinancesl assels B il
Other non-current assels. 161 161
Teawdes, bilks and other receivables and ofher assels 20 1,091 1.111
Pledgedirestricted bank deposits 62 G2
Cash and Bank balances 1,559 1599
Total 1,153 2 752 3005
= The tirancial gspets wi far vabse thagugh profil or oss e mandaionly measured af FYF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMEMT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

EDINETOOOO
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LSS mlleon

Al amortised ol
Trade and olher payatldes
Leasse liabilities
Bodrowings {lixed and floating rates)
Bank overdrallts

1,055
A6
2,636

'!I'!-

AL fair value through pedit or Boss:
Lrenvabive linanceal labalities

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances, financial
assels al FVPL, derivalive financial instruments, trade, bills and other receivables, other non-current assels,
frade and olher payables, lease labilities, obligation weder linance leases, bomowings and Bank overdralls,
Dedails of the linancial inshuments ae disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financil instruments include mesket risk (currency nsk and inlerest rabe risk), credit risk and liquidily nisk.
The policies on how to mitigate these rsks ane sel out befow. The management of the Group manages ancd
monidors these axposures to ensure that appropiiate measures are implemented in a8 timely and affective

ITEANIbeT.

Markel sk

Tihe tir-.’:qlp'.‘. actiwities expeose ruulmiily 1o the financial risks ol |ilﬂ|‘|HL‘:$ i ToreEn . Cuimency r.-’:k,-.’:lr..’ﬂ_[.;l_‘,' fates

and interest rates

There has been no (:ll‘II'IEI,'! tin thee Group's exposurg bo rarket nisks o the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk

WHEGRIUP LMAITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AMD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Foreign currency risk management

Cerlain group  entities  have certain foreign currency  sales, purchases, ¢ash and bank balances amd
boirowings denimmnabed n USS, EUR, HES RMB and JPY, which expose the Group o leieipn curency sk
al these individual group entitbes bevel, In osder o mitigate the foreian currency risks, foreign coarency
lorsand contracts are enlered info by the Group for cerlam maler@l lorgign currency transactions. The ornitical
lepmes of these loreign cumency lorsard contracts ane similar 1o those ol the hedged payments and receips
denominaled in foreign cunencies. These forelgn curtency lorward contiacls are designaled as hedging
instruments and hedge accounting is applied as the conliacts are considered highly effective hedging fems
The CAITYIng Amounts o the ﬂlllup'}. lowegan cunrency denominated mongtary assels and rmnu{.aw liakslities
al the end ol the reporting period are as lollows:

2021 20

US%$ miltion LIS% million

Assels
5§
Cash and bank balances 3 15
Trade, bills and other receivables — 2
ELIR
Cash and bank balances — 1
Trade, bills and other reosivables 43 11
REME
Trade, bills and othes receivables 13 g
1Py
Cash and bank balances G
Trade, bills and othed recenvabbes — B
Liabilities
us§
Trade and other jiyasbles 1 15
Borrowings 1 1
EUR
Trade and other pEables 22 20
Bomnowings 2 2
HE%
Trade and ofher payvables —
Bomrowings 1,135

L g LISFI miSon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Foreign currency risk management (conbinued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Gioup is manky exposed to the effect of USE against the functional currencies of the iespective grodp
entities, except for HEKY as it is pegged to the US%

The Tollowing tabde detaals e Gioup's sensitivily to a 5% (2020 5%) inciesse and deécrease in US$ against
functional currencies of the respective group entities which represent managemenl’s assessment of the
reasonebly  possible change In foresin exchange mbes. The sensitivily anabsis includes only  oulbstanding
foreign curmency denoninated monetary items and adjusts their translation to the funchional currencies of the
respective group enlilies at the year et for a 5% (2020 5%) change in foelgn currency rales. A posilive
{negative) number below indicates an increase {(decrease) in post-lax profit where LISH strengthens 5%
(2020; 5%) against the rebevant curmency.

USE mpact 3 e

In management's opinin, the sensitivity analyss B uniepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange nsk as
the year end exposure does nob rellect the exposure during the respective year,

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair valee interest rale nisk relates primanly to i#s fnancial asselts at FYPL and  fived-rate
borrowings {see notes 25 and 30 respectively for details). The Group currenlly does nol enter into. any
derivative conlracks to hedge #s exposure bo changes in fain values of financial assets at FVPL, fixed-rate
borrowings and lnance leases. Howeves, the management of the Group will consider hodging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's cash llow mlenest sade sk relabes primanily o lloatng rate bank balances, borrewings and bank
overdrafls {see notes 27 and 30 respeclively for detsils), The Group's exposures 1o interest rates on financial
liakyil@ies are detailed in the liquidity rsk management seclion of This nolo,

Sensilivily analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure o interest rales lor non-dernative
instruments al the end of the reporting period, For floating rate bonrowings, bank overdrafts and Bank
balances, the analysis is prepared sssuming the amount of asset and liability cubstanding al the end of e
repedting peniod was outstanding for the whole year, A 25 basis points increase of decrease is used for
sensilivily analysis which regeesents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates

Lesa than USE] milkon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Interest rate risk management (continued)

Sensitivity amalysis (continued)

I intedest mates decreased by 25 basis posnts and all otbier varabls wese held constant, the potential offect
on post-tax profit is as follows:

2021

LSS million US43 million

(Decrease) increase in post-lax profit =" 3

Thizre would be an equal and opposile impact on the post-lax profl where e inferest mbes increased by 25
basks points and all other variables were held constant

Credit risk management

The Group's credit risk & primarily attributable to s trade, bills and other receiables, bank badances and
pledged bank deposits. At the end of the repoting peried, the Group's masimem exposure fo credd risk
which will cause a linanckal loss 1o the Group due to the fadure to discharge an obligation by the
colnterparties and arsing from the camang amount of the respective rscognised financial assefs stated in the
consolidaled statement of financial position

In crder to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a leam responsible for the
determination of credit Nmits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure ihat {ollow-up
action is taken o recover overdue debls. In addition, the Group reviess the recovwrable amount of each
individual debt al the end ol each repoting pened o ensure thal adequate mpainment losses ae made lor
irmecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group oosiders that the Group's credit isk is
significantly reduced

The Groug has no significan concentiation of credit nsk on trade, bills and other receivables, with exposure
spicad over a large number of counlérparties and cusbonmers,

Informalion about credd sk exposure on the Grousp's Irade recebables using e provisson  meldne s
disclosed in note 23 1o the consoldated financial statements, As at 31 December 2021 and 21 December
2020, the b=z allowance provision Tor pledgedirestricted bank deposils, cash and bank balances, hbills
receivable and Tinancial assels incloded in prepayments, other recenables and olher assels was nol maderial

The ECLs for financial assets incheded in prepayments, othér recenables and other assels are based on
assumplions. about the probability of default and the expected loss rates, The Group uses judgement in
making these assumplions and selecting mpuls to the ECL calculations, based on the Group's historcal loss
recind, current condifions s well as Torwand-looking information.

" Lk thas USED Mo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk management {continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tabdes below shows the cedit quality and the maximum exposure o credit nsk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other infoomation s available without
undibe cosl of ellof, and year-end slaging classification a5 al 31 December. The amounts presented ane
gross caindng amounts for financeal assets. and the exposure o credit nisk for the Tinancial - guaranies
confracts,

As al 31 December 2021

12-month
ECLs Liletime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 Sage 2 Stage 3 approach Tatal
USS million US% million U5S%'million USF million USE'million

Trade and blls receiables ] o — 1,056 1,064

Financial assels incheded in prepayrments,
other receivabdes and ol assols 320 _ _ —_ a0
Pledged deposits 51 — EE = 51
Zash and bank balanoes 1,556 — -— — 1.556
1,935 =- = 1,066 2,59

As at 31 December 2020

B2-rmth

ECLs LAetime ECLS

plified
sesich Takl

wlion LSS millson

Trade and blls receivables i w7 ais

Financial asselts inchuded in prepayments,
other receiatdes and oher assets 176 176
Pledged deposits G2 G2
Cash and bank batamces I, B ] S99
1.845 H07 2752
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Liguidity risk management

The ulimsle responsibility for liguidity sk management rests with  mansgemenl, which has bailt an
appropriabe liquidity sk managemen! ramework lor e mansgement of the companies camprising the
Group's shoil, medium and long-ferme funding and Bguidity managemen! requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by mambaining adequalte reserves and bomowing facilities, by continuously monituing lorecast
and actual cash llows and malching the maturity proliles of Iimancial assels and  labilities.

Azl 31 December 2021, the Group hed available unutilised banking facilities of approamately US$6, 796
mulllbon {2020 LISES 032 million}

The lallowing lable detsils the Group's remaining comtraciual maturity Tor ils non-derbetie Tmancial Ebilities
The table has been deswn up based. on the undiscounted cash llows of financial Eabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required o pay. The table incledes boh interest and grincipal cash
fiows, To thee extent that interest rates are floating, the undiscounted amount is derved Trom infesest rate at
e e of the reporting pariod.

In addition, the following table alse detals the Group's analysis of its dervative financial instrurments that are
sellbed on a net basis, based on their (aic walue recorded in liabilities as al the end of the reporting pericd.

On demand
and 1 year 2t 5 Maore Ehan

or less ye YEATE

Al 31 December 2021

Teade payables 1,149 = — = 1.148
(dher payables 508 = = = 508
Lease labulities 116 133 86 204 230
Botrowings {ficed and floating rates) 60 1,234 237 2,144 4575

2,733 1,367 323 2,348 B,111
Dragivative lnances] labilifies. nel a3 — —_ — 3

Al 31 Decenber A

Trade payables 313 oa . 313
Cther payabies 121 BE 186
Lesse |@biities 170 147 G5 22 hEG
Bank owverdradls 46 : = - 406
Borrowings {fixed and floating rates) Bia ] 05 1,649 3131

2076 &al3 A0 1,873 4 862
Darivative financial liabilities. net ) 9 16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Fair value measurement
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts ol curren! financial assels and financial
liatyillees recorded al amortsed cosl in the consolidated financial stalements appaoximeate Lo ther Tar values
thee to the short term maturities of these instruments

The fair values ol noh-current inancal assets and financial [Eilities have been calculated by discounting the
expeecied fulure cash flows using mtes comently avaitable tor instruments with simikar terms, credit risk and
remaining malurities and mansgement has assessed That the ir vales of non-current financial assels and
financial lE@bildies approdmate lo thelr carying  amounts. The Group's own non-performance sk o
non-cument linancidl liabdlities as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2060 was assessed 1o be
signiicant

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The folliawing labde provides an anﬂtyﬁﬁ ol fimancial instruments thalt are measured ‘.ubﬁmuenl o indisd
recognition al fair value, grouped into Lewels 1 1o 3 based on the degree fo which the fG&ir value is
obgerable.

. Lovel 1 fair value measurements are those derived rom quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets of habilities,

Ll Level 2 talr value measurements are those demved from inpants other than quobed preces mduded within
Level 1 That are obserable lor the assel o liability, either directly (e as geices) o indirectly (e,
dienved (rom pricas).

. Level 3 Lair walue measwements are lhose derived from valistion techniques that inchede inpats Tfor the
astel on liability that are nol based on observable markel data {unoebsersable inguats),

2021

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Tatal
USS million US$ million Us%'million  U5% ' million

Financial assets at fair value through

ol on boss —_— 12 232 244
Derivative financial assets 37 2 a4 a3
Other nen-current asseats 33 114 14 181
Financial assets included in prapayimesils,

other recerables and other assels = 20 = 20

90 168 280 538
Derivative financial liabillies 12 a —_ 15

168 WHGROUPLIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (conlinued)

LIS % million st millio UIS% million

Financial assels al fair value through

profit or loss 10k BEZ 832
Darivative financial assels 95 8 2 106
Other non-curient assels ar 84 L] 161
Financial assetls included in prepayments,

other receivables and olher assels — 20 - 20

143 122 914 1.17%
Derivative financeal labilities 9 2 (11 41

Financial assets at FVPL incheded {a) unlisted investmenis in equily securities whose fair values are
determuned by income. approach based on discounted cash flow analysis on the expected mtenest rates (Level
2), and (b) unbisted financial products whose fair values are determined based on significant unobservable
inpats (Level 3) including expecied rale of return of 1.5% to 4.8% (31 December 2030 1.5% o 4.1%).

The fair values of dervative financial assetsabilties are determined by gquoted prices in active markels
{level 1} o using the income approach based on discounied cash flow analysis on the expected Inferest
rates {Level 2}, as appropriate.

Other non-cumrent assets inchude mulual lunds and  Institutional funds which are valued based on their
quoted prices in aclive markets (Level 1) or derived from the net assel vabue per share of the imvestmen
{Level 3), as appropriate, and insurance conliacks which are wlwed at their cash sunendes value using the
daily asset unit value which s based on the quoted market price of the undertying securities and classified
within Level 2.

There were mo fransfers between Leval | and Level 2 fair value measorements during the year, and no
lransiers inlo o oul of Level 3 fair walue messurements during the years ended” 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020

Sensitivity analysis

The fair value of financial assets and lnancial liabdlities that are chssified as Level 3 15 defermined using
wiluation techniques. including Monte Carlo simuolation. In delermming the tair walee, specitic valuabon
lechniques are used wilth relerence 1o inpals such as RMB risk-free interest rate, LIBOR and other specilic
inpat relevant o those particular financial assels and financial liabilities.

Changing uncbsarvable inpuls used in Level 3 valuation to reasonable alternative assumplions would nol have
a significant mmpact on the Group's profit or loss

wrsrour Lvires [
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMEMT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (confinued)
Movements in fair value measurement within Level 3
Thet movements In lai wabee medasarements within Leved 3 dureg e years ace a5 Tollows:

Finamcial assets al Derivative

lasi walae Ihrul}zh fnancial  Olher Aon-cirmem

profit or loss instruments assels
s million LS million LSS millbon

Al 1 January 2020 445 ] 20
Total gain {loss) recognsed in profit or loss
included in cost ol sakes and other gains

and {losses) ot | g8 4
Purchases VAL
Dispomals {1.655) {11}
Lurrency realgnman 52
Al 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 BEZ [ap a0

Total gain {loss) recognsed in profit or loss
included in cost of saks and other gains

and {losses) 24 38 (16}
Purchases 1.428 Ce =
Disgrosals {2.112) {16} =
Laurrency realgnmeant - — =
Al 31 December 2021 232 3 14

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group's assels and labdities are measwred at B walee lor nancial epeting parposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a Rability. the Group uses market-obsarvable data to the extent il is
available. Where Lewel 1 mpuls are not awilable, the Gioup engages thied party quablsed waluers 1o pedorm
the valuation. The management of the Company wotks closely with the qualified extermal valuers o establish
the apgropriale waluation techniques and inputs 1o the maodel

Fimancial assets and financial liabilities subject lo offsetting enforceable master netling arrangements and similar
agresmants

The disclosure set out in the tables below includes linancial assets and financial Mabilises that

. are offset in the Group's consolidated statemen of linancial position; o

. are subyect o an enfoceatie master nelling arangement or sinillar agreenment that covers samslar financisl
mstruments, irrespective of whether they are offsel in the Group's consolidabed staternent of financis
prosition.

1M WHGROUP LIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AMND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conlinused)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (conlinued)
The Group cumendly has a legally enforceable right o set off the derivative financial instruments and the

Group inlends fo seflle these balances on a nel bass

As at 31 December 2021

Net gmounts ol

Prancial asssiy

Financial abilije
UsSmiltion

Us5'milfan

T ]
fimancial pr
ey 1]

Nea mmaunt
AT

{11 i in = =

#s at 31 December 2020

wrsrour Lvires [ EEHIN

268/303

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Pre-IPO share option scheme
The pre-|PO share oplion scheme was adopled pursuant 1o a wiitten resolulion passed by the shareholders. o
the Company on 21 January 2014 as amended on 4 Apnl 2014, the purpose of which & lo incentivise and
reward eligible participants of the scheme, mcluding directors and employees of the Company o9 ils
subsidiaries by resson of thelr conlmbution o polonfial contibubion to the Company andfor any of s
subessdiaries,

In July 2004, the number of shares in respect of which oplions had been granted undar the pre-IPO share
option scheme was 584 795 5565, with an exercise price of HK$6,20 per share, representing no more than
5% of the then ssued share capital of the Company upon complelion of the listing on the Stock Exchange.
Mo consideration was pakd by the grantees for the grant of the pre-lPO share options, The pe-IPO share
option scheme will expire in 10 years after the date of lsting of the Compamy (e 5 August 2014),

The fair vadue of the pre-lPC share options granted using the Binomial Ophen Priciog Model was HR$1 283
million {(equivalent to approdmately US$243 million), which was measured by an independent qualified

waleer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appratsal and Adviscry Liméed,

The key inputs into the model were as Tollows:

Share price HE$E. 66
Faesoise prioe IIKFH:..QU
Oplicn e 10 years
Expected volatility d2%
Risk-free mabe 2 (6%

T expeched '|'I'I|Hrl|lt¥ was determined I::lr wEing the hestorical volatility of the sekected comparabde companies
i the sarme indusiry,

The Tollowing table discloses details of the Group's culstanding share oplions under the poe- PO share oplion
schem and their movements during the year

wieor W) kA OIE GGG M4AE NG = MR &,

In respect of the share options exercised during the yeas, the average share poce al the dales of exescise
was HE$E. 29 {2020, HKST,06)

Fou the year ended 31 December 2021, no share-based payment expense was recopnsed (2020: Nil) in
relation o the pre-IPO share option scheme

172 WHGROUPLIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commibments at the end of the reporting pessoed:

2021

USS million LISE million

Contracted, but nel provided lor:
Capital confribution to a joint ventue 165 165
Aerquisition of property, plant and aguignment S5 305

40, PLEDGE OF ASSETS

2021

USS million LIS$ million

Pledged bank balances g B

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, ceain of the Group's principal LS subsidiaties are
jointly and sevesally liabba for, as primary obligors, the obdigations under certain banking facilites.

Smithfield Receivabdes Funding, LLC ("Smithfield Receivables™), a wholly-owned subskdiary of the Group, has
a securitisation facility thal matures in Movember 2023, As part of the amangement. cerfan rade receivaliles
e sold to a8 wholly-owned “bankruptcy remobe” special purpose wehicle ("SPV7). The SPY pledges the
receivablés as secunity for ans and lelers of credit. The SPV i included in the consolidated statement of
Tmancial posfion of the Group. Howeser, the rade receiables owned by the 5PV ame separabe and disting
from the other assets and are not available to other credidors of Smithfield Recehables #  Smilhfield
Receivables was to become inscohent As al 31 December 2021, the 5PV held WS3632 milhon (2020
L5367 million) of trade receivables and had oulstanding  borrowings of US$26 million (2020, US$107
milleon) on the securilisation lacility, Mo financial or otbes support to this SPY was provided by the Group as
M 31 December 2021 and 31 December 20020

WH GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

41. REGULATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Group B subject to various Bws and regulations administered by jursdictional government entities. The
Group had nofices and inquities Trom regulatorny authorities and others asserting from time 1o time that the
Gioup & pol in compBance wilh the respective bws and regulations. [ some inslances, Bipalion ensues and
imdividuals may initiate litigation against the Group.

The Giotip's policy for establishing scciuals and disclosuies for conlingent abillies & el oul in note 3 Lo
the consolidated financial statements. The Group established a reserve o the estimated expenses o defend
agunsl these and similar polential claimes, which was subsequently re-evaluated,

Expenses and other habilies assocaled with these chims will not affect the Group's profits of losses in
future periods unless the provesson proves 1o be sullicient of excessive. However, legal expenses incurmed in
the Group's defense of these claims and any payments made to plainfifis through untavorable verdicls of
otherwise will negatively impact ils cash [lows and &5 liquidily position. The disectors of the Company will
continee 1o evaluate and adpest the provision as necessary upon changes in tacts and circumstances.

The Group had the followmg significant litigatons. during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 20020:

Anti-trust Litigations

Smathlield Foods Inc. ("Smithfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been named as ono of
16 defendants in & series of purported class actions alleging anti-trest viotalions in the pork industry (The
“Anli-trust Litigations™). The purpoied dass cases have been filed by three different classes of named
plaintifls: (i) direct purchasers (companies thal purchase pork products directly from pork producers), {in
commenctal  indirect  purchasers (companies such a4 restaurants and hobels that purchase pork from
wholesalers for resale), and (i) individual indirect parchasers {(such as people who purchase pork al grocery
storesh Inoall of these cases, the plainddis alleged that starting in 2009 amnd continuing thaough at least June
2018, the defendant podk producers agreed to reduce the supply of hogs in the United States i order to
mise e price of hogs and all pork prodects. The plantifts in all of these cases also challenged the
defendant pork producers’ use of benchmarking reports: from defendant Agri Stats, Inc., alleging that the
repotts allowed the pork producers 1o share propriclary information and monifor each producer’s compliance
with' the supposed agresment o reduce supply. The direcl purchasers seek treble damages, altomeys’ foes,
and costs under the federal anti-trust laws of the United States and the bwo groaps of indiect parchasers
seek freble damages, attoeneys’ fees, and cosls under vanous siale anli-trust and  consumer-protection
statubes of the United Stales.

In the fall of 2018, Sthficld joined with the other defendants in iling two joinl mations o dismss and akso
filed its own individual motion to dismiss. On 8 August 2019, the court granted the defendants’ o jodnt
mations o disméss and dismissed all plaintiffs clems in all cases withoul prejudice. The court granted
plainkifts in all cases permission (o Qe an amended complaint within 90 days. The plaintiils filed amended
complaints, Smithfield agam joined with the other defendants in filing two joint motions 10 dismiss the
amended complaints.  Additionally, Smithficdd Bled s own individueal molion to dismiss the amended
complaknts,

174 WHGROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Tade incsd 31 Decatibar S02)

REGULATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Anti-trust Litigations (continuad)

On 16 Oclober 2000, the cowt mostly densed the defendants’ renewed motions o dismiss, cxcept il
dismissed all clhabns againdl Indana Packers Corporation, dismissed damages claims ansing fiom cedain ik
periods as barred by the statute of Bmitations, certain state baw claims in the indirec! purchaser suits, and a
claim under Puerlo Rico Ew,

In addition o the putative class actons filed in 2018, Smithfield has been pamed as 8 defendant in similar
anfi-trust lawsuits: brought by a number of individusl purchasers and nod on behall of a chss. The plaintitfs
in these non-class cases assert the same anbi-trust claims a5 the plaintiffs in the pukative class actions and
filed amended complaints. The Mtomeys Geneml for the States of Mew Mexdco and Alaska have each filed a
simiar complaint on behall of ther respeclive states, its agencies and its citizens,

Under an agrésment dated 29 June 2021, the Group has agreed to setile all direct-purchasers class. claims
for a single payment up to USEE3 milin, The terms of the settlement were approved by the federal court in
Minnessta following notice 1o all class members. Do (o the nombser of class members who elecied fo opl out
of e seflement, under the lerms of the seltiement agreement, the final selifement amount was LSEF7F
il B,

Under an aprecment dated 19 March 2022, the Group agreed to settle all commercial and institutional
indirect-purchaser class claims for & single payment of US$42 milion, The terms of the setfement are
subject o courl approval following notice to class members.

The Group intends to continue o vigorously délend against the remaing class claims on - the Anti-brust
Liligations.

Maxwell Foods Litigation

On 13 August 2020, Mageell Foods, LLC ("Magwell®) fited a complaint against Smithiield in the General
Court of Justice, Superid Court Divisien for Wayne County, Morh Carolina. The complaint alleged that
Smithfield treached the Production Sales Agreement (“P3ATY between the parties (as well as the duty of
good faith and fair dealingk (i} by failing 1o provide Maowell with the same pricing as other major hog
supplers in violalion o a purpoited “Most-Favered-Mation Provigion” found moa 6 December 19994 better 1o
Mavwell, (i} by failing lo comply with an implicit duty Io negotiate the PSA lo provide alternative pricing o
Maxwell when the lowa-Southein Minnesota market allegedly ceased to be viable; and (i) by failing 1o
purchase Maowell's enlire oulpul of hogs since Aprl 20020,

Smithficld filed a notice. of emoval to the United States District Count of the Eastern District of North
Carcling, Smithlicld also filed a mobion to dismiss several of Maxwell's clains. On 22 Febmeary 2021, the LLS,

Distiict Court granted Maxwell's malion o remand the case to the Suporics Court of Wayne County and el
Smithfield’s parial motion to disass the complaint tor conssderation by the state court in Wayne County,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

41. REGULATIONS AND CONTINGEMCIES (continued)
Maxwell Foods Litigation (conlinued)
On 1 March 2021, Maxwell filed an amended complaind, which added a claim under the Moth Carolina
Unfain aivd Deceptive Trade Practices Act. Smethficld filed a nodice of designation seeking assignamenl of e
case to the Morth Carcling Business Cowrt. Maxwell objected to such designation, and on 13 Apnl 2021 the
Business Court overruled Mawell's objecton,

The Business Court has dismissed two of Maowell's claims: the implied duly to negoliate chim and the
ULTPA clasm. The “Most-Favored-Nation Prowsion”™ claim and the claim thal Smithield faked to purchese
Maxwell's entire outpul of hogs since Apail 2020 remain. The parties are engaging in electronic discovery,

The Group intends o vgorously delend against these ciams

Earden Hog Farm Litigation

On 18 May 2050, a claim was filed by 20 plaintdls in the U5, Districl Court for the Eastern District of Mosih
Carolina against Smithfield and Murphy-Brown LLC, a wholly-ewned subsidiary of Smithfield. The claims all
arige from hog farms m Magnolia, Doplin County, which purporbedly allow "odor, urine, leces, manure, llies
and olber vectors o bespass onlo Plantifls’ properties.” Counts biought by the plaintiffs are bespass,
negligence, civil conspimcy, wnfair and deceptive trade practices, and unjust entichment

On 13 July 2020, Smithiield filed a motion o dismiss o namow  plaintiiis’ legal theories, and a motion to
strike cerdain objeclionable allegations in lhe plaintifls’ complant, The plainbfls woluntarily dismissed their
unlair and deceplve bada prachices claims, and on 15 March 2021, the court granted in part and denied in
pant the mobion b dismess, dsmissing plaintifts” civil consplracy and unjust enichment claimes with. prepedice
The Gourt also denied the delendints’ motion to stnke certain objectionable allegations in the complanl

The Group intends to vigorosly defend against these clainms.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
{.a:l The Group had the III"(M‘II'IH sipnilicant transactions with associalesomnt venlunes |J|J||r|,|;: he YEAS

2021

UES million LSS million

Sales ol goods to associales 2 16
Sales of goods to pent ventmes 17 13
Purcligse of goods and Sérvices Irom associates 144 223
Purchase of goods from joint ventures 189 28

b Baknoes with assocelesoant ventuees a1 the end ol he repot s W piod
| | L

2021 2020

WSS million LIS il lion

Included in
Trade and bills eceivables
Prepayrments, ofher recevables and ollwa assels
Trade payables 12 Q9

{c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
The remmeneration ol key management personnel, representing emoluments of directors of the Company

and senior management of e Group paidipayable during the perod under revew s sel out below

Year ended 31 December

2021
US§ million

Directoss’ fees
Basio salanes and allvwances B
Pefoimance homises g 5
Temmination beneldls a9
1

Betuement benehl scheme oonthbaabions

Todal compensation paid to key management personnel 28 14

wrsrour Lvires [ EEEIN

274/303



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2021

WSS 'million LIS il lson

NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Imtesests in unbsted subshd@nes 5,139 5,139

CURRENT ASSETS

fmounts due from subsidianes 131 84
Prepayments, other receivables and other assels 1 1
Cash and bank balances =

152 85

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due o subsidiries 1,126 119
Other payables 1 2

1,1?_? 321
NET CURRENT LEABILITIES | 18750 (236}
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,184 4,503

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amount due lo subsidiares | 1028
1,128
NET ASSETS 3,035 4,503

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital (Mole 35) i 1
Share premium 1,083 3011
Translaton reserse B1 Lo |
Cther feseye 220 221
Retained poolils 1,671 1,640
TOTAL EQUITY 3,038 4 03

178 WHGROUPLIMITED
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (conlinued)
Movements in the Company's reserves

Share Share  Transhatmn o Retained
capital premium neseree Ve peolits

ary 2021 1 1011 al 221 1,808 4,003

B - - - 284 384

end (ot 1 - = - = {332) 32
Chaire e Erltrhated — (1,831) s — — {1,831}
. = 3 = {1} == 2

1 (1,928) == (1)) B2 1887

1 1,083 (4] 220 1,871 3.038

AN ME COTpSES The fa

capitsl when |Be relsied coiont are esedcited, o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44, NON-WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The fabde below shows the defails of non-wholly-cwned subsidianes of the Group that have materis
non-controling interesls at the end of the reporting period:

Country of

Incarparsiion  Prepediben of owneeildp

snd principal inlerests and voling rights

place ol heldd by sea-cemislling Froht stiribidable io Accummisted sas-ceadollvbg

Mame ol smhxidinny busimess imerests men-C mbinlling imereils imenests

0 021 2021
LSS mill e b WSS milld o

R Tifia 0675 2967 223 A4 832
. 7 7
230 B 939 i

Summarised financial information in respect of Shuanghui Development thal has material non-controlling
mierests Bosel oul below, The sumamamsed linancial informa@tion below  represents  the amounts balone
inlragroup eliminations.

Az & 31 December

2021 FOR0

USE millian LSS millson

Mon-curent gsselts 2,554 1,950
Current assels 2,755 3,406
Currend habililses {1,962 {1,556
Mon-current liabities {135} (107
Equity aliributabde to owners of Shuanghur Devedopment (3,560) {3,650
MNon-controlling interests of Shuanghul Development's subsidiaries 51 ha
Mon-controlling interests of Shuanghui Developmant Ba1 a1l
032 e
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44, NON-WHOLLY-OWMED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
{conlinued )

Year ended 31 December

2021 200
USS million LSS million
Revenue 10,286 10 652
Tokal apmses {9.541) (9, 749)
Prafit Tor the year T45 923
Diher comprehansive incoame =
Total comprehensive income for the year 745 923
Profit atiributable o owners of the Company 522 BI7
Profil- aliribulabde 0 the non-controling interests of
Shuanghui Development's subskdiarses a ¥
Profit altributable o the non-controlling interests of Shuanghui
Developiment >0 4
745 G923

Davidends paid o non-conbrolling interests. of Shuanghui

Development’s subskdipries 8 17
Mt cash inflow from operating activities w22 1,289
Mel cash oullflow from mvesting activities (78} {633
Mel cash outflow from linancing activities (830 {34)
Mel cash (oulilow) Inflow (86) r22
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

45. OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME (EXPEMNSE)
Other reserve included the faiw value of the share oplions, remeasurement deficit of the defined banefit
pension plans and tair valua surphits in cash flow hedge aliribadable 1o the Groug

20

UsS ' million

Cither compeehicnsive (expense) income ncludes:
fferns that ol ol be res

assified sulmaquenty o profif of joss:

Remeasurement on defined benell pension plans 23 (121}
Income: tax relating 1o defined benel@ pension plans {18) 31
4 90

flems that may be reclassiied subsaquenhly fo profit oF hss

Fxchange differences arising on franslation of fedeign operations {27) 312
Fair walue change in cash flow hedpe (38) a4z
Incomme: Bax retaling 1o cash lkow hedge 10 (AR N

(530 33
Other compeehensive (expensa) income, net ol lax (49 253

46. PRINCIFPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Dedalls of the Company's principal subsidianies al 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows:

i bt et

auediegisl

titabhishsenl’ Tesced e lully paid shave

Namt o subsidary epei slien exprislhepitend caprial " Priscigal sefivmey

i Hedi 100 i i
HRET3 55
g h ToAY hiling, " .
& B g —
I ek
iy Bl 100 1 y ti
miing, man
i I e Bt
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The abowe lable lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors of the
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

Ernst & Young Tel : +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place 05 Fax 1 +852 2868 4432
979 King*"s Road 979 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong 27

To the shareholders of WH Group Limited
(Incorporated iIn the Cayman Islands with Iimited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WH Group Limited (the
“ Company” ) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “ Group” )
set out on pages 62 to 182, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of 1ts consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“ IFRSs” ) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

(* HKSAs” ) 1issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(* HKICPA” ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Sstatements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA"s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “ Code” ),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor*s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets

The carrying value of the Group®s live
hogs included in biological assets
amounted to US$1,243 million,
representing 6.4% of the Group®s total
assets as at 31 December 2021. The
carrying value of live hogs was
measured at fair value less costs to
sell, which was determined based on
the price of hogs in the actively
traded market, reduced by the breeding
costs required to raise the hogs to be
slaughtered, the estimated margins
that would be required by a raiser,
and estimated costs to sell with
reference to the latest budgets
approved by management. The Group
engaged an independent qualified
valuer to perform the live hog
valuations. We identified the fair
value measurement of live hogs as a
key audit matter because of the
significant degree of judgement
involved in the valuations to
determine the fair value less costs to
sell of live hogs.

Disclosures of determination of the
fair value less costs to sell and the
key assumptions involved are included
in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing
the fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets included:

O understanding how management
determined the fair value
measurement of live hogs included in
biological assets, including the
involvement of the independent
valuer;

O evaluating the competence,
capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the independent
valuer;

O reviewing the valuation model
prepared by the independent valuer
in determining the fair value less
costs to sell of live hogs;

O comparing the market price of live
hogs used as inputs for the
valuations with available market
data; and

O evaluating the estimates of breeding
costs required to raise the live
hogs and estimated margins that
would be required by a raiser and
estimated costs to sell against the
historical performance and budgets
approved by management.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor®s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view In accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

O

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, i1f such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor-"s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor™s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor®s
report is Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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(Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen)
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